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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaaibking” statements within the meaning of Section 27,
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of teeufities Exchange Act of 1934, including, withbutitation,
statements regarding future financial results arfopmance, potential sales revenue, legal conticige and tax
benefits, and the existence of adverse litigatiuth @her risks, uncertainties and factors set forttier Item 1A.,
entitled “Risk Factors”, of this Annual Report oarfh 10-K and in our reports and documents filechwlite
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Youidentify these forward-looking statements by tee of

n o ow LIS ” o« ",

words such as “outlook”, “believes”, “expects”, tgatial”, “continues”, “may”, “will", “should”, “seeks”,
“approximately”, “predicts”, “intends”, “plans”, ‘gimates”, “anticipates” or the negative versiortafse words or
other comparable words. These statements are stbjegrious risks, and uncertainties, many of tdce outside
our control, including the level of market demanddur services, competitive pressure, the altititgchieve
reductions in operating costs and to continue tiegirate club acquisitions, environmental initiasivéhe application
of Federal and state tax laws and regulationsoimel specific factors discussed herein and inrd®iieC filings by
us. We believe that all forward-looking statemeartsbased on reasonable assumptions when madeyédmpwe
caution that it is impossible to predict actualtesor outcomes or the effects of risks, unceti@snor other factors
on anticipated results or outcomes and that, acuglsd one should not place undue reliance on tisésements.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the thety were made, and we undertake no obligatiapdate
these statements in light of subsequent eventew@lopments. Actual results may differ materiattynfi anticipated
results or outcomes discussed in any forward-lapkiatement.

PART I

ltem 1. Business

In this Annual Report, unless otherwise statedherdontext otherwise indicates, references to ‘H&tings”,
“Town Sports”, “TSI”, “the Company”, “we”, “our” ag similar references refer to Town Sports Inteoral
Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries and referenoé3Sl, LLC” and “TSI, Inc.” refer to Town Sporisternational,
LLC (formerly known as Town Sports International¢l), our wholly-owned operating subsidiary.

General

Based on number of clubs, we are the second laogestr and operator of fitness clubs in the Northead
Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States and ttighflargest fithess club owner and operator inlthréted States.
As of December 31, 2009, the Company, throughuitsisliaries, operated 161 fitness clubs under @ur ey
regional brand names; “New York Sports Clubs” (NYyS®oston Sports Clubs” (BSC), “Philadelphia Sgort
Clubs” (PSC) and “Washington Sports Clubs” (WSQ)e3e clubs collectively served approximately 488,00
members, excluding shaierm and seasonal memberships, as of Decembef32, /e owned and operated a ti
of 109 clubs under the “New York Sports Clubs” litamame within a 120-mile radius of New York Cityads
December 31, 2009, including 39 locations in Matdratvhere we are the largest fithess club ownermgpedator
(more than twice as many as our nearest competitdeg)owned and operated 25 clubs in the Bostoronegider
our “Boston Sports Clubs” brand name, 18 clubs (@vevhich are partly-owned) in the Washington, Dr€gion
under our “Washington Sports Clubs” brand namesixdlubs in the Philadelphia region under our f&thelphia
Sports Clubs” brand name as of December 31, 2@0&ddition, we owned and operated three clubs itz&vand
as of December 31, 2009. We employ localized bremmdes for our clubs to create an image and atmosphe
consistent with the local community and to fostaragnition as a local network of quality fithesshd rather than a
national chain.

We have developed and refined our fitness club itbdeugh our clustering strategy, offering fitnehsbhs
close to our members’ workplaces and homes. Wetatbindividuals within each of our regions whepae to a
healthy lifestyle. We believe that the majorityauir members have household income levels betwe@®®3 and
$150,000. We believe this is not only the broadestor of the market, but also provides the grégresvth
opportunities. Our goal is to be the most recoghizealth club network in each of the four major rojslitan
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regions we serve. We believe that our strategyusitering clubs provides significant benefits t@ members and
allows us to achieve strategic operating advantdgesach of our markets, we have developed clagiginitially
opening or acquiring clubs located in the more regnirban markets of the region and then expandirgnarket
coverage from these urban centers to suburbs dgibmging communities.

We currently offer three types of memberships in@ubs: “Passport”, “Regional Passport” and “Gol@he
Regional Passport Membership was added in theHfaurarter of 2008 and allows a member access af alir
clubs within a single region, while the Passporidership allows access to all clubs in all fouriwag. As of
December 31, 2009, approximately 40% of our membeld a Passport or Regional Passport Memberskiis@¥o
of our members held a Gold Membership, which allowtmited access to a designated or “home” cluslldtmes
and access to all of our other clubs during offkpleaurs. Gold members may also pay a per visibfe®r.50 to use
non-home clubs during peak hours. Members can &lexmmit to a predetermined minimum contractquof
one or two years in order to benefit from reducedsdand joining fees. Alternatively, our memberstlaige availabl
on a month-to-month basis.

Over our 36-year history, we have developed aridedfour club formats that allow us to cost-effesly
construct and efficiently operate our fitness cliubthe different real estate environments in whighoperate. Our
fithess-only clubs average approximately 20,00@Gsgeet, while our multi-recreational clubs averag
40,000 square feet. The aggregate average sizieobfoar clubs is approximately 26,000 square f€air clubs
typically have an open fithess area to accommaotkiiovascular and strength-training equipmentyelsas
special purpose rooms for group fitness classesthad exercise programs. We seek to provide admaoay of
high-quality exercise programs and equipment thapapular and effective, promoting the qualityreise
experience that we strive to make available torsembers. When developing clubs, we carefully exarttie
potential membership base and the likely demanddpplemental offerings such as swimming, basketbal
children’s programs, tennis or squash and, providgible real estate is available, we will add onmore of these
offerings to our fitness-only format. For exam@enulti-recreational club in a family market maglinde Sports
Clubs for Kids programs, which can include swinstass and sports camps for children.

Throughout 2009, the ongoing U.S. and global ecaoaoetession has resulted in additional significant
pressures and declines in consumer confidence@mbmic growth. These economic conditions haveaded
reduced consumer spending and have contributenl ittcceease in member cancellations, a decreasgwn n
memberships and reductions in revenue from angilarvices and marketing. These economic condittontd
continue to adversely affect our business and tesilloperations.

Industry Overview

Total U.S. fitness club industry revenues increasteslcompound annual growth rate of 6.8% from &billion
in 1999 to $19.1 hillion in 2008, according to thest recent information released by the Internatfibtealth,
Racquet and Sportsclub Association, or IHRSA. Tot&. fithess club memberships increased at a canmgpo
annual growth rate of 4.5% from 30.6 million in B9® 45.5 million in 2008, and total number of &8s clubs
increased at a compound annual growth rate of Tt@fb 15,372 in 1999 to 30,022 in 2008, accordingHBSA.
Membership penetration (defined as club membess@ecentage of the total U.S. population oveatie of six)
has increased from 12.9% in 1999 to 16.0% in 2@@8ming to IHRSA.

In 2008, health club members attended clubs arageesf 101 days, with 40% visiting their clubsestdt
100 times during the year, according to IHRSA. Bgrihe economic recession of the last two yeatsndance at
health clubs has increased nearly 7%.

Obesity continues to be a growing problem in thétééhStates. The Center for Disease Control anddptan
found that 68% of U.S. adults were considered oeéaghat or obese in 2007-2008, an increase from 64r6%
1999-2000As healthcare costs rise in the United States, sfrttee focus in combating obesity and other dissae
being directed at prevention. Both government aedioal research has shown that exercise and oltlysigal
activity plays a critical role in preventing obgsiind other health conditions, thereby reducindtheare costs.

Demographic trends have helped drive the growtleeepced by the fitness industry over the pastdiecahe
industry has benefited from the aging “baby boonzerd “Eisenhower” generations as they place grestgihasis
on their health, including a focus on fitness.
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As the focus on exercise and overall healthy Kfiestcontinue to fuel the health club industry, vedieve that
we are well positioned to benefit from these dyranais a large operator with recognized brand naesding
regional market shares and an established opetaisiayy.

Competitive Strengths
We believe the following competitive strengths imstrumental to our success:

Strong market position with leading brand®ased on number of clubs, we are the fifth larfjgess club
owner and operator in the United States and thenselargest fithess club owner and operator ilfNbgheast and
Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States. We dre targest fithess club owner and operator in tee Nork and
Boston regions, the second largest owner and aparathe Washington, D.C. region and the fifthgkest owner an
operator in the Philadelphia region. We attribute mositions in these markets in part to the stiteng our localizec
owner and operator brand names, which foster retogras a local network of quality fitness clubs.

Regional clustering strategy provides significaahbfits to membersBy operating a network of clubs in a
concentrated geographic area, the value of our reeships is enhanced by our ability to offer memlaeess to
any of our clubs, which provides the convenienckasfing fitness clubs near a member’s workplacetemde.
Approximately 40% of our members have a Regionakpeart or Passport Membership, and because these
memberships offer enhanced privileges and greateranience, they generate higher monthly dues @Gad
Memberships. Regional clustering also allows ysravide special facilities to all of our memberghin a local
area, such as swimming pools and squash, tennibashketball courts, without offering them at eviegation. In
the year ended December 31, 2009, 36% of all chalg@ was by members visiting clubs other than tiaire
clubs.

Regional clustering strategy designed to enhangenees and achieve economies of scalée believe our
regional clustering strategy allows us to enhaegemue and earnings growth by providing high-qualit
conveniently located fitness facilities on a cdé¢aive basis. Regional clustering is attractivedrporations
seeking to promote a healthy lifestyle by providiigcounted group memberships to their employeesalsb
partner with many groups that serve our communitresuding the New York City Police and Fire Defpagnts in
our New York Sports Clubs region, the Southeadiemnsylvania Transportation Authority (SEPTA) imou
Philadelphia Sports Clubs region, and the Distfa€olumbia Government, including all city agendiesur
Washington Sports Clubs region. We believe thatmtidl new entrants would need to establish or iaeqularge
number of clubs in a market to compete effectiweith us. Our clustering strategy also enables wtoeve
economies of scale with regard to sales, markegingzhasing, general operations and corporate asknzitive
expenses and reduces our capital spending neegi®ndkclustering also provides the opportunityrfeembers wh
relocate within a region to remain members of dubg, thus aiding in member retention.

Expertise in site selection and development procéde believe that our expertise in site selectiod a
development provides an advantage over our coropgtiven the complex real estate markets in theeapelitan
areas in which we operate and the relative scaofiyitable sites. Before opening or acquiringgew iclub, we
undertake a rigorous process involving demograghétcompetitive analysis, financial modeling, siéection and
negotiation of lease and acquisition terms to enthat a location meets our criteria for a modebcWe believe
our flexible club formats are well suited to theatbnging real estate environments in our markets.

Focus on the member experience through innovativgrams and initiatives. We offer various innovative
fitness programming, creating diverse ways forrmembers to reach their fitness goals, such as:

» Catwalk Confidence:NYSC's Dr. Emily Splichal created this exclusislass that focuses on body
alignment, core strengthening, and stabilizati@hméques to help women walk confidently by building
proper posture and balant

» Pilates Together Originally launched in BSC with the help of a Bos Celtics star’s wife, Shannon Allen,

to provide an opportunity for women to bond witkeitmew baby, while reclaiming their pre-pregnancy
energy and fitness through postnatal Pilates vaigir infants providing additional resistan

* NY Jets Flight Crew Partnered with the New York Jets Cheerleader¥ (J&ts Flight Crew”) to offer
exclusive newly created cardio dance classes leddmbers of the NY Jets Flight Crew a

« Black Diamond Workou' Fifty-minute high intensity snow sports conditiiog class designed to prepare
skiers for the slopes through leg and core stremgtiy, balance and agility trainin
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Business Strategy

In the long-term, we seek to maximize our net mangbewth, revenues, earnings and cash flows usieg t
following strategies:

Retain members through our focus on the memberierpe. Our company’s mission is “Improving Lives
Through Exercise.” We enact our mission through“@mgage and Inspiredperational excellence platform whicl
designed to inspire members to embrace regulaciseeaind achieve their fithess goals by securiag toyalty
through customer service and providing state-ofatidacilities, programs and services. We taita hours of each
club to the needs of the specific member demogcapilizing each club; offer a variety of ancillasgrvices,
including personal training, group classes, smalug training, Sports Clubs for Kids programs, #melXpressLine
program (a supervised, high-intensity, efficientrkaut program). We offer a variety of different sggofacilities in
each regional cluster of clubs; offer modern, \chaad well-maintained exercise and fithess equignaer offer an
assortment of additional amenities including actedmbysitting, sports massage and pro shopsughrhiring,
developing and training a qualified and diversert¢laat is passionate about fithess and health;taiaing and
enhancing our programs and services; and continuredfeasing our attention to individual memberdsave
expect to demonstrate our commitment to increasgality of the member experience, and therelbrease net
membership.

Drive comparable club revenue and profitability gth by implementing our business strategyur near-term
financial performance will depend largely on thewth of revenue at clubs that we have operatedife than
12 months. We define comparable club revenue anevat those clubs that were operated by us far ov
12 months and comparable club revenue growth @&nuevfor the 13th month and thereafter as compartdd
same period in the prior year. Historically, congide club revenue growth has been a contributiotpfan our
revenue growth, with comparable club revenue grdattieach of the four years from 2005 to 2008, nagdpetwee
2.2% to 7.9%. However, in part as a result of thgaing economic recession and the impact on consspaading,
we experienced higher member attrition and lowerage revenue per member in 2009. As a resulthéoyear
ended December 31, 2009, our comparable club reveéaclined 5.6% compared to growth of 2.2% forytar
ended December 31, 2008. We experienced a compatialhl revenue decrease of 7.1% in the fourth quaft
2009, and we expect comparable club revenue tonento be negative throughout 2010, however selelevels.
Comparable club revenue growth is dependent inygaoh the success of our strategic initiativeduidiog our
“Engage and Inspire” operating initiative and oacds on ancillary revenues. Our “Engage and Inspiigative is
expected to continue to enhance the member experamd therefore increase member loyalty, new membe
referrals and retention. Improved ancillary sersiegll both enhance the member experience and geaws with a
means for increasing comparable club revenues uiithgimilar increase in fixed costs. Despite aurodallenges,
we continue to emphasize operational excellencdraugst in the training programs which differendiaur brand
exhibiting expertise in fitness, group exercise amdll group training. By making sustainable immments to our
membership experience, we expect to return toipesibmparable revenue growth as we begin to befnefn our
initiatives.

Provide state-of-the-art fitness equipment andisess To help members develop and maintain a healthy
lifestyle, train for athletic events or lose weigbach of our clubs has a large array of cardiadaseachines and
resistance training equipment and free weightsrdts@ equipment is arranged to allow for easy mamrfrom
machine to machine, facilitating a convenient affidient workout. Equipment in these areas is agezhin long
parallel rows that are clearly labeled by musctaugr which allows members to conveniently custonttisér
exercise programs and reduce downtime during Whaikouts. We have technicians who service and ra@irgur
equipment on a timely basis. In addition, we hasespnal viewing television screens on most pietes o
cardiovascular equipment and have plans to exgenteatures of these screens in 2010. Most clubs between
one and three studios used for exercise class#sding at least one large studio used for mostigexercise
classes, a cycling studio and a mind and body atusiéd for yoga and Pilates classes. We offerga haariety of
group fitness classes at each club and these slgeserally are at no additional cost to our mesibene volume
and variety of activities at each club allow eaammber to enjoy the club, whether customizing tbein workout o
participating in group activities and classes.
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Grow ancillary and other non-membership revenu&¥e intend to grow our ancillary and other non-
membership revenues through a continued focusaeasing the additional value-added services teginovide to
our members as well as capitalizing on the oppdiasifor other non-membership revenues such atuin-
advertising and retail sales. Non-membership resemave increased from $66.8 million, or 17.2%evEnues for
the year ended December 31, 2005, to $86.2 miltor,7.8% of revenues for the year ended Decembe2@®9.
We intend to continue to enhance and expand thremurange of programs and quality of value-addgdises that
we offer to our members, such as personal and gralb training. These sources of ancillary ane@otion-
membership revenues generate incremental profitsminimal capital investment and assist in attrecand
retaining members.

Realize benefits from maturation of recently operiatls. From January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2009, we
opened 13 clubs. Based on our experience, a néwtehas to achieve significant increases in reveniueing its
first three years of operation as the number of bessigrows. Because there is relatively little @msental cost
associated with such increasing revenues, thergjisater proportionate increase in profitabiMge believe that th
revenues and profitability of this group of 13 duhill improve as the clubs reach maturity.

Marketing

Our marketing strategy primarily focuses on growang membership base, increasing profitability grea
customer basis and building and sustaining branéyedn pursuit of these objectives, we have tbmbined
advantages, relative to many of our competitorgxidting high levels of brand awareness and peefsr, leading
market positions and the ability to derive econ@mitscale from a regional multi-club platform andentralized
marketing function. We are organized to enableectaslaboration between our marketing, sales, $grend
operations staff, all under the direction of ouie€iOperating Officer. This helps align efforts anal operational
objectives and new product development while enguai primary focus on the member experience.

Brand awareness and preference is aided by a nuhbstors, including the visibility of multipleetail
locations and associated signage across each regmembership base of 486,000 as of December088, #2vho
generate word-of-mouth and referrals, a 36-yearatjpey history and continual advertising investmedt of these
factors provide a strong foundation for our ongaimarketing and advertising efforts.

Our regional concentration and clustering strategywtes economies of scale in our marketing andréiding
investments which increase their overall efficieacy effectiveness. Clustering enables broadehraad higher
frequency for regional advertising campaigns tipicilly include a mix of traditional media includj radio,
newspapers, magazines, out-of-home (especiallgitrhased) and some television and geo-targeted and
behaviorally targeted digital media, such as pa#tch, email blasts, online banners and video,edisas other
emerging new media vehicles. These broader mafiaatseare bolstered by local marketing plans awdits, whict
include direct mail, local sponsorships and co-gtiams, community relations and outreach and stexet lead
generation activities. Optimization of marketingxrifirough measurement and modeling of the effeatigs of
various media investments and formats continuéeta priority.

We are positioned in the upper-value segment ohéadth club market and our advertising and manketi
communications support and reinforce our positiprednsistently conveying high quality, market-lesagli
convenience and a relevant and differentiated polifiering. In contrast to most health club adisémg, we
generally forego depicting images of hard bodiasilities and gym equipment. Instead, we favor ragisg) focuse
on linking the current promotional offering to denant message supporting the widely accepted anttrous
benefits of exercise. We believe this approactassig communicated and understood and makes oduptanore
approachable for all consumers regardless of Heilth club experience.

Promotional marketing campaigns will typically fegt opportunities to participate in a variety ofueaadded
services such as personal training, small groupitrgand youth centered sports activities. We aisy offer
reduced joining fees to encourage enrollment. Aalilly, we frequently sponsor member referral moe
programs and other types of member appreciatiaquisition activities and internal promotions to anbe loyalty
and to encourage more members to take advantame ahcillary services.
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We also engage in public relations, sponsorshipgssgecial events to promote our brand image acnoss
network, regionally and in our local communitiese Wave created custom programming garnering maetéieest,
such as Pilates Together and Catwalk Confidencengrathers. We have been featured in national loasid
television shows, such as Regis and Kelly, Goodrity America, Entertainment Tonight, and the CB8\Ea
Show; major newspapers, such as New York Timeshilfg®n Post, Boston Globe, and the Wall Streetriy
and seen in magazines, such as: Fitness, SelffapeSAdditionally, in 2009, we were named “BestrEpr
People on the Go” as part of Improper Bostonianamag’s “Boston’s Best” issue and “Best Health Clap the
Washington Post Express.

In addition, we participate in and sponsor evemisach of our regions. We are a five-time spon§the
JPMorgan Chase Corporate Challenge Series runmang & both the New York and Boston metropolitagions.
In 2009, this popular annual event attracted net®IP00 participants in New York and 14,000 in BosBoston
Sports Clubs is also a two-time sponsor of thesTL8K for Women, an event that attracted 7,400 &gitqps in
2009. New York Sports Clubs’ sponsorship of theumhTD Bank Five Boro Bike Tour helped to turn aut Sl
team of nearly 650 members and employees — aligidi logo jerseys — who completed the 42-mile atteng
with 37,000 other cyclists.

Our association with professional sports teams edmnces our brands and their status in the coftiegiim
which we operate. Boston Sports Clubs is the @fficealth club of the Boston Red Sox and Washin§oorts
Clubs has the same designation with the Washing#iionals baseball team, as well as an associafithrthe
Washington Redskins Cheerleaders. The basebalssinps include interactive in-stadium promotiadsch
energize the fans during home games. Additionalbwy York Sports Clubs is the official health cluftloe NY Jets
Flight Crew. This sponsorship includes programniimgur clubs with appearances by the Flight Creswyvall as,
signage in Giants stadium.

Our philosophy of giving back to our communitieslirdes sponsoring company-wide and local charitable
efforts. Developed in 2009 and launched in earhuday 2010, we partnered with the City of New Yarld the Fir¢
Department of New York (FDNY) to develop and defieasier access to cardiopulmonary resuscitatioRPR”)
training. Called “CPR to Go”, the graduates of #ilsminute class headed by FDNY EMS trainers, béttome
certified and therefore will be able to assistioyiding CPR. Our club management teams and stafalzo
encouraged to organize and engage in charitalietes. Some recent events benefited organizatsuch as the
Michael J Fox Foundation for Parkinson’s, ToweHojpe, Family Research Foundation, Muscular Dystyoph
Association, American Cancer Society, the MuscDigstrophy Association, Susan G. Komen Race foiChee,
Avon Walk for Breast Cancer, NYCares, Toys for Taswell as many smaller local and specific clegriincluding
Augie’s Quest, a fund raising effort named aftéealth and fitness club pioneer stricken with Amgphic Lateral
Sclerosis commonly referred to as Lou Gehrig’s Bése

In 2009, we revamped our principal web site, wwwspoyrtsclubs.comiVe improved the site to facilitate its
navigation, functionality and usability and to enba the member experience. The site provides irdtbom about
club locations, program offerings, exercise clatedules and sales promotions. The web site disasabur
members to give us direct feedback about our sefeiels and enables prospective members to sidorugpaid
two-week trial membership in our clubs. Prospecthambers can also initiate their membership eneiinprocess
using our web site. In addition, job seekers cagirbthe employment application process througtstteeand
investors can access financial information anduesss. Similar enhancements were made to our anchlusiness
sites, such as Sports Clubs for Kids and therglares to improve access to personal training in&tiom on our we
site. Additionally, we are planning for the additiof community functions such as social networksgling features
and discussion boards.

Sales

We sell our memberships through three channetseatiub level, through our corporate and groupssal
division or online through our web site. We empépproximately 360 “in-club” membership consultants are
responsible for new membership sales in and artheiddesignated club locations. Each club genetalbk betwee
two and four consultants. These consultants rapttly to the club general manager, who in tumparts to a
district manager. We provide additional incentiaséd compensation in the form of commissions andides,
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contingent upon individual, club and company-wideoiment goals. Membership consultants must swsfatg
complete a two-month, in-house training progranodigh which they learn our sales strategy. In makisgles
presentation, membership consultants attempt tolmthe needs to each prospective member by empisit the
aspects of our clubs’ selection of equipment, eassd multi-recreational offerings, if availalded the quality of
our staff.

In mid-December 2008, we launched the selling dividual memberships online for our standard mersitier
types. This sales channel links directly to oungipal web site and an existing web site, whictai®red to selling
memberships for pre-established corporate and goograms. The online sales channel offers a hégvak of
convenience for customers who know and trust camdiand do not require up-front interaction witm@mbership
consultant to make their decision. In additionlisglonline significantly reduces our cost of saembers who
joined online accounted for approximately 4.4% @fmierships sold in 200

Our corporate and group sales division consistgppfoximately 20 full-time employees located thiomgt our
markets, who concentrate on building long-termti@teships with local and regional companies andgdagroups.
Corporate and group members accounted for approgiynd3% of our total membership base as of Decerdbge
2009. We offer numerous programs to meet our catpand group clients’ needs including an onlinekment
program as well as a fully operational call cefiderenrollment. We believe this focus on relatidpgbuilding,
providing the corporate customer with options feradiment and our clustering strategy will contirtodead to new
group participation in the future. Corporate anougrsales are typically sold at a discount to ¢tamdard rates.
Corporations frequently subsidize the costs of menstiips provided to their employees.

In 2010, we will emphasize new products and enhdpeoechasing flexibility for our corporate and gpou
partners and new types of membership packages asuttte senior and couples memberships added setioad
half of 2009.

We believe that clustering clubs allows us to selmberships based upon the opportunity for mentbers
utilize multiple club locations near their workpéaand their home. As of December 31, 2009, outiagisnembers
were enrolled under three principal types of mersthies:

» The Passport Membership is our higher priced meshiigand entitles members to use any of our clubs i
any region at any time. The current list price abanmit Passport Membership is $96 per month, ety
corporate and group members. A majority of our ocaite and group memberships are sold as Passport
Memberships and averaged approximately $65 perlrfonimemberships sold in the year ended
December 31, 2009. This membership, including ouparate and group members, was held by
approximately 30.6% of our members as of Decembe2B09. In addition, we have a Passport Premium
Membership at two select clubs, which includeseatgr array of member services and facilitiesriaep
ranging from $105 to $116 per mon

» The Regional Passport Membership is our mid-privedhbership and entitles members to use any of our
clubs within one of our four regions at any timéeTcurrent list price of a commit Regional Passport
Membership ranges from $72 to $86 per month, besgtie market area of enrollment. We began seilirg
Regional Passport Membership in the fourth quat@008 and it was held by approximately 9.4% af ou
members as of December 31, 20

« The Gold Membership enables members to use a gpelib at any time and any of our clubs during off
peak times. The current list price of a commit Gdiembership ranges from $39 to $79 per month based
club specific facilities and services, the markeiaof enrollment and length of the membership reant
Gold members can also elect to pay a per visibf&¥.50 to use non-home clubs during peak houris T
membership was held by approximately 60.0% of oemivers as of December 31, 20

We have also developed special membership paclfagksy segments of our consumer and member base.
Examples of such specialized memberships are thesigned for senior citizens, TSI alumni, studentsouples
memberships. We periodically emphasize these dpstianembership packages in accordance with ouketiag
and sales strategic plan.
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By operating a network of clubs in a concentratedggaphic area, the value of our memberships iareggd b
our ability to offer members access to any of dubg in a specific geographic area through the &ediPassport
Membership or access to our clubs in all geograpFgons through a Passport Membership. These nrshipe
plans provide the convenience of having fithesb<lnear a member’s workplace and home. Approxiyétedo of
our members have the Regional Passport or Paddparbership and because these memberships offeddiroa
privileges and greater convenience, they typicgdlgerate higher monthly dues than single club meshiges.
Regional clustering also allows us to provide saldeicilities within a local area, such as swimmihgsketball,
children’s programs, tennis and squash, withowdroffy them at every location. In the year endedeDdxer 31,
2009, 36% of all club usage was by members visitings other than their home clubs.

We offer both “month-to-month” and “commit” membeig payment plans. Month-to-monthemberships mz
be cancelled by our members at any time with 3G d@yice. Under the commit model, new members cdnaora
one- or two-year membership. These membershipgraxed at a moderate discount to the
month-to-month membership. In 2009, 85% of our esvirolled members opted for a commit memberstoprd
from 97% in 2008. We decreased the price gap bettreecommit membership and the month-to- month
membership in 2009 as we saw the month-to-monthlmeeship gain popularity due to its flexibility intiane of
decreased consumer confidence. As of Decembel088, approximately 14% of our members had origthatede
a month-to-month non-commit membership and 86%(dnaghated under a commit membership. When a meshber
commit period is over, they retain their memberss@m month-to-month member until they choose toelaAs of
December 31, 2009, approximately 67% of our totahthers were on a month-to-moridisis. We believe memb
prefer to have the flexibility to choose betweemauitting for one or two years or to join under the
month-to-month non-commit membership.

In joining a club, a new member signs a memberafipement that typically obligates the member {ogpa
onetime joining fee, if applicable, and monthly duesam ongoing basis. Monthly electronic funds transér EFT
of individual membership dues on a per-member haslading the effect of promotions and membershigih
reduced dues averaged approximately $64 and $6®qath for the years ended December 31, 2009 ad8, 20
respectively. Throughout 2009, we ran various satemotions for new members to receive free moaths
membership and sold discounted membership typelsidimg our couples and friends and family membigsin
July and August 2009 we also decreased dues fagaldrmemberships approximately five to ten dolfaes month
at a select 24 clubs. As a result, per-member geattaes decreased in 2009. Joining fees colleoteuefv EFT
members averaged approximately $20 per membenéoyeaar ended December 31, 2009 compared to $45 per
member for the year ended December 31, 2008. Ithtleequarter of 2008, we combined the one-tinecpssing
and initiation fees. We promoted new membershipgisgounting these fees in 2008 and further distogrthese
fees in 2009. We collect approximately 96.0% ofadinthly membership dues through EFT and EFT meshiger
revenue constituted approximately 76.0% of constdid revenue for the year ended December 31, 2009.
Substantially all other membership dues are pafdlinn advance. Our membership agreements califonthly
dues to be collected by EFT based on credit caldhok account debit authorization contained inafpeement.
During the first week of each month, we receiveER§ dues for that month after the payments at@iad by a
third-party EFT processor. Discrepancies and ingefit funds incidents are researched and resdiyealr in-
house account services department. We typicallease our existing member dues annually by betdéeand 39
on average, in line with increases in the cosivirfig. Due to the ongoing economic recession aedrtpact on
consumer spending, in 2009 the total membership thoeease was applied to less than 10.0% of oanbeeship
base resulting in an overall dues increase ofthess 1%.

Usage

Our suburban clubs are generally open 5:00 AM t6@®M on weekdays and 7:00 AM to 8:00 PM on
weekends while our urban clubs are generally op@d AM to 11:00 PM on weekdays and 8:00 AM to 98 on
weekends. Where member demand is high, certairs eltbopen 24 hours. We generally consider our psage
times to be between 6:00 AM and 8:30 AM and 4:004&d 8:30 PM on weekdays. Our hours of businesbase
on usage patterns at each individual club. Out titd usage was 30.3 million and 28.0 million memiisits for
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, rasgecepresenting an 8.2% increase in total clsage year
over year. Usage per member has increased appr@hn®5% in the year ended December 31, 2009 coedpa
2008. In the year-ended December 31, 2009, appairign36% of total usage or club visits was to merabnon-
home clubs.
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Non-Membership Revenue

Over the past five years, we have expanded thé ¢damncillary club services provided to our mensher
Non-membership club revenue has increased by 29.08b 2@05 to 2009 and has increased as a percentagialof
revenue from 17.2% in 2005 to 17.8% in 2009, reaghis high as 18.2% in both years ended Decembh@08Y
and 2008. Personal training revenue in particudarincreased 34.8% over this five year period aockased as a
percentage of total revenue from 10.9% in 20051tG% in 2009. In addition, we offer Sports ClubsHKads and
Small Group Training (both additional fee for seevprograms) at select clubs. Consumer confidemdeansumer
spending deteriorated in the second half of 20@Btaroughout 2009 resulting in a non-membershigmnee
decrease in these periods.

The table below presents non-membership revenupaoemts as a percentage of total revenue for thesye
ended December 31, 2005 through 2009.

For the Years Ended December 31, (in $000

2009 % 2008 % 2007 % 2006 % 2005 %
Total revenue $485,39: 100.(% $506,70¢ 100.(% $472,91' 100.(% $433,08( 100.(% $388,55¢ 100.(%
Non-Membership Revenue:
Personal training revent 56,97 11.7%  61,75: 12.2% 56,10¢ 11.9% 49,51 11.46 42,277 10.9%
Other ancillary club revent 24,58¢ 51%  24,32¢ 4.8%  24,24% 51% 22,86 5.3%  20,13¢ 5.2%
Fees and Other reven 4,661 1.C% 6,031 1.2% 5,61¢ 1.2% 4,94: 1.2% 4,41% 1.1%
Total nor-membership revent $ 86,227 17.8% $ 92,11: 18.2% $ 85,96¢ 18.2% $ 77,31t 17.9% $ 66,82¢ 17.2%

Club Format and Locations

Our clubs are typically located in middle- or upjfrgrome residential, commercial, urban and suburban
neighborhoods within major metropolitan areas #natcapable of supporting the development of aelws clubs.
Our clubs generally have high visibility and arsiaaccessible. In the New York metropolitan, Rost
Washington, D.C. and Philadelphia markets, we ltagated clusters of clubs in urban areas and tbeimuter
suburbs aligned with our operating strategy ofrrfifg our target members the convenience of multgpdations
close to where they live and work, reciprocal useilpges and standardized facilities and services.

Approximately 69% of the clubs we operate are fiaenly clubs and the remaining clubs are multi-
recreational. Our fitness-only clubs generally mimgsize from 15,000 to 25,000 square feet andagee
approximately 20,000 square feet. Our multi-re¢oea clubs generally range in size from 25,000esgueet to
65,000 square feet, with one club being 200,00@sgfeet. The average multi-recreational club isize
approximately 40,000 square feet. Membership fohedub generally ranges from 2,000 to 4,500 memhber
maturity.

We have experienced overall growth over the pastyears primarily through developing and openiag n
club locations that we have constructed, despéadkuction in club openings in 2009. In additioe, have acquire
existing, privately owned single and multi-club imesses. From January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2@09,
acquired four existing clubs, constructed 42 navbsland closed or relocated 22 clubs to increastotal clubs
under operation from 137 to 161. For the year ergkscember 31, 2009, we opened four new clubs askdlor
relocated nine clubs, decreasing our total clultkeunperation from 166 to 161, enabling us to inaprthe quality
and brand strength of the overall portfolio. Thebsl we closed were those that were operating at lss and
collectively had little or no operating cash flohhe average remaining lease term of the nine altiten closed wa
2.3 years and three of the clubs had less thaiyesreremaining. In 2010, we plan to upgrade cedéiur existing
clubs. We have signed leases for two clubs thatlae to open in 2011.

We engage in detailed site analyses and selectamegses based, in part, upon information provinjedur
development software, to identify potential targetas for additional clubs. Target areas are ifietitbased upon
population demographics, psychographics, traffit @ammuting patterns, availability of sites and petitive
market information. We currently have two lease notments and have identified over 170 target ameaghich
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we may add clubs under our New York Sports Clulost& Sports Clubs, Washington Sports Clubs oraBaiphic
Sports Clubs brand names. In addition, we havetifikshfurther growth opportunities in secondaryrkeds located
near our existing markets. In the future, we mayl@e expansion opportunities in other markethaWnited
States that share similar demographic charactistithose in which we currently operate.

Our facilities include a mix of state-of-the-arrd@mvascular equipment, including AMT ellipticals,
E Spinners & Arc Trainers along with bikes, stegpénreadmills and elliptical motion machines; fregight and
strength equipment, including Cybex, Nautilus, Trexksym, Strive, Precor, Star Trac and Hammer Streng
equipment; group exercise and cycling studiosgtitertainment system network; locker rooms, inclgdihower
facilities, towel service and other amenities, sastsaunas, babysitting, and a pro-shop. Eachraflalos is
equipped with automated external defibrillators D& for use in cardiac arrest emergencies. Perd@iaing
services are offered at all locations for an adddi charge. At certain locations, additional fitieis are also offere:
including swimming pools and racquet and baskettzalits. Also, we have fee-based programming atyroéour
clubs, including Small Group Training, children®grams, and other programs targeting adult members

We also offer our Xpressline strength workout ababur clubs. Xpressline is an eight-station kdiady circui
workout designed to be used in 22 minutes anddoramodate all fithess levels. This service is pedifor free to
our members.

We have over 8,400 personal entertainment unitallad in our clubs. The units are typically mouht or
near individual pieces of cardiovascular equipnaatt are equipped with a flat-panel color screendimvision
viewing. We believe our members prefer the flextipilo view and listen to the programs of their icigoduring theil
cardiovascular workout. The entertainment systetwaork also broadcasts our own personalized musieovi
channel that provides us with a direct means o&gbimg products and services to our memberstsg.ba

In the near future we intend to expand the featafélse personal viewing screens at select clultis asnew
entertainment system network. These additionalfeatinclude on demand television and music, iPtuabine
compatibility and a club information channel. We atanning to begin the roll-out of this systenour Manhattan
clubs in 2010.

Club Services and Operations

Our clubs are structured to provide an enhancedbeesxperience through effective execution of our
operating plan. Our club and support team memberthe key to delivering a valued member experiemzbour
operations are organized to maximize their ovexi@dictiveness. Our club operations include:

Management. We believe that our success is largely depenaletiie selection and development of our team
members. Our management structure is designedke #ie right balance between consistent executfon
operational excellence and nurturing a leader’siciyp for entrepreneurial decision making. Our iéag and
development system allows for all club positionsdceive training on the key elements of their edevell as
development training for growth. We believe a cdaticomponent to our growth is our ability to leage internally
developed management talent.

Our business is divided into regional operatingdinvith each reporting to a regional vice presideeporting
to the regional vice presidents are regionally ddsactional support teams as well as district ng@nswho are
responsible for executing the Company’s operatiag within a group of clubs. Reporting to the ddtmanagers
are the individual club general managers who aspaesible for the day-to-day management of eadh étieach
level of responsibility, compensation is structutedcent driving the member experience and pabfiity.

Functional Support. Functional teams provide technical expertise amport designed to drive the member
experience and revenue growth in specific areasintlubs’ services, including sales and marketiitigess and
ancillary programming, learning and developmenwal as facility management and member service.

Regional marketing provides locally relevant exiserto support the region in building brand awassrand
driving membership sales. Team members work closglyregional leadership and local club managenebuild
and consistently execute sales, brand awarenessoamaunity outreach programming across each region.
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Driving excellence in fitness and ancillary prograimg is critical to our success. All of our fithedabs offer
one-on-one personal training, which is sold in Erggssion and multi-session packages. Our fitigagns are
trained to provide superior fitness solutions tdrads member needs. We believe the qualificatibtisegpersonal
training staff helps ensure that members rece@naistent level of quality service throughout olubs and that o
personal training programs provide valuable guigancour members and a significant source of inereal
revenue for us. Our personal trainers are groupgatdfessional certification and advanced speciadiycation. A
trainer’s compensation is based on their profes¢idasignation and the number of training sesdioeyg perform.
We believe that members who participate in perstaaling programs typically have a longer membigréife.

Our commitment to providing a quality exercise aigrece to our members extends beyond just personal
training and includes group exercise programmingy. i@structors teach a variety of classes includaggobics,
cycling, strength conditioning, boxing, yoga, Riaiand step aerobics classes. Instructors regorigh local club
management and are further supported by regionadtdirs responsible for ensuring consistency issctantent,
scheduling, training and instruction. We also pdevsmall group training offerings to our memberiiclv are fee-
based programs that have smaller groups and provide focused and typically more advanced clagase
examples of these offerings include Pilates, box@myps and cycling camps.

In addition to group exercise, we also offer aetyrof ancillary programming for children under @ports
Clubs for Kids brand. As of December 31, 2009, pGtubs for Kids was being offered in 31 locatidm®ughout
our New York Sports Clubs, Boston Sports Clubs Rhifadelphia Sports Clubs regions. Our Sports Cfab&ids
programming positions our multécreational clubs as family clubs, which we badigvovides us with a competiti
advantage. Depending upon the facilities availablke location, Sports Clubs for Kids programming teclude
traditional youth offerings such as day camps, tspcamps, swim lessons, hockey and soccer leagyiesiastics,
dance and birthday parties. It also can includetspeerformance-based programming such as ourelgmigram,
which specializes in training young athletes agglteéo 17 years of age to improve their athlekitis and increase
their speed, agility and strength and non-competitiearn-to-play” sports programs.

Functional and leadership skill development plagsitécal role in enabling our success. Team member
development occurs at both the club level and énctassroom. Managers play a vital role in the bigraent of
their teams and partner closely with our learning development team to advance team member skiilifore
growth. Our learning programs are consistentlygtesi and focused on building strong functional leadership
skills across the organization. This also inclusigscialized fitness and group exercise trainingicuum.

Our facilities and equipment management teams edlidted to ensuring our clubs and fitness equipmauen
operating at the highest standard of performancedomembers. Local teams are deployed to provide
on-site support to clubs as needed.

Our club support and member services groups agtcasrdinating point for all departments, suppa@rtin
excellence in program execution and ensuring ctergiy of policies and procedures across the eatganization
that support the member experience.

Employee Compensation and Benefits

We provide performance-based incentives to our gamant. Senior management compensation, for example
is tied to our overall performance. Departmentegctors, district managers and general manageraatdaave
bonuses tied to financial and member retentioretargNVe offer our employees various benefits inolgdhealth,
dental and disability insurance; pre-tax healthcemenmuting and dependent care accounts; and &48la0. We
believe the availability of employee benefits po®s us with a strategic advantage in attractingrataining quality
managers, program instructors and professionabpatdrainers and that this strategic advantagermtranslates
into a more consistent and higher-quality workogtezience for those members who utilize such sesvic

Centralized Information Systems

We use an integrated information system to sell beships, bill our members, track and analyze saies
membership statistics, the frequency and timingember workouts, cross-club utilization, membes, lifalue-
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added services and demographic profiles by memidech enables us to develop targeted direct margeti
programs and to modify our broadcast and print dibieg to improve consumer response. This systsmassists
us in evaluating staffing needs and program oféevinin addition, we rely on certain data gatheredugh our
information systems to assist in the identificatidmew markets for clubs and site selection withiose markets.

Information System Developments

We recognize the value of enhancing and extendiegises of information technology in virtually everea o
our business. Our information technology strateggligned to best support our business strategyparhting
plans. We maintain an ongoing comprehensive meliryprogram to replace or upgrade key systemscand t
optimize their performance.

We currently utilize a club management systemiti@drporates functionality for member services,tcact
management, electronic billing, point of sale, sttHimg personal training resources and reservatibhis club
management system extends support for new budimestionalities and new club models and integratits other
applications. We have an application utilizing Imesis intelligence tools and data warehousing chiiebienabling
enhanced managerial and analytical reporting @ssaihd operations.

In 2008, we entered into an agreement with AjilafuBons, a division of Ajilon Professional Staffin.LC
(“Ajilon™), to develop a new enterprise managemygtem for us, which we refer to as our Global Mgmaent
System (“GIMS”). We expected to begin to deploy @ 2009. In September 2009, we commenced litgati
against Ajilon alleging, among other things, breatbontract. See Item 3 kegal Proceedings. Based on the st
of the litigation and a partial assessment of tlogept, we determined that it was not probable thatCompany
would continue to develop the system along theslihat we originally anticipated. As a result, @@mpany has
recognized an impairment charge of $10.2 milliomaBecember 31, 2009. We expect to use our egigirerpris
management enterprise system for a period of ohe@dyears while we explore other options.

In 2007, we implemented a human resources managaysiem and merged it with an existing timekeeping
system which was integrated with payroll and retéaancial applications for comprehensive autaooraof
compensation processing and management for alleymees. This system has the capability of expandimgalent
management, recruiting and performance managemecggses and will be leveraged as we align it authnew
learning and development strategy to train our thaimm members. The human resources managememsyiite/s
us to effectively and efficiently serve our teammbers by providing meaningful information to sugpgbeir
individual growth and development.

Our web site utilizes new architectures that alfonflexibility in product offerings, online corpate and group
sales, promotion and contest presentations, mesatfeservice, surveying and enhanced member optidnes
internet capabilities were recently expanded ttunhe more member-focused features. In 2008, weclzaoh
additional web capabilities for selling our suifentemberships for all clubs. We have built an inétto provide a
portal for the various browser-based applicatidvas tve utilize internally. Our intranet featureppart corporate
communications, human resources programs andrtgaiti 2009, we launched a re-design of our wedy sitaking
it easier for our members to navigate through dadures.

We continuously implement infrastructure changeasdmommodate growth, provide network redundanciet
manage telecommunications and data costs, inceffisiencies in operations and improve managemeéati o
components of our technical architecture, includiiggster recovery. The disaster recovery faailithzes
replication tools to provide fail-over capabilities supporting our critical club operations andngany
communications. Since 2007, we have used advaonoésifor enhanced management and monitoring of our
infrastructure for compliance and improved security

Intellectual Property

We have registered various trademarks and servackawith the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office,
including, NEW YORK SPORTS CLUBS and NYSC, WASHINGTON SPORTS CLUBS and WSC,
BOSTON SPORTS CLUBS and BSG PHILADELPHIA SPORTS CLUBS and PSC,
COMPANIESGETFIT.COM, SPORTS CLUBS FOR KIDS, “ BETTER.”, andTOWN SPORTS
INTERNATIONAL. We
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continue to register other trademarks and serviagksn We believe that our rights to these propedie adequately
protected.

Competition

The fitness club industry is highly competitive azahtinues to become more competitive. The numbbeailtt
clubs in the U.S. has increased from 26,830 in 20(D,022 in 2008, based on the most recent irdtion
available. In each of the markets in which we ofgenae compete with other fitness clubs, physitaéss and
recreational facilities.

We consider the following groups to be our primepynpetitors in the health and fitness industry:

< commercial, multi-recreational and fitness-onlyiolaincluding Equinox Holdings, Inc., Lifetime Réss,
Inc., Crunch, New York Health and Racquet, LA Fiménternational LLC, 24 Hour Fitness Worldwides.|
Bally Total Fitness Holding Corporation, Gold’s Gynternational, Inc., Retro Fithess, Snap Fithess a
Planet Fitness

» the YMCA and similar na-profit organizations

 physical fitness and recreational facilities estdi@d by local governments, hospitals and busiise
« exercise and small fithess clubs and stuc

 racquet, tennis and other athletic clu

* amenity gyms in apartments and condominiu

« weigh-reducing salons

« country clubs; an

» the hom-use fitness equipment indust

The principal methods of competition include pricend ease of payment, required level of members’
contractual commitment, level and quality of seegictraining and quality of supervisory staff, sirgl layout of
facility and convenience of location with respexttcess to transportation and pedestrian traffic.

We consider our service offerings to be in the naidge of the value/service proposition and desigoegpeal
to a large portion of the population who utilizanéiss facilities. The number of competitor cluket thffer lower
pricing and a lower level of service has been gngwn our markets recently. These clubs have andaoatinue to
attract members away from both our fitness-onlypsland our multi-recreational clubs, particularythis
recessionary consumer environment.

We also face competition from club operators offgrcomparable or higher pricing with higher levafs
service. The trend to larger outer-suburban fafitihess centers, in areas where suitable realesistamore likely to
be available, could also compete effectively agains suburban formats.

Competitive Position Measured by Number of Clubs

Number of
Market _Clubs Position
Boston metropolital 25 Leading owner and operat
New York metropolitar 10¢  Leading owner and operat
Philadelphia metropolita 6 #5 owner and operator, tied for #1 in urban ce
Washington, D.C. metropolite 18 # 2 owner and operator, leader in urban ce
Switzerland 3  Local owner and operator on

We also compete with other entertainment and rbteinesses for the discretionary income in owetar
demographics. There can be no assurance that Weendble to compete effectively in the futurehie markets in
which we operate. Competitors, who may include camigs that are larger and have greater resouraputh) may
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enter these markets to our detriment. These cotiyeetionditions may limit our ability to increasaet without a
material loss in membership, attract new membedsa#tnact and retain qualified personnel. Additibna
consolidation in the fitness club industry coulduk in increased competition among participangstipularly large
multi-facility operators that are able to compededttractive acquisition candidates and/or newalystructed club
locations. This increased competition could inceemsr costs associated with expansion through &aghisitions
and for real estate availability for newly constagtclub locations.

We believe that our market leadership, experienckeoperating efficiencies enable us to providecthresumer
with a superior product in terms of conveniencalify service and affordability. We believe thag¢té are barriers
to entry in our metropolitan areas, including riesitre zoning laws, lengthy permit processes asti@tage of
appropriate real estate, which could discourageangge competitor from attempting to open a chdialabs in
these markets. However, such a competitor couler ¢éneése markets more easily through one, or assefj
acquisitions. These barriers of entry are signifiéga our four metropolitan regions, however they as challenging
in our surrounding suburban locations.

Government Regulation

Our operations and business practices are subjéetderal, state and local government regulatigdhénvariou
jurisdictions in which our clubs are located, irdihg (1) general rules and regulations of the FaldBrade
Commission, state and local consumer protection@gs and state statutes that prescribe certaimsfand
provisions of membership contracts and that gottegradvertising, sale, financing and collectiorsawch
memberships and (2) state and local health regulsti

Statutes and regulations affecting the fithesssirgithave been enacted in jurisdictions in whichcamduct
business and other states into which we may exjatie future have adopted or may adopt similaislagon.
Typically, these statutes and regulations presandrtain forms and provisions of membership comsraafford
members the right to cancel the contract withipectied time period after signing or in certainccimstances, such
as for medical reasons or relocation to a certatadce from the nearest club, require an escrofwrafs received
from pre-opening sales or the posting of a bonproof of financial responsibility and may establishximum
prices for membership contracts and limitationgrenterm of contracts. The specific proceduresraadons for
cancellation vary due to differing laws in the resiive jurisdictions, but in each instance, theceding member is
entitled to a refund of unused prepaid amounts.tiviexently, several states have proposed legislatiat would
prohibit the automatic rollover of membership oacmember’s commitment period expires. In additiva,are
subject to numerous other types of federal ane séagulations governing the sale of membershipss@ttaws and
regulations are subject to varying interpretatiopg number of state and federal enforcement agsmeid courts.
We maintain internal review procedures in ordecdmply with these requirements and believe thataativities ar
in substantial compliance with all applicable stesiirules and decisions.

The tax treatment of membership dues varies bg.statrecent years, some states in which we opbeate
passed legislation to require sales tax to be aeltton membership dues and/or personal trainisgjaes. These
taxes have the effect of increasing the paymentsubynembers, which could impede our ability tosat new
members or induce members to cancel their memigershi

Changes in any statutes, rules or regulations doatvg a material adverse effect on our financiabldmn and
results of operations.

Employees

At December 31, 2009, we had approximately 8,50pleyees, of whom approximately 2,100 were employed
full-time. Approximately 375 of those employees eeorporate and other club support personnel. Waetra
party to any collective bargaining agreement with @mployees. We have never experienced any signifiabor
shortages or had any difficulty in obtaining addquaplacements for departing employees. We consigte
relations with our employees to be good.
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Available Information

We make available through our web sitevatw.mysportsclubs.coim the “Investor Relations — SEC Filings”
section, free of charge, all reports and amendnterttsose reports filed or furnished pursuant toti®a 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedr(the “Exchange Act”gs soon as reasonably practicable
we electronically file such material with, or fushiit to, the SEC. Occasionally, we may use our sibas a
channel of distribution of material company infotioa. Financial and other material information nefjag the
Company is routinely posted on and accessibletpt/fitvestor.mysportsclubs.conin addition, you may
automatically receive email alerts and other infation about us by enrolling your email by visititig
“E-mail Alerts” section at http://investor.myspariisbs.com/.

The foregoing information regarding our website @adontent is for convenience only. The contdriw
website is not deemed to be incorporated by refer@mto this report nor should it be deemed to Haeen filed witt
the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risks digsat below and all other information in this AnniRéport on
Form 1(-K. The risks and uncertainties described belowrarethe only ones that we face. Additional riskd a
uncertainties not presently known to us or thattwerently deem immaterial may also impair our besis and
operations. If any of the following risks actuatlgcur, our business, financial condition, cash 8aw results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business
We may be unable to attract and retain members, aihiould have a negative effect on our business.

The performance of our clubs is dependent on ollityatw attract and retain members and we mayhwot
successful in these efforts. Most of our membensczancel their club membership at any time undeace
circumstances. In addition, there are numerousfacthat have in the past and could in the futeael ito a decline
membership levels at established clubs or thatdcprgvent us from increasing our membership at nelubs,
including a decline in our ability to deliver quglservice at a competitive cost, the presencdrettand indirect
competition in the areas in which the clubs arated, the public’s interest in sports and fitndabsand general
economic conditions.

Current negative economic conditions, includingéased unemployment levels, have resulted in sogmif
recessionary pressures and further declines inuco@isconfidence and economic growth. These comditiave an
could further lead to reduced consumer spendirigarforeseeable future. In the current depressedoscic and
consumer environment, consumers and businessepastone spending in response to tighter credijatinge
financial news and/or declines in income or asakies, which could have a material negative effedhe demand
for our services and products and such declinemahd may continue as the current recessionargcpeontinues
and disposable income declines. Other factorscinald influence demand include increases in fudl@her energ
costs, conditions in the residential real estateranrtgage markets, labor and healthcare costesado credit,
consumer confidence and other macroeconomic faaftesting consumer spending behavior. The cumdentnturn
and uncertain outlook in the global economy mayemialty adversely affect our business and our reesrand
profits. As a result of these factors, memberséiglls might not be adequate to maintain our opaTatat current
levels or permit the expansion of our operations.

In addition, to the extent our corporate clients adversely affected by negative economic condititmey may
decide, as part of expense reduction strategiesirtail or cancel club membership benefits proditietheir
respective employees. Any reductions in corporaebrerships may lead to membership cancellatiomgeasan nc
assure that employees of corporate customers albge to continue their memberships without empleybsidies
A decline in membership levels may have a matadakrse effect on our business, financial conditiesults of
operations or cash flows. We ended 2009 with 24fé@@r members compared to the end of 2008, ardetiiat we
attribute, in large part, to negative economic é¢tmas during the year.
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Low consumer confidence levels and decreased spendould negatively impact our financial positiomd
result in further club closures and fixed asset agdodwill impairments.

In the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008losedcnine and four clubs, respectively, and reizagh
$6.7 million and $3.9 million of fixed asset impaents, respectively. In addition, in the year enBedember 31,
2008, we recorded goodwill impairment charges af.6illion related to our Boston Sports Clubs oegiSome of
these closures and impairments were due, in laagetp the current economic and consumer envirennhiethe
economic and consumer environment were to contimuaketeriorate or if we are unable to improve therall
competitive position of our clubs, our operatingfpemance may continue to decline and we may needdognize
additional impairments of our long-lived assets gnddwill and may be compelled to close additiartabs. In
addition, we cannot assure you that we will be ableeplace any of the revenue lost from theseedadubs from
our other clubs.

Our geographic concentration heightens our exposuceadverse regional developments.

As of December 31, 2009, we operated 109 fitnagssdh the New York metropolitan market, 25 fitnekghs
in the Boston market, 18 fitness clubs in the Wagtun, D.C. market, six fitness clubs in the Prelatiia market
and three fitness clubs in Switzerland. Our gedgiaponcentration in the Northeast and Mid-Atlamégions and,
in particular, the New York area, heightens ourasxpe to adverse developments related to competamwell as
economic and demographic changes in these reglansgeographic concentration might result in a matadvers
effect on our business, financial condition, cdetw$ or results of operations in the future.

The level of competition in the fithess club indugtcould negatively impact our revenue growth and
profitability.

The fitness club industry is highly competitive arahtinues to become more competitive. In eachef t
markets in which we operate, we compete with ofitreess clubs, physical fithess and recreationeilifees
established by local governments, hospitals anthbsses for their employees, amenity and condomirgiubs, the
YMCA and similar organizations and, to a certaiteex, with racquet and tennis and other athletibg| country
clubs, weight reducing salons and the home-used#trequipment industry. We also compete with other
entertainment and retail businesses for the discr@ty income in our target demographics. We migtitbe able to
compete effectively in the future in the marketsvinich we operate. Competitors include companiasdhe larger
and have greater resources than us and they mayytkease markets to our detriment. These competitdnditions
may limit our ability to increase dues without ater&l loss in membership, attract new membersadindct and
retain qualified personnel. Additionally, consolida in the fitness club industry could result iicieased
competition among participants, particularly langelti-facility operators that are able to compeiedttractive
acquisition candidates or newly constructed cluations, thereby increasing costs associated wjihresion
through both acquisitions and lease negotiationraatlestate availability for newly constructediclacations.

The number of competitor clubs that offer lowecimg and a lower level of service have been groviingur
markets recently. These clubs have and may contmatiract members away from both our fithess-@hps and
our multi-recreational clubs, particularly in thecessionary consumer environment.

Furthermore, smaller and less expensive weightfaaskties present a competitive alternative fonsumers.
We also face competition from competitors offeraagnparable or higher pricing with higher levelsefvice. The
trend to larger outer-suburban, multi-recreatidaalily fithess centers, in areas where suitableesi@te is more
likely to be available, also compete against otnusban, fithess-only models.

In addition, large competitors could enter the arbaarkets in which we operate to attempt to opehaan of
clubs in these markets through one, or a seriescoijisitions.
Our trademarks and trade names may be infringed sappropriated or challenged by others.

We believe our brand names and related intellegggerty are important to our continued success SBek t
protect our trademarks, trade names and othetdote&l property by exercising our rights underlaale
trademark and copyright laws. If we were to faistacessfully protect our intellectual propertyhtgyfor any
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reason, it could have an adverse effect on ounbasij results of operations and financial conditfory damage to
our reputation could cause membership levels tirdeand make it more difficult to attract new measmd

If we are unable to identify and acquire suitablées for new clubs, our revenue growth rate and fite may be
negatively impacted.

To successfully expand our business over the leng,twe must identify and acquire sites that meette
selection criteria we have established. In additofinding sites with the right geographical, degraphic and other
measures we employ in our selection process, veenalsd to evaluate the penetration of our compstitothe
market. We face competition from other health ate$s center operators for sites that meet oteri@iand as a
result, we may lose those sites, our competitontdoccopy our format or we could be forced to paghleir prices for
those sites. If we are unable to identify and aegsiites for new clubs on attractive terms, ouenexe growth rate
and profits may be negatively impacted. Additiopail our analysis of the suitability of a siteifcorrect, we may
not be able to recover our capital investment wettgping and building the new club.

We may experience prolonged periods of losses inreaently opened clubs.

We have opened a total of 13 new club locatiorthé24-month period ended December 31, 2009. Upon
opening a club, we typically experience an inigiatiod of club operating losses. Enroliment frore-pold
memberships typically generates insufficient rexefar the club to initially generate positive cdlslw. As a result,
a new club typically generates an operating losssifirst full year of operations and substanyiddiwer margins in
its second full year of operations than a club epefior more than 24 months (“mature clulhese operating loss
and lower margins will negatively impact our futwesults of operations. This negative impact wallibcreased by
the initial expensing of pre-opening costs, whittlude legal and other costs associated with leagetiations and
permitting and zoning requirements, as well as@gption and amortization expenses, which willHartnegatively
impact net income. We may, at our discretion, azeté or expand our plans to open new clubs, winiaj
temporarily adversely affect results from operagion

We could be subject to claims related to healthsafety risks at our clubs.

Use of our clubs poses some potential health etyaisks to members or guests through physicattiexeand
use of our services and facilities, including eisr@quipment. Claims might be asserted againfstrusjury
suffered by, or death of members or guests whitga@sing at a club. We might not be able to sudodigsiefend
such claims. As a result, we might not be able &ntain our general liability insurance on accefgdérms in the
future or maintain a level of insurance that woplldvide adequate coverage against potential claims.

Depending upon the outcome, these matters mayamagerial effect on our consolidated financialipos,
results of operations or cash flows.

Security and privacy breaches may expose us talitgtand cause us to lose customers.

Federal and state law requires us to safeguardusiomers’ financial information, including credérd
information. Although we have established secysitycedures and protocol, including credit card stdu
compliance procedures, to protect against idettigft and the theft of our customers’ financiabimhation, our
security and testing measures may not preventisgtmeaches and breaches of our customers’ privay occur,
which could harm our business. For example, a Bagmit number of our users provide us with creditdcand other
confidential information and authorize us to Hileir credit card accounts directly for our produantsl services.
Typically, we rely on encryption and authenticattenhnology licensed from third parties to enhamnaesmission
security of confidential information. Advances ioneputer capabilities, new discoveries in the figlaryptography
inadequate facility security or other developmengsy result in a compromise or breach of the teamolsed by L
to protect customer data. Any compromise of ouusgccould harm our reputation or financial comatit and,
therefore, our business. In addition, a party wehalile to circumvent our security measures or édjpladequacies
in our security measures, could, among other effestsappropriate proprietary information, caugeriiptions in
our operations or expose customers to computesesror other disruptions. Actual or perceived wa@hgities may
lead to claims against us. To the extent the measue have taken prove to be
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insufficient or inadequate, we may become subjgettiggation or administrative sanctions, which twbresult in
significant fines, penalties or damages and haroutaeputation.

Loss of key personnel and/or failure to attract aneltain highly qualified personnel could make it me difficult
for us to develop our business and enhance our figal performance.

We are dependent on the continued services ofemioismanagement team, particularly Alexander A.
Alimanestianu, Chief Executive Officer; Daniel Galagher, Chief Financial Officer; and Martin AneeEhief
Operating Officer. We believe the loss of such geysonnel could have a material adverse effecscand our
financial performance. Currently, we do not have lmg-term employment agreements with our exeeutifficers,
and we may not be able to attract and retain seffiqqualified personnel to meet our business needs

Terrorism and the uncertainty of armed conflicts mdave a material adverse effect on clubs and operating
results.

Terrorist attacks, such as the attacks that ocgunrélew York and Washington, D.C. on September2DD],
and other acts of violence or war may affect theketa in which we operate, our operating resulthermarket on
which our common stock trades. Our geographic auinggon in the major cities in the Northeast anid-Mtlantic
regions and, in particular, the New York and Wagton, D.C. areas, heightens our exposure to arly fetigre
terrorist attacks, which may adversely affect dubs and result in a decrease in our revenuespotential near-
term and long-term effect these attacks may havedomembers, the markets for our services anddudet for
our common stock are uncertain; however, their betice can be expected to further negatively affest
United States economy generally and specificallyrdgional markets in which we operate. The coreecps of
any terrorist attacks or any armed conflicts angredictable; and we may not be able to foreseetsvhat could
have an adverse effect on our business.

Disruptions and failures involving our informatiorsystems could cause customer dissatisfaction angeasely
affect our billing and other administrative functios and development of new systems have been anldicou
continue to be costly and has, and in the future ypaivert management resources.

The continuing and uninterrupted performance ofinformation systems is critical to our successt Ou
members may become dissatisfied by any systemspdiisn or failure that interrupts our ability togwide our
services to them. Disruptions or failures thatetffeur billing and other administrative functiormutd have an
adverse affect on our operating results.

We use a fully-integrated information system td sedmberships, bill our members, track and anadates and
membership statistics, the frequency and timinmember workouts, cross-club utilization, membag, lifalue-
added services and demographic profiles by menithés.system also assists us in evaluating staffeeds and
program offerings. Correcting any disruptions diufes that affected our proprietary system cowdditfficult, time-
consuming and expensive because we would neecttoamracted consultants familiar with our systéve. believe
that, without investing in enhancements, this systeapproaching the end of its life cycle. Anyideg of our
current system could cause us to lose membersdueaszly affect our business and results of opmrati

In 2008, we entered into an agreement with Ajilondevelop for us a new enterprise managementrayste
GIMS. We expected to begin to deploy GIMS in 2009September 2009, we commenced litigation aga#ijiktn
alleging, among other things, breach of contragé Bem 3 - Legal Proceedings. Based on the stétihe litigation
and a partial assessment of the project, we detedrthat it was not probable that the Company woatdinue to
develop the system along the lines that we origyiralticipated. As a result, the Company has reizeghan
impairment charge of $10.2 million as of DecemhbkrZ009. We expect to use our existing enterpriaeagement
enterprise system for a period of one to two yedri¢e we explore other options.

Changes to any of our software implementationegjias could result in further impairment of softeraelated
assets. We are also subject to the risks assodcidtiedhe ability of our vendors to provide infortizm technology
solutions to meet our needs.
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We have implemented numerous infrastructure chatogescommodate our growth, provide network
redundancy, better manage telecommunications aadcdats, increase efficiencies in operations angfove
management of all components of our technical sechire. Our disaster recovery facility utilizeplieation tools t:
provide fail over capabilities for supporting olulr operations and company communications. Fioeds,
earthquakes, power loss, telecommunications fai|ure2ak-ins, acts of terrorism and similar eveoidd damage
either our primary or back-up systems. In addit@mmputer viruses, electronic break-ins or otheiilar disruptive
problems could also adversely affect our onlinessiAny system disruption or failure, security lorear other
damage that interrupts or delays our operation&laause us to lose members, damage our reputation,
adversely affect our business and results of ojpaist

The opening of new clubs by us in existing locat®may negatively impact our comparable club revenue
increases and our operating margins.

We currently operate clubs throughout the NorthaadtMid-Atlantic regions of the United States. @fened
four clubs in 2009. In addition, we currently hawe clubs for which we have signed lease commitsianéexisting
markets. With respect to existing markets, it hesrbour experience that opening new clubs maycatmne
memberships away from other clubs already opetayads in those markets and diminish their revenireaddition
as a result of new club openings in existing marketd because older clubs will represent an inrggsoportion
of our club base over time, our mature club revenaeases may be lower in future periods thahéngast.

Another result of opening new clubs is that oubadperating margins may be lower than they have bee
historically while the clubs build a membershipda#/e expect both the addition of pre-opening egpsrand the
lower revenue volumes characteristic of newly —rmukclubs to affect our club operating marginhasé new
clubs.

Our growth could place strains on our managemenmgoyees, information systems and internal controls
which may adversely impact our business.

Over the past five years, we have experienced growour business activities and operations, inalgiéin
increase in the number of our clubs. Future expansill place increased demands on our adminisati
operational, financial and other resources. Anlgfaito manage growth effectively could seriousdyrh our
business. To be successful, we will need to coattnimprove management information systems anaperating,
administrative, financial and accounting systent @mtrols. We will also need to train new emplsy/aed
maintain close coordination among our executivepanting, finance, marketing, sales and operafionstions.
These processes are time-consuming and expensivease management responsibilities and divert geanent
attention.

Our cash and cash equivalents are concentrated e dpank.

Our cash and cash equivalents are held, primamilg,single commercial bank. These deposits are not
collateralized. In the event the bank becomes westt] we would be unable to recover most of ouh@asl cash
equivalents deposited at the bank. Cash and caswadents held in a single commercial bank as afddeber 31,
2009 were $6.9 million. During any month, this ambmnay be as high as $30.0 million.

Because of the capital-intensive nature of our bosss, we may have to incur additional indebtednesgssue
new equity securities and, if we are not able tdaib additional capital, our ability to operate a¥xpand our
business may be impaired and our results of oparas could be adversely affected.

Our business requires significant levels of capddinance the development of additional sitesrfew clubs
and the construction of our clubs. If cash fromilalde sources is insufficient or unavailable doedstrictive credit
markets, or if cash is used for unanticipated ne@dsmay require additional capital sooner thaicgdted. In the
event that we are required or choose to raiseiadditfunds, we may be unable to do so on favoredstas or at all.
Furthermore, the cost of debt financing could digantly increase, making it cost-prohibitive torbmw, which
could force us to issue new equity securities.dfissue new equity securities, existing sharehsldery experience
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additional dilution or the new equity securitiesyneve rights, preferences or privileges senidghtse of existing
holders of common stock. If we cannot raise fundaaceptable terms, we may not be able to executeusrent
growth plans, take advantage of future opportusitierespond to competitive pressures. Any inghiditraise
additional capital when required could have an esbreffect on our business plans and operatindtsesu

We may incur rising costs related to constructiohreew clubs and maintaining our existing clubs. ¥fe are not
able to pass these cost increases through to oumipers, our returns may be adversely affected.

Our clubs require significant upfront investmefibur investment is higher than we had plannedmag need
to outperform our operational plan to achieve angéted return. Over the longer term, we beliea¢we can offset
cost increases by increasing our membership duksther fees and improving profitability throughsto
efficiencies; however, higher costs in certain oegiwhere we are opening new clubs during any geridime may
be difficult to offset in the short-term.

We may be required to remit unclaimed property tates for unused, expired personal training sesson

We recognize revenue from personal training sesssrthe services are performed (i.e., when tretoseis
trained). Unused personal training sessions exfies a set, disclosed period of time after pureh&ecently, the
State of New York has informed us that it is cutiyenonsidering whether we are required to rengtdimount
received by us for unused, expired personal trgisgssions to the State of New York as unclaimedesty. We
currently have between $10.0 million and $15.0ionllof unused and expired personal training sessife have
not recognized any revenue from these sessionbarelrecorded the amounts as deferred revenue oWetd
believe that these amounts are subject to the asokat or abandoned property laws of any stat&jdimgy the Stat
of New York. However, in the event that a stateluding the State of New York, does not agree withposition,
we ultimately may be forced to remit all or a pontiof these amounts to such state. In that evenfjrancial
condition may be materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Leverage and Our Indebtedness
We may be negatively affected by the economic siiisithe United States and key international market

We must maintain liquidity to fund our working ctadj service our outstanding indebtedness and dman
investment opportunities. Without sufficient liqitid we could be forced to curtail our operatiomsve may not be
able to pursue new business opportunities. If ourent resources do not satisfy our liquidity regoients, we may
have to seek additional financinthe principal sources of our liquidity are fundsigeted from operating activitie
available cash and cash equivalents and borrowindsr our $248.8 million senior secured creditligcfthe “2007
Senior Credit Facility”), as amended.

The capital and credit markets have been experignalatility and disruption in the recent past. #&sesult,
one or more of our current lenders could experidimancial difficulty, and as a result fail to pride the required
lending amounts under our 2007 Credit Agreemerthisfshould occur, we may need to seek additifinahcing
from other sources. The availability of financingl\wepend on a variety of factors, such as ecoeamid market
conditions, the availability of credit and our citadtings, as well as the possibility that lendeosid develop a
negative perception of the prospects of our comparifie fitness industry in general. We may noablke to
successfully obtain any necessary additional fimgnon favorable terms, or financing altogether.

Economic conditions, both domestic and foreign, ratigct our financial performance. Prevailing ecoino
conditions, including unemployment levels, inflatj@vailability of credit, energy costs and othercno-economic
factors, as well as uncertainty about future ecanawonditions, adversely affect consumer spendimd) a
consequently, our business and results of opesation

Our leverage may impair our financial condition ande may incur significant additional debt.

We currently have a substantial amount of debtofASecember 31, 2009, our total consolidated dedst w
$318.4 million. Our substantial debt could have égm@nt consequences, including:

< making it more difficult for us to satisfy our ofditions with respect to our outstanding indebtestr
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« increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneooic and industry condition

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financing fund future working capital, capital expendésy
acquisitions of clubs and other general corporagirements

* requiring a substantial portion of our cash floanfroperations for the payment of interest on otat,dehich
is variable on our 2007 Senior Credit Facility anol Revolving Loan Facility, and reducing our &lilio use
our cash flow to fund working capital, capital endéures and acquisitions of new clubs and general
corporate requirements; a

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmhinh we
operate

These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveraged
competitors.

The indenture governing our 11% Senior DiscouneNatue in 2014 (“Senior Discount Notes”) will petrons
and our subsidiaries to incur substantial additioieht, subject to compliance with provisions af thdenture. In
addition, as of December 31, 2009, we had $49.bomibf unutilized borrowings under our senior sexl
revolving credit facility. If new debt is addeddar and our subsidiariesurrent debt levels, the related risks that
and they currently face could intensify.

We may not be able to re-finance our debt at currégvels and interest rates.

Our Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier dbfeary 27, 2014, or August 1, 2013 if the 11% Senio
Discount Notes are still outstanding as of thaedht addition, our Revolving Loan will mature i622. Our
11% Senior Discount Notes will mature in 2014. Wpezt to refinance our outstanding indebtednesenimgse
arrangements with new indebtedness prior to thatunty dates. The availability of refinancing wiépend on a
variety of factors, such as economic and marketlitioms, business performance, the availabilitgrefdit and our
credit ratings, as well as the lenders’ perceptibthe prospects of our company or our industryegelty. We may
not be able to successfully obtain any necesséinareing on favorable terms, including intereséesaand financial
and other covenants, or at all. In that event,business and financial condition may be materiaflyersely
affected.

We may not have access to the cash flow and ottssets of our subsidiaries that may be needed toenak
payments on our outstanding Indebtedness.

Our operations are conducted through our subsédiamd our ability to make payments on our outstand
Senior Discount Notes is dependent on the earr@ndghe distribution of funds from our subsidiaridswever,
none of our subsidiaries are obligated to makediaailable to us for payment on our outstanding@eDiscount
Notes. In addition, the terms of the 2007 Creditefggnent governing the 2007 Senior Credit Faciitynificantly
restrict TSI, LLC and its subsidiaries from payitigidends and otherwise transferring assets té-uhermore, ou
subsidiaries are permitted under the terms of @0 Zredit Agreement and the indenture governirgSaunior
Discount Notes to incur additional indebtedness itiey severely restrict or prohibit the making @ftdbutions, the
payment of dividends or the making of loans by sadbsidiaries to us.

We cannot assure that the agreements governirguthent and future indebtedness of our subsidiaviks
permit our subsidiaries to provide TSI, LLC withfgzient dividends, distributions or loans to fuadheduled
interest and principal payments on the 2007 Crkglieement when due.

Covenant restrictions under our indebtedness manitiour ability to operate our business and, in suan
event, we may not have sufficient assets to settlieindebtedness.

The indenture governing our Senior Discount Nafes 2007 Credit Agreement and certain of our other
agreements regarding our indebtedness contain,gotber things, covenants that may restrict ouitaho
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finance future operations or capital needs or gage in other business activities and that may atingar ability an
the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to:

* borrow money

» pay dividends or make distributior
* purchase or redeem stot

* make investments and extend cre
< engage in transactions with affiliate
e engage in sa-leaseback transactior
e consummate certain asset sa

- effect a consolidation or merger or sell, transkgise or otherwise dispose of all or substantalllpf our
assets; an

« create liens on our asse

In addition, the 2007 Credit Agreement requiresGoenpany, on a consolidated basis, to maintaireaipd
financial ratio and satisfy certain financial caimh tests that may require us to take action tluce our debt or to
act in a manner contrary to our business objectiVes 2007 Credit Agreement requires the Compamy o
consolidated basis, to maintain a maximum totaddage ratio not greater than 4.25:1.00 of consiaitia
indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA, as definetthén?007 Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 20@9were
in compliance with such ratio test, with a ratic?o31:1.00.

Events beyond our control, including changes iregglneconomic and business conditions, may affect o
ability to meet certain financial ratios and fina@condition tests. We may be unable to meet thesis and the
lenders may decide not to waive any failure to nle@te tests. A breach of any of these covenantddwesult in a
default under the indenture governing our Senigcbiint Notes and the 2007 Credit Agreement. Ifvamieof
default under the 2007 Credit Agreement occurslehders could elect to declare all amounts oudstan
thereunder, together with accrued interest, tarbmediately due and payable. In the event of defader the
indenture governing our Senior Discount Notes nibie holders could elect to declare due all amooutstanding
thereunder, together with accrued interest. If sugh event should occur, we might not have sufiicéssets to pay
our indebtedness.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None

Item 2. Properties

We own the 151 East 86th Street location, whictskeia fitness club and a retail tenant that gesbrat
approximately $2.0 million of rental income for fes the year ended December 31, 2009. We leasesthainder o
our fitness clubs pursuant to long-term leasesdiggly 15 to 25 years, including options). In tlextifive years, or
the period from January 1, 2010 through DecembgePB14, we have leases for six club locations dnatdue to
expire without any renewal options. In each casewill endeavor to extend the lease or relocatecline or its
membership base if appropriate.

We lease approximately 36,400 square feet of offfiace in New York City and have smaller regiorfites
in Fairfax, VA and Boston, MA, for administrativacigeneral corporate purposes. We also lease waselznd
commercial space in Brooklyn, NY for storage pugss

Beginning January 1, 2009, we lease approximat2}§® square feet in ElImsford, NY for the operatiba
centralized laundry facility for New York Sportsubk offering towel service, and for constructiod aquipment
storage. This space replaced a laundry facilitY4000 square feet in Queens, NY. As of June 2009 space also
serves as corporate office space and replacedxpraiely 10,800 square feet of corporate officecepa
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Manhattan. Total square footage related to thedaufacility is 42,000 and total square footagated to the

corporate office and warehouse space is 40,000.

The following table provides information regardiogr club locations:

Date Opened or Managemen

Location Address Assumed

New York Sports Clubs:
Manhattar 151 East 86th Stre January 197
Manhattar 61 West 62nd Stre: July 1983
Manhattar 614 Second Avenu July 1986
Manhattar 151 Reade Stre: January 199
Manhattar 1601 Broadwa! September 199
Manhattar 349 East 76th Stre April 1994
Manhattar 248 West 80th Stre: May 1994
Manhattar 502 Park Avenu February 199!
Manhattar 117 Seventh Avenue Sou March 199t
Manhattar 303 Park Avenue Sou December 199
Manhattar 30 Wall Stree May 1996
Manhattar 1635 Third Avenue October 199¢
Manhattar 575 Lexington Avenu November 199t
Manhattar 278 Eighth Avenur December 199
Manhattar 200 Madison Avenu February 199
Manhattar 2162 Broadwa November 199°
Manhattar 633 Third Avenue April 1998
Manhattar 1657 Broadway July 1998
Manhattar 217 Broadway March 199¢
Manhattar 23 West 73rd Stre¢ April 1999
Manhattar 34 West 14th Stre: July 1999
Manhattar 503-511 Broadway July 1999
Manhattar 1372 Broadwa October 199¢
Manhattar 300 West 125th Stre: May 2000
Manhattar 102 North End Avenu May 2000
Manhattar 19 West 44th Stre« August 200(
Manhattar 128 Eighth Avenu December 200
Manhattar 2527 Broadwa August 2001
Manhattar 3 Park Avenut August 2001
Manhattar 10 Irving Place November 200:
Manhattar 160 Water Stree November 200:
Manhattar 230 West 41st Stre November 200:
Manhattar 1221 Avenue of the Americi January 200
Manhattar 200 Park Avenu December 200
Manhattar 232 Mercer Stree September 200
Manhattar 225 Varick Stree August 200¢
Manhattar 885 Second Avenu February 200°
Manhattar 301 West 145th Stre October 200}
Manhattar 1400 5th Avenu December 200
Bronx, NY 1601 Bronxdale Avenu November 200°
Brooklyn, NY 110 Boerum Plac October 198!
Brooklyn, NY 1736 Shore Parkwe June 199¢
Brooklyn, NY 179 Remsen Stre May 2001
Brooklyn, NY 324 Ninth Stree August 2002
Brooklyn, NY 1630 E 15th Stree August 2007
Brooklyn, NY 7118 Third Avenut May 2004
Brooklyn, NY 439 86th Stree April 2008
Queens, NY 69-33 Austin Stree April 1997
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Date Opened or Management

Location Address Assumed
Queens, NY 153-67 A Cross Island Parkws June 199¢
Queens, NY 285¢€-2861 Steinway Stre: February 200:
Queens, NY 8000 Cooper Avenu March 2007
Queens, NY 99-01 Queens Bouleval June 200"
Queens, NY 39-01 Queens Blvi December 200
Staten Island, N® 300 West Service Roe June 199¢

Scarsdale, NY
Mamaroneck, NY

Crotor-on-Hudson, NY

Larchmont, NY
Nanuet, NY
Great Neck, NY
East Meadow, N\
Commack, NY
Oceanside, N
Long Beach, NY
Garden City, NY
Huntington, NY
Syosset, NY
West Nyack, NY
Woodmere, NY
Hartsdale, NY
Somers, NY

Port Jefferson Station, N

White Plains, NY
Hawthorne, NY
Dobbs Ferry, NY
Smithtown, NY
Carmel, NY
Hicksville, NY
New Rochelle, NY
Deer Park, NY
Garnerville, NY
Stamford, CT
Danbury, CT
Stamford, CT
Greenwich, C1
Westport, CT
Greenwich, C1
West Hartford, C1
Princeton, N.
Matawan, N.
Marlboro, NJ
Ramsey, N.
Mahwah, N.
Springfield, NJ
Colonia, NJ
Somerset, N
Hoboken, N.
West Caldwell, N.
Jersey City, N.
Newark, NJ

696 White Plains Roa
124 Palmer Avenu

420 South Riverside Driv
15 Madison Avenu

58 Demarest Mill Roa
15 Barstow Roa

625 Merrick Avenue
6136 Jericho Turnpik
2909 Lincoln Avenut
265 East Park Avent
833 Franklin Avenut
350 New York Avenut
49 Ira Roac

3656 Palisades Center Dri
158 Irving Stree

208 E. Hartsdale Avent
Somers Commons, 80 Routt
200 Wilson Stree

4 City Centel

24 Saw Mill River Roat
50 Livingstone Avenu

5 Browns Roat(

1880 Route ¢

100 Duffy Avenue
Trump Plaza, Huguenot Stre
455 Commack Avenu
20 W. Ramapo Ros

106 Commerce Roe

38 Mill Plain Roac

1063 Hope Stre

6 Liberty Way

427 Post Road, Ea

1 Fawcett Plac

65 Memorial Roat

301 North Harrison Stre:
450 Route 3¢

34 Route 9 Nortl

1100 Route 17 Nort

7 Leighton Plact

215 Morris Avenue

1250 Route 2

120 Cedar Grove Lar
221 Washington Stre
913 Bloomfield Avenut

147 Two Harborside Financial Cen

1 Gateway Cente
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October 199!
January 199
January 199
December 199
May 1998

July 1989
January 199
January 199
May 1999

July 1999

May 2000
February 200:
March 2001
February 200:
March 200z
September 200
February 200!
July 2005
September 200
January 200
June 200¢
December 200
July 2007
November 200t
March 200¢
March 200¢
Future Openin(

Reopened February 20

January 199
November 199¢
May 1999
January 200:
February 200:
November 200°
May 1997

April 1998
April 1998
June 199¢
June 199¢
August 199¢
August 199¢
August 199¢
October 199¢
April 1999
June 200:
October 200:
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Date Opened or Management

Location Address Assumed
Ridgewood, N. 129 S. Broad Stres June 200
Westwood, N. 35 Jefferson Avenu June 200«
Livingston, NJ 39 W. North Field Rd. February 200!
Princeton, N. 4250 Route 1 Nort April 2005
Hoboken, N. 210 14th Stree December 200
Englewood, N. 34-36 South Dean Stre December 200
Clifton, NJ 202 Main Avenue March 2007
Montclair, NJ 56 Church Stree January 200
Butler, NJ 1481 Route 2. January 200!
East Brunswick, N 300 State Route 1 March 200¢
Bayonne, N. 550 Route 440 Nort Future Opening

Boston Sports Clubs:

Boston, MA 1 Bulfinch Place August 199¢
Boston, MA 201 Brookline Avenur June 200(
Boston, MA 361 Newbury Stree November 200:
Boston, MA 350 Washington Stre February 200:
Boston, MA 505 Boylston Stree January 200
Boston, MA 560 Harrison Avenu February 200t
Boston, MA 695 Atlantic Avenu October 200t
Allston, MA 15 Gorham Stree July 1997
Weymouth, MA 553 Washington Stre May 1999
Wellesley, MA 140 Great Plain Avent July 2000
Andover, MA 307 Lowell Stree July 2000
Lynnfield, MA 425 Walnut Stree July 2000
Lexington, MA 475 Bedford Avenu July 2000
Franklin, MA 750 Union Stree July 2000
Cambridge, MA 625 Massachusetts Aven January 200.
West Newton, MA 1359 Washington Stre November 200:
Waltham, MA 840 Winter Stree November 200:
Watertown, MA 311 Arsenal Stree January 200
Newton, MA 135 Wells Avenue August 200¢
Somerville, MA 1 Davis Squar December 200
Medford, MA 70 Station Landiny December 200
Westborough, M#£ 1500 Union Stree September 200
Woburn, MA 300 Presidential Wa December 200

Providence, R
Providence, R
Washington Sports Clubs:

Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
North Bethesda, ML
Germantown, ML
Silver Spring, MD
Bethesda, ML

131 Pittman Stree
10 Dorrance Stret

214 D Street, S.|

1835 Connecticut Avenue, N.W
2251 Wisconsin Avenue, N.\
1211 Connecticut Avenue, N.'
1345 F Street, N.V

5345 Wisconsin Ave., N.V
1990 K Street, N.V

783 Seventh Street, N.'

3222 M Street, N.V

14th Street, N.W

10400 Old Georgetown Ro:i
12623 Wisteria Drivt

8506 Fenton Stres

6800 Wisconsin Avenu
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December 200
January 200!

January 198
January 199
May 1994

July 2000
August 200z
February 200:
February 200:
October 200
February 200!
June 200¢
June 199¢

July 1998
November 200!
November 200°
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Date Opened or Management

Location Address Assumed
Alexandria, VA 3654 King Stree June 199¢
Fairfax, VA 11001 Lee Highwa October 199¢
West Springfield, VA 8430 Old Keene Mil September 200
Clarendon, VA 2700 Clarendon Bouleva November 200:

Philadelphia Sports Clubs:

Philadelphia, P/
Philadelphia, P/
Chalfont, PA
Philadelphia, P/
Ardmore, PA
Radnor, PA
Swiss Sports Clubs

220 South 5th Stre:

2000 Hamilton Stree

One Highpoint Drive
1735 Market Stree

34 W. Lancaster Avent
555 East Lancaster Aven

January 199
July 1999
January 200
October 200(
March 2002
December 200

Basel, Switzerlan St. Johanr-Vorstadt 41 August 1987
Zurich, Switzerlanc Glarnischstrasse I August 1987
Basel, Switzerlan Gellerstrasse 23 August 2001

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

On March 1, 2005, in an action styl8drah Cruz, et al v. Town Sports International/afdew York Sports
Club, plaintiffs commenced a purported class actionrejaghe Company in the Supreme Court, New Yorkr@pu
seeking unpaid wages and alleging that TSI, LLCatén various overtime provisions of the New Yot&t8 Labor
Law with respect to the payment of wages to cetraimers and assistant fitness managers. On atdooe 18,
2007, the same plaintiffs commenced a second piaghatass action against the Company in the Supfeooet of
the State of New York, New York County, seeking aidpvages and alleging that TSI, LLC violated vasiavage
payment and overtime provisions of the New Yorké&taabor Law with respect to the payment of wageslltNew
York purported hourly employees. While we are ueatilthis time to estimate the likelihood of anawafrable
outcome or the potential loss to the Company iretrent of such an outcome, we intend to contestddse
vigorously. Depending upon the ultimate outcomés, thatter may have a material adverse effect ofCtdmapany’s
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi, or cash flows.

On September 14, 2009, the staff of the SEC adils€ompany that a formal order of private invggion
had been issued with respect to the Company. $ilge2008, the Company has been providing docurnaerds
testimony on a voluntary basis in response to #ommal inquiry by the staff of the SEC, which pririharelates to
the deferral of certain payroll costs incurred amigection with the sale of memberships in the Comisahealth an
fitness clubs and the time period utilized by tteerpany for the amortization of (i) such deferredtsanto expense
and (ii) initiation fees into revenue. The Compaowtinues to discuss these issues with the SEC &tdfto
cooperate fully with the Staff's investigation. TBempany cannot predict the outcome of, or theftiamee for, the
conclusion of this investigation.

On September 22, 2009, in an action styled/n Sports International, LLC v. Ajilon Solutiare division of
Ajilon Professional Staffing LLC (Supreme Courtthé State of New York, New York County, 602911-065|,
LLC brought an action in the Supreme Court of ttetesof New York, New York County, against Ajiloarforeach
of contract, conversion and replevin, seeking, aynather things, money damages against Ajilon feabhing its
agreement to design and deliver to TSI, LLC a nparts club enterprise management system known sSG|
including failing to provide copies of the compuseurce code written for GIMS, related documentatyoperly
identified requirements documents and other prgpasned and licensed by TSI, LLC. On October 2,2005I,
LLC moved for preliminary injunctive relief, demangd that Ajilon immediately turn over the completedrk
product and licenses needed for the project soliBhtLLC could evaluate the status of the progaad plan for its
completion. Subsequently, on October 14, 2009pAjibrought a counterclaim against TSI, LLC allegimgach of
contract, alleging, among other things, failurgp&y outstanding invoices in the amount of $2.9iamll On
October 15, 2009, the court issued its first rulimgTSI, LLC’s motion for preliminary injunctive lief and ordered
Ajilon to provide certain materials created in ceation with the project, including the computer m@ucode writte
for GIMS, and reserved judgment on other aspectsSdfLLC’s request. On December 10, 2009, the €our
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denied TSI, LLC’s application for a preliminary imjction requiring Ajilon to provide certain licerssfor software
used to run GIMS. TSI, LLC’s claim for permanenteeremains pending. The litigation is currenttythe
discovery phase, and the Company intends to preseayorously its claims against Ajilon and defeaghinst
Ajilon’s counterclaim.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, weiavolved in various other lawsuits, claims amogeedings
incidental to the ordinary course of business. I$ate 14 — Contingencies to the consolidated finalngtatements
in this Annual Report. The results of litigatioreanherently unpredictable. Any claims againstwisether
meritorious or not, could be time consuming, resuttostly litigation, require significant amourdémanagement
time and result in diversion of significant resagcThe results of these other lawsuits, claimspaadeedings
cannot be predicted with certainty.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserve

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters dasuer Purchases ¢
Equity Securities

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock currently trades on The NASDAQWaldViarket, under the symbol CLUB. The following
table sets forth, for each quarterly period inltst two fiscal years, the high and low sales grige dollars per
share) of our common stock as quoted or reportetheaNASDAQ Global Market:

High Low

Year ended December 31, 20!

First Quarte! $ 3.4C $1.4C

Second Quarte $ 49¢ $1.97

Third Quartel $ 4.4€ $2.3¢

Fourth Quarte $ 3.97 $1.9¢
Year ended December 31, 20

First Quartel $10.6( $6.41

Second Quarte $10.2( $6.1C

Third Quartel $10.7¢  $5.92

Fourth Quarte $6.47 $1.97
Holders

As of March 10, 2010, there were approximately 8ilérs of record of our common stock. There aratiaal
holders who are not “holders of recotalit who beneficially own stock through nominee leogdsuch as brokers ¢
benefit plan trustees.

Dividend Policy

We intend to retain future earnings, if any, tafice the operation and expansion of our business@amot
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the forasksefuture. Consequently, stockholders will needell shares of
our common stock to realize a return on their ibwest, if any. No dividends were paid by the Compiarthe
fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

The terms of the indenture governing our Senioc@ist Notes and the 2007 Senior Credit Facility
significantly restrict the payment of dividendsum: Our subsidiaries are permitted under the tefrttze 2007
Senior Credit Facility (and under the indentureeyoing our Senior Discount Notes) to incur additilon
indebtedness that may severely restrict or proHikippayment of dividends by such subsidiariesstaQur
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substantial leverage may impair our financial ctodiand we may incur significant additional defad “ltem 1A.
Risk Factors”).

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We had a repurchase program that continued thrbegember 31, 2009, but there were no repurchasexgdu
the quarter ended December 31, 2009. During thesymaled December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company
repurchased 2,095,613 and 1,838,960 shares of corstack, respectively, at a cost of $5.4 milliorl an
$4.6 million, respectively.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell any securities during the year éridecember 31, 2009 that were not registered uhder
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below compares the annual prg@eichange in our cumulative total stockholdarrret
with the cumulative total return of the Russell @@hd the NASDAQ composite indices.

COMPARISON OF 43 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Town Sports International Holdings, Inc, TW&SDAQ Composite Index
And The Russell 2000 Index

$140

F120 -

$100

580

$20

0 : !
G/2/06 12106 12107 12108 1208

—B— Town Sports International Heldings, Ine
— A — NASDAQ Composite

== O = = Russell 2000

* $100 invested on 6/2/06 in stock or 5/31/06 in iydecluding reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December :

December 31,

June 2,

2006 2006 2007 2008 2009
Town Sports International Holding $100.0C $124.3¢ $ 72.1f $24.0¢ $ 17.5¢
NASDAQ $100.0C $112.6¢ $122.27 $71.2¢ $104.3¢

Russell 200( $100.0C $110.0¢ $108.3¢ $71.7¢ $ 91.2¢

Notes:

(1) The graph covers the period from June 2, 2006fitstetrading day of our common stock following duitial
Public Offering, to December 31, 20(

(2) The graph assumes that $100 was invested at tHeeh@dose on June 2, 2006 in our common stockyen t
Russell 2000 and in the NASDAQ composite indexekthat all dividends were reinvested. The Rus<i02
Index has been chosen for comparative purposesibeeee do not have a readily definable peer groapis
publicly traded. No cash dividends have been dedlan our common stock in the period cove

(3) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthoot be considered indicative of future stockhola¢urns.
(4) We include a comparison against the Russell 200ause there is no published industry or
line-of-businesdindex for our industry

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fdrttany of our previous or future filings under t8ecurities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities ExchArgef 1934, as amended, that might incorporatedfigrence
this Annual Report on Form 10-K or future filingade by the Company under those statutes, the Stock
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Performance Graph is not deemed filed with the B&esiand Exchange Commission, is not deemeditiagjc
material and shall not be deemed incorporated grence into any of those prior filings or into afioyure filings
made by the Company under those statutes, exctp gxtent that the Company specifically incorpesasuch
information by reference into a previous or futtitimg, or specifically requests that such infornoat be treated as
soliciting material, in each case under those g&du

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA
(In thousands, except share, per share, club and mmbership data)

The selected consolidated balance sheet dataleoceimber 31, 2009 and 2008 and the selected cdatadi
statement of operations and cash flow data foyé#aes ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 leavederive
from our audited consolidated financial statemémtiided elsewhere herein. The selected consolidza&ance
sheet data as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2@Dfha selected consolidated statement of opegatind cash
flow data for the years ended December 31, 20062808 have been derived from our audited cons@itiat
financial statements not included herein. Othea daid club and membership data for all periodsetes have
been derived from our unaudited books and rec@ds historical results are not necessarily indieatf results for
any future period. You should read these seleatedalidated financial and other data, together with
accompanying notes, in conjunction with the “Maragat’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Comdlitand
Results of Operations” section of this Annual Réjpmd our consolidated financial statements anddlagéed notes
appearing at the end of this Annual Report.

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Statement of Operations Data
Revenue: $485,39. $506,70¢ $472,91! $433,08( $388,55¢
Operating expense
Payroll and related(? 193,89: 193,58( 177,35 162,70¢ 151,92(
Club operating 178,85: 172,40¢ 156,66( 146,24 130,21¢
General and administrati\ 31,58% 33,95: 35,09: 30,24¢ 26,58
Depreciation and amortizatic 56,53: 52,47¢ 45,96¢ 40,85( 39,58:
Impairment of fixed asse 6,70¢ 3,861 — — —
Impairment of interni-use softwar: 10,19¢ — — — —
Goodwill impairment(2 — 17,60¢ — —
Operating incom: 7,62¢ 32,817 57,84 53,03( 40,25:
Loss on extinguishment of debt( — — 12,52: 16,11
Interest expense, net of interest incc 20,96¢ 23,58 25,32¢ 33,37: 39,20¢

Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalime (1,876 (2,30%) (1,799 (1,817 (1,749
Net (loss) income before provision for corpor

income taxe: (11,46 11,54: 21,79: 5,362 2,78¢
(Benefit) provision for corporate income ta (5,800 9,20¢ 8,14 71t 1,02(
Net (loss) incom $ (5,66¢) $ 2,337 $ 1364t $ 4647 $ 1,76¢
(Loss) earnings per weighted average number of

shares

Basic $ (025 $ 00 $ 052 $ 02 $ o0.1cC

Diluted $ (025 $ 00¢ $ 051 $ 02 $ 0.1
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As of December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalel $ 10,75¢ $ 10,39¢ $ 546 $ 6,81 $ 51,30«
Working capital defici (46,627  (67,21) (73,48() (58,36€) (2,262)
Total asset 467,46t 511,63¢  488,76: 423,52 433,77:
Long-term debt, including current installmel 318,36: 338,01( 316,02: 281,12¢ 411,16:
Total stockholder (deficit) equity (8,237) 772 18z (17,829 (115,68)
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Cash Flow Data:
Cash provided by (used ir

Operating activitie: $76,24. $95,62: $82,74¢ $75,12( $ 63,25¢

Investing activities (49,277 (95,109 (97,230 (67,11) (66,339

Financing activitie: (26,767) 4,19¢ 12,93. (52,599 (3,120
Other Data:
Non-cash rental expense, net of -cash rental incom (2,499 (417 50¢ 1,76¢ 1,461
Non-cash compensation expense incurred in connection

with stock options and common stock gre 1,704 1,26¢ 91z 1,13¢ 27¢

Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Club and Membership Data:
New clubs opene 4 9 14 10 5
Clubs acquiret — — 1 1 2
Clubs closed or relocate 9) 4 3 3 3
Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of pel 15¢ 164 15¢ 147 13¢
Total clubs operated at end of period 161 16€ 161 14¢ 141
Members at end of period( 486,00( 510,00( 486,00( 453,00( 409,00(
Comparable club revenue increase (decreas (5.6% 2.2% 5.2% 7.9% 6.9%
Revenue per weighted average clut $ 2957 $ 314z $ 3,158 $ 3,021 $ 2,81¢
Average revenue per member $ 96 $ 99C $ 100 $ 982 $ 96¢
Annual attrition(9) 45.2% 40.2% 38.2% 36.1% 38.2%

(1) In the year ended December 31, 2009, Payroll datekincludes a correction of an accounting enfc751
related to deferred membership costs. See NoteCorrection of an Accounting Error to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements in this Annugbdtefor further details

(2) Goodwill impairment testing requires a comparisetween the carrying value and fair value of eaploming
unit. If the carrying value exceeds the fair valgeodwill is considered impaired. The amount ofithpairmen
loss is measured as the difference between thgimguvalue and the implied fair value of goodwailhich is
determined based on purchase price alloca

(a) The Company performed an interim impairment tesifddecember 31, 2008. As a result of the testai
determined that all of the goodwill in our Bostgmo&s Clubs region, amounting to $15,766, and galb«
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of $1,843 at two of our outlier clubs that did beinefit from being part of a regional cluster wapaired. /
deferred tax benefit of $1,755 was recorded in eation with these impairment charg

(3) The $16,113 loss on extinguishment of debt foryiber ended December 31, 2006 consists of the foipiwo
transactions

(&) On June 8, 2006, the Company paid $93,001 to re&8&n901 of the outstanding principal of the
Company’s previously outstanding 8s % Senior Notes (“2003 Senior Notes”), together \@)796 of
early termination fees and $1,204 of accrued istef2eferred financing costs totaling $1,601 weriten
off and fees totaling $222 were incurred in conimectvith this early extinguishmer

(b) On July 7, 2006, the Company paid $62,875 to rede&¥h of the Senior Discount Notes. The aggregate
accreted value of the Senior Discount Notes oméHemption date totaled $56,644 and early ternonati
fees totaled $6,231. Deferred financing costsitadab1,239 were written off and fees totaling $2&rev
incurred in connection with this early extinguishme

The $12,521 loss on extinguishment of debt recofdethe year ended December 31, 2007 resulted fhem
repayment of the $169,999 remaining outstandingcgral of the 2003 Senior Notes with the proceedsfthe
2007 Senior Credit Facility obtained on FebruaryZJ07. We incurred $8,759 of tender premium arntb&#
call premium together with $335 of fees and expemskated to the tender of the 2003 Senior Notes. N
deferred financing costs related to the Compansésipus senior secured revolving credit facilityezad into
in 2003 (the “2003 Senior Credit Facility”) and th@03 Senior Notes totaling approximately $3,212ewe
expensed in the first quarter of 20

(4) Includes wholly-owned and partly-owned clubs. ldi&idn, during 2008 and 2009 we managed four ulsiter
fitness clubs in which we did not have an equitgiiest. During 2005, 2006 and 2007 we managed five
university fitness clubs in which we did not haveesyuity interest

(5) Represents members at wh-owned and part-owned clubs

(6) Total revenue for a club is included in comparaihld revenue increase beginning on the first dapef
thirteenth full calendar month of the c¢’s operation

(7) Revenue per weighted average club is calculat¢dtalsrevenue divided by the product of the totahier of
clubs and their weighted average months in operattoa percentage of the peri

(8) Average revenue per member is total revenue fopéhied divided by the average number of membesstuip
the period, including student and summer pool mestiyes, where average number of memberships for the
period is derived by dividing the sum of the tate@mberships at the end of each month during thegby the
total number of months in the peric

(9) Annual attrition is calculated as total member éssfor the year divided by the average monthly nesmabunt
over the year excluding f-sold, student and summer pool memberships durioly esspective yea

Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &esults of Operations

You should read the following discussion and anslgsour financial condition and consolidated riswf
operations in conjunction with the “Selected Coidatled Financial and Other Data” section of this iural Report
and our consolidated financial statements and #lated notes appearing at the end of this AnnugbReln
addition to historical information, this discussiand analysis contains forward-looking statemehég tnvolve
risks, uncertainties and assumptions (SE@RWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS' discussion). Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticiphta these forwardeoking statements as a result of certain fact
including, but not limited to, those set forth ilteéim 1A. Risk Factors” of this Annual Report.

Overview

Based on number of clubs, we are the second laoge®tr and operator of fitness clubs in the Norshead
Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States. As ofd@enber 31, 2009, we owned and operated 161 clalbs th
collectively served approximately 486,000 memb¥fs.develop clusters of clubs to serve densely mtedimajor
metropolitan regions and we service such populatimnclustering clubs near the highest concentratad our
target customers’ areas of both employment andeasi. Our clubs are located for maximum conveegi¢nour
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members in urban or suburban areas, close to waaspn hubs or office or retail centers. Our &ngpember is
between the age of 21 and 60 and has an annuah@obbetween $50,000 and $150,000. We believetiisat
“upper-value” segment is not only the broadest sagrof the market, but also the segment with tleaigst growth
opportunities.

Our goal is to be the most recognized health cktwvark in each of the four major metropolitan regiave
serve. We believe that our strategy of clustering< provides significant benefits to our memberd allows us to
achieve strategic operating advantages. In eaohraiarkets, we have developed clusters by injtiglening or
acquiring clubs located in the more central urbamkets of the region and then branching out froes¢hurban
centers to suburbs and neighboring communitiesit@lamng on this clustering of clubs, as of DecaanB1, 2009,
approximately 40% of our members participated ingmssport or regional passport memberships wHictva
unlimited access to all of our clubs in our clusteithin one, or all of, our regions, respectivéty, a higher
monthly membership fee. The remaining 60% of ouminers participate in a gold membership which allows
unlimited access to a designated club and accesdbdther clubs during off-peak hours.

We have executed our clustering strategy succégsfihe New York region through the network dhiss
clubs we operate under our New York Sports Clubsdname. We are the largest fithess club opeirator
Manhattan with 39 locations (more than twice asyrasour nearest competitor) and operated a tbtH)® clubs
under the New York Sports Clubs brand name withl2@mile radius of New York City as of December 3009.
We operated 25 clubs in the Boston region undeBoston Sports Clubs brand name, 18 clubs (twolatkvare
partly-owned) in the Washington, D.C. region under Washington Sports Clubs brand name and sixscdhuthe
Philadelphia region under our Philadelphia Spoftd€brand name as of December 31, 2009. In additie
operated three clubs in Switzerland as of Decer@beP009. We employ localized brand names for tubrscto
create an image and atmosphere consistent witlo¢hécommunity and to foster recognition as a loedwork of
quality fitness clubs rather than a national chain.

Throughout the year ended December 31, 2009, theiog U.S. and global economic recession has exbirit
declines in consumer confidence and economic grawthhas led to reduced consumer spending. Inianditoth
the number of competitors and the number of exgstiompetitor clubs offering lower pricing and redddevels of
service have been growing in our markets. The effethe economic recession and the growing cortipeti
contributed to an increase in member cancellatidesreases in new memberships and reductions émuevirom
ancillary services and marketing. During the yeatesl December 31, 2009 our member base decreased by
approximately 24,000 net members. While we do etiebbe our membership base will continue to de@edthese
rates, these factors have and could continue te hawadverse effect on our business and finanerébpnance.

In the year ended December 31, 2009, we recordpdiiment charges of $10.2 million related to the
development of GIMS, an internal-use software mije September 2009, the Company commencedtiibiga
against the vendor, Ajilon, which was developinig $oftware, alleging, among other things, bredatoatract. In
connection with this litigation, development ofglsioftware project ceased during the third quaft@009. It was
determined that it was not probable that the Compasuld continue with the development of this saftevand the
Company is currently exploring other options. SeteNs — Fixed Assets and Note 14 — Contingencigkdo
Company’s consolidated financial statements in Amaual Report for further details.

The results for the year ended December 31, 20f)dda the correction of an accounting error thaulted in ¢
cumulative pre-tax charge of $751,000 to payroll exlated expense and a related decrease in défegmbership
costs on our consolidated statement of operatindscansolidated balance sheet, respectively. Histidy, we
applied an accounting policy of capitalizing andrifamortizing membership consultardemmissions, bonuses &
a portion of their base salaries, and related taresbenefits, as direct costs of obtaining new bexs1 Company
policy limited the costs that could be capitalizedhe amount of initiation fee revenue deferredniew
memberships. The application of this policy reqdiius to make certain estimates. In connection avitbview of the
accounting treatment for membership consultantisalancluding the application of the accountiraiigy and
appropriateness of its estimate methodology, werdehed that our previous estimates were incork&et.
concluded that it was not clear whether any portibthe consultantdase salaries and the taxes and benefits r¢
to those base salaries should have been capitaliZeite we are no longer

34




Table of Contents

deferring a portion of membership consultants’ sedaand related taxes and benefits, we will catito defer
membership consultants’ commissions and bonusepamidns of taxes and benefits related to thosensizsions
and bonuses. See Note 2Gerrection of an Accounting Error to the consol@thfinancial statements in this Ann
Report for further details.

We are in the process of executing a number ofifkiéigtives identified in an environmental sustdiiidy
master plan in the areas of energy efficiency, mat@sumption, recycling and greenhouse gas rasudivhile
many of the programs are still in the planning sfage have already begun implementing recyclingliding
retro-fit projects and are preparing for a moreraggive roll-out in the months ahead. We belieesdtinitiatives
are helpful to enhancing the member and employper@ance while reducing our environmental impaais eertair
operating expenses.

Revenue and operating expenses
We consider that we have two principal sourcegeénue:

« Membership revenu¢ Our largest sources of revenue are dues andtioitifees paid by our members.
These dues and fees comprised 82.2% of our totahte for the year ended December 31, 2009. We
recognize revenue from membership dues in the meghén the services are rendered. Approximately%t
of our members pay their monthly dues by Electréninds Transfer, or EFT, while the balance is paid
annually in advance. We recognize revenue fronaiion fees over the expected average life of the
membership

« Ancillary club revenue For the year ended December 31, 2009, we genetat&% of our revenue from
personal training and 5.1% of our revenue from o#meillary programs and services consisting of
programming for children, group fitness traininglarther member activities, as well as sales of
miscellaneous sports produc

In addition, we receive revenue (approximately 1d@f6ur total revenue for the year ended December 3
2009) from the rental of space in our facilitieofmerators who offer wellness-related offeringghsas physical
therapy and juice bars. In addition, we sell inbchdvertising and sponsorships and generate marsgdees from
certain club facilities that we do not wholly owdve refer to this revenue as Fees and Other revenue.

Our performance is dependent on our ability to icomatly attract and retain members at our clubs. We
experience attrition at our clubs and must attn@et members in order to maintain our membershipranenue
levels. In the years ended December 31 2009 angl, 200 attrition rate was 45.2% and 40.2%, respelsti We
expect attrition to move closer to 2008 levels@ @ due to an improved member experience, a mabdized
economy and increased retention programs.

Our operating and selling expenses are compriseodtbffixed and variable costs. Fixed costs inclcidé and
supervisory and other salary and related expepnsespancy costs, including most elements of rdilitjes,
housekeeping and contracted maintenance expesses]las depreciation. Variable costs are primaglated to
payroll associated with ancillary club revenue, rhership sales compensation, advertising, certaititfarepairs
and club supplies.

General and administrative expenses include cekltsng to our centralized support functions, sash
accounting, insurance, information and communicasigstems, purchasing, member relations, legatandulting
fees and real estate development expenses. Pagbtelated expenses are included in a separatédim on the
consolidated statement of (loss) income and arénehtded in general and administrative expenses.

As clubs mature and increase their membership liaed, costs are typically spread over an increasavenue
base and operating margins tend to improve. Coalygerehen our membership base declines our opegratergins
are negatively impacted. During 2009, membershguatlubs open over 24 months decreased approaiyn@3%.
As consumer confidence and spending continues tmber pressure and the growth in the number opeditors
providing lower cost memberships with lower duesum markets continues continues, these negativebaeship
trends may continue. These membership base detiaesreduced our operating margins in 2009.
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Our primary capital expenditures relate to the tmiesion or acquisition of new club facilities andgrading
and expanding our existing clubs. The construciioth equipment costs vary based on the costs ofraotisn
labor, as well as the planned service offeringssinel and configuration of the facility. We perforautine
improvements at our clubs and partial replacemetiteofitness equipment each year for which wecareently
budgeting approximately 4.0% to 5.0% of projectedual revenue. Expansions of certain facilitiesedse
performed from time to time, when incremental sga@eomes available on acceptable terms and uidlizand
demand for the facility dictate. In this regard;ifidy remodeling is also considered where appratgeri

In the last two years, our operating income anth @asvs provided by operations have decreased0092
operating income decreased 76.8% from 2008 priyndrie to an overall decrease of earnings and immeaat
charges related to our internal-use software pt@jed on fixed assets at nine of our clubs. In 20p&rating
income decreased 43.3%from 2007 in large partageodwill and fixed asset impairment charges réedrin

2008.
2009 2008 2007
Operating incom: $ 7,628 $32,817 $57,84:
(Decrease) increase over prior per (76.%  (43.9% 9.1%
Net (loss) incom: $(5,66¢ $ 2,337  $13,64¢
Increase (decrease) over prior pel (342.5% (82.9%  193.1%
Cash flows provided by operating activit $76,24.  $95,62:  $82,74¢
(Decrease) increase over prior per (20.9% 15.6% 10.(%

Historically, we have focused on building or acigrclubs in areas where we believe the market is
underserved or where new clubs are intended tacepxisting clubs at their lease expiration. Basedur
experience, a new club tends to experience a sgnifincrease in revenues during its first threarg of operation
as it reaches maturity. Because there is relatiitly incremental cost associated with such iasieg revenue,
there is a greater proportionate increase in @doifity. We believe that the revenues and operadtingme of our
immature clubs will increase as they mature. Intiast, operating income margins may be negativajyaicted in
the near term by our new club openings. In 2009¢heed nine clubs with collectively marginal to eyerating
cash flow that, in many cases, were at or neaetigeof their leases. In several cases, we weretaltansfer many
of the members of those clubs to other clubs theesihancing overall profitability. While we do riatend to close
clubs in 2010 at this time, we will continue to opipinistically pursue closing underperforming clubs

As of December 31, 2009, 159 of the existing finelsibs were wholly-owned by us and our consolidlate
financial statements include the operating resflell such clubs. Two locations in Washington, Dw@re partly-
owned and operated by us, with our profit shariageentages approximating 20% (after priority digttions) and
45%, respectively, and are treated as unconsotligsdtéiates for which we apply the equity methddascounting.
In addition, we provide management services at fitmess clubs located in colleges and universitieshich we
have no equity interest.
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Comparable Club Revenue

We define comparable club revenue as revenue s¢ ttlabs that were operated by us for over 12 nscauthl
comparable club revenue increase (decrease) asuever the 13th month and thereafter as applicableompared
to the same period of the prior year.

Comparable Club Revenue
Increase (Decrease)

Quarter Full-Year

2007

Q1 7.8%

Q2 5.7%

Q3 4.1%

Q4 3.2% 5.2%
2008

Q1 4.5%

Q2 3.2%

Q3 2.2%

Q4 (1.4)% 2.2%
2009

Q1 (2.1)%

Q2 (6.9)%

Q3 (7.0%

Q4 (7.)% (5.6%

Key determinants of comparable club revenue ine®édecreases) are new memberships, member retentio
rates, pricing and ancillary revenue increasesrédaes).

As shown above, comparable club revenue has génbean trending downward since the first quarfe2@D7

In the year ended December 31, 2009, membersloipratomparable clubs decreased 5.2% as compatkd to
prior year. This decline in membership coupled weitipected decreases in personal training revenepescted to
be a contributing factor to decreases in comparahlerevenue and therefore operating margins I02We expec
the decreases in comparable club revenue to mederd010.

Historical Club Count
Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Wholly-owned clubs operated at beginning of pe 164 15¢ 147
New clubs opene 4 9 14
Clubs acquiret —  — 1
Clubs closed or relocatt 9 _»® O
Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of pel 15¢ 164 15¢
Partly-owned clubs operated at end of pel 2 2 2
Total clubs operated at end of perioc 161 16€ 161

(1) Includes wholly-owned and partly-owned clubs. ldi&idn, during 2008 and 2009 we managed four usier
fitness clubs in which we did not have an equitgiiest. During 2007, we managed five universityef#ts clubs
in which we did not have an equity intere
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain operatingedas a percentage of revenue for the periodsdtetic

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Revenue! 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Operating expense
Payroll and relate 39.¢ 38. 37.t
Club operating 36.¢ 34 33.1
General and administrati\ 6.5 6.7 7.4
Depreciation and amortizatic 11.7 10.4 9.7
Impairment of fixed asse 14 0.8 —
Impairment of interni-use softwar: 2.1 —
Impairment of goodwil — S8 —
Operating incom: 1.t 6.4 12.c
Loss on extinguishment of de — — 2.7
Interest expens 4.3 4.7 5.€
Interest incom (0.0 (0.1)) (0.2
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalime (0.4 (0.5 (0.9
(Loss) income before provision for corporate incamees (2.9 & 4.€
(Benefit) provision for corporate income ta (1.2 1.8 1.7
Net income (1.2 0.5 2.8

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Revenue (in $000s) was comprised of the followirfgr the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Change
Membership due $387,12: 79.71% $400,87: 79.1% (3.9%
Initiation fees 12,04¢ 2.5% 13,72: 2.7% (12.9%
Membership revenu 399,17: 82.2% 414,59 81.8% (3.7%
Personal training revent 56,97 11.7% 61,75: 12.2% (7.1%
Other ancillary club revent 24,58¢ 5.1% 24,32¢ 4.8% 1.1%
Ancillary club revenut 81,56( 16.£% 86,08: 17.(% (5.2%
Fees and other reven 4,661 1.C% 6,031 1.2% (22.7%
Total revenue $485,39. 100.% $506,70¢ 100.(% (4.2)%

Revenue decreased 4.2% in the year ended Decempb20® compared to the year ended December 38, 200
This decrease in revenue was driven primarily lgeline in membership revenue and ancillary cluemnee. For
the year ended December 31, 2009, revenues incr&49e6 million as compared to the year ended Dbeerdi,
2008 at the 13 clubs opened or acquired subsetu&@cember 31, 2007. For the year ended Decenih@0B9,
revenue decreased 6.8% or $32.7 million at ourschgened or acquired prior to December 31, 2007 and
$8.2 million at the 13 clubs that were closed sghset to December 31, 2007.
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Comparable club revenue decreased 5.6% for theeymbad December 31, 2009 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2008. Of this 5.6% decrease, 2.5%dwa$o a decrease in membership, 1.2% was duddoraase
in price and 1.9% was due to a decrease in ancitlab revenue and fees and other revenue.

Our onetime member initiation fees and a portion of raedad@ect expenses, up to the amount of those fiwiti
fees, are deferred and recognized on a straightblsis in operations over the estimated membelifhijsee
Note 3— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to tensolidated financial statements in this Annual
Report. Effective April 1, 2009, we changed théneated life of our memberships from 30 months tar&hths.
The change in estimated membership life is prifighue to an unfavorable trend in membership rat@rrates,
and it has the effect of increasing initiation feegenue recognized in the current period becass®der
amortization period is being applied resulting m&00,000 increase in initiation fee revenue recal in the year
ended December 31, 2009 when compared to theywar

Personal training revenue decreased 7.7% for thegreded December 31, 2009 compared to the prior Yée
attribute this decrease primarily to reduced corauspending.

Fees and other revenue decreased 22.7% in theydad December 31, 2009 compared to the prior year
primarily due to a decrease in marketing revenueigged by our in-club advertising programs.

Operating expenses (in $°000s) were comprised ofdhollowing for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 $ Variance % Variance
Payroll and relate $193,89: $193558( $ 311 0.2%
Club operating 178,85«  172,40¢ 6,44¢ 3.7%
General and administrati 31,58% 33,95: (2,36%) (7.0%
Depreciation and amortizatic 56,53: 52,47¢ 4,05¢ 7.7%
Impairment of fixed asse 6,70¢ 3,861 2,841 73.5%
Impairment of internally developed softwz 10,19« — 10,19« NA
Impairment of goodwil — 17,60¢ (17,609 NA
Operating expenst $477,76° $473,89: $ 3,87¢ 0.8%

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@0B®, were impacted by an 8.2% increase in totd clu
usage year over year and a 1.8% increase in thlenboinths of club operation from 1,935 to 1,97@, ¢fffects of
which are included in the additional descriptiofisltanges in operating expenses below.

Payroll and related. This change was primarily impacted by the follogui

« In 2008, we began discounting our member initiafews in an effort to drive membership sales. Gayrqll
costs related to new membership contracts thatefer dre limited to the amount of these initiatieas, thus
causing an increase of approximately $1.8 milliocurrent payroll expense, net of club commissemds
bonuses, in the year ended December 31, 2009. &ee3N—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
the consolidated financial statements in this AthiRegport.

* In December 2009, we made an adjustment to coareatcounting error related to deferred membership
costs. The correction of the error, which incregsagroll expense by $751,000 in the three montlivder
ended December 31, 2009, represented the net clivewdajustment for the years ended December 315 20
through December 31, 2009. See Note 2 — Correcti@m Accounting Error to our consolidated finamhcia
statements in this Annual Report for further dsti

« Effective April 1, 2009, we changed the estimatesinmbership life from 30 months to 28 months. This
change resulted in an increase in payroll expeh$&58,000 when compared to the same period iptioe
year.

» Severance charges increased $781,000 principdditeceto a reduction in force in January 2C

These increases were partially offset by a decrieazecillary club payroll of $2.9 million directiselated to th
decrease in ancillary club revenue.
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As a percentage of total revenue, payroll andedlakpenses increased to 39.9% in the year ended
December 31, 2009 from 38.2% in the prior year.

Club operating. This change was primarily impacted by the follogyi

» Rent and occupancy expenses increased $7.8 miRtient and occupancy costs increased $4.9 million at
clubs that opened after December 31, 2007, $3I18®mé#t our clubs that opened prior to December28D;7
and $441,000 at our laundry facility in Elmsfordy Nn addition, in the year ended December 31, 2069
recorded early lease termination costs of $1.3anilht five clubs which were closed prior to tHemse
expiration dates. Rent and occupancy expensesatett&2.5 million, excluding rent penalties, atdubs
that were closed after December 31, 2(

» Operating expenses relating to laundry and towetsehsed $1.2 million primarily related to the dpgrof
our laundry facility in ElImsford, NY in January 28(

As a percentage of total revenue, club operatimpgeses increased to 36.9% in the year ended Dec&hpe
2009 from 34.0% in the prior year.

General and administrative.This decrease was principally attributable t@a@$nillion decrease in general
liability insurance expense. Our claims experieactivity has been decreasing as a percentage aéveanue,
resulting in a decreased loss trend rate, and tiethsan related claims reserves requirementsdtition, we
reduced our insurance reserves because we havedtairas exposure as a result of a decrease inuher of
memberships. The remainder of the expense decnesdue to cost reduction efforts realized withanious
general and administrative expense accounts, imguthta and phone lines, office supplies and tréhsea
percentage of total revenue, general and admitiisgraxpenses decreased slightly to 6.5% in 200 8.7% in the
prior year.

Depreciation and amortization.The increase in depreciation and amortizatioreagps was principally due to
the acceleration of depreciation related to clubsed prior to their lease expiration dates in 2808 to the 13 clut
that opened after December 31, 2007. We also baég@areciating the new laundry facility and corpormltfice in
Elmsford, NY, which opened in January 2009.

Impairment of fixed assetsln the year ended December 31, 2009, we recdixked asset impairment charges
totaling $6.7 million, which represented the writifs of fixed assets at nine underperforming cligring the year
ended December 31, 2008, we recorded an impairoenbf $755,000 on fixed assets of a remote ¢labdid not
benefit from being part of a regional cluster aidirtbt sustain profitable membership levels gives competition
in its market and $1.2 million related to the pladrelosures of two clubs prior to their lease eatfn dates.

Impairment of internal-use softwareln the year ended December 31, 2009, we recdmdedirment charges
$10.2 million related to an internal-use softwargjgct. Although the software project was not yanpleted, we
determined that it is not probable that we will tione in the development of this project due todieg litigation.
See Note 5 — Fixed Assets and Note 14 — Contingsrtoi the Compang’consolidated financial statements in
Annual Report for further details.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $2.9 million or 12.8%m $23.9 million to $21.0 million for the year et
December 31, 2009 compared to the same perioeipribr year. This decrease is a result of the tovaeiable rate
of interest on our Term Loan Facility during theayended December 31, 2009 period. For the yeadend
December 31, 2008, the average variable interesprathe Term Loan Facility was approximately 4, 9%hile the
average variable interest rate for the year endszéBber 31, 2009 was approximately 2.2%.

Provision (Benefit) for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded a benefit for corporate income taxekbd million for the year ended December 31, 2009
compared to a provision of $9.2 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008, calculated using thep@owis
effective tax rate. For the year ended Decembe2309 we recognized a $637,000 charge for the tritaited
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earnings of our non-U.S. subsidiaries since we dmpse to reinvest those earnings in the U.S. 2009, we
recognized state tax benefits of $1.2 million rdbto self-insurance.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Revenue (in $°000s) was comprised of the followirfgr the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Growth
Membership due $400,87- 79.1% $374,63: 79.2% 7.C%
Initiation fees 13,72 2.7% 12,31t 2.€% 11.4%
Membership revenu 414,59 81.6% 386,94t 81.8% 7.1%
Personal training revent 61,75: 12.2% 56,10¢ 11.% 10.1%
Other ancillary club revent 24,32¢ 4.8% 24,24, 5.1% 0.2%
Ancillary club revenut 86,08! 17.(% 80,35: 17.(% 7.1%
Fees and other reven 6,031 1.2% 5,61¢ 1.2% 7.4%
Total revenue $506,70¢ 100.% $472,91! 100.(% 7.1%

Revenue increased $33.8 million, or 7.1%, to $506llion for the year ended December 31, 2008 from
$472.9 million for the year ended December 31, 20Wifs increase in revenue was driven primarilygbywth in
membership dues and personal training revenuethegrear ended December 31, 2008, revenues indrease
$3.6 million, or 0.8%, at our clubs opened or acegliprior to December 31, 2006 and increased $8ilibn at the
24 clubs opened or acquired subsequent to Decedib@006. These increases in revenue were offsat by
$6.1 million revenue decrease related to the seldrs that were closed subsequent to December0BB, 2

Comparable club revenue increased 2.2% for thegmeded December 31, 2008. Of this 2.2% increadép 1.
was due to an increase in membership, 0.6% wasodare increase in price and 0.5% was due to aeaserin
ancillary club revenue and fees and other revedoiever, in part as a result of the current ecorcand consume
environment, we experienced higher member attriiod lower average revenue per member in 2008ith2007.
As a result, for the year ended December 31, 20@8comparable club revenue growth was 2.2%, sedser
compared to 5.2% for the year ended December 37.20e experienced a comparable club revenue decrda
1.4% in the fourth quarter of 2008, and we expeatarable club revenue to continue to decreaseghaut 2009.

Operating expenses (in $'000s) were comprised ofatollowing for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 $ Variance % Variance
Payroll and relate $193,58( $177,35° $ 16,22 9.1%
Club operating 172,40¢  156,66( 15,74¢ 10.1%
General and administrati 33,95 35,09: (1,140 3.2%
Depreciation and amortizatic 52,47¢ 45,96¢ 6,511 14.2%
Impairment of fixed asse 3,861 — 3,861 N/A
Impairment of goodwil 17,60¢ — 17,60¢ N/A
Operating expenst $473,89. $415,07. $ 58,81¢ 14.2%
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Operating expenses increased in 2008 due to tlevioh factors:

Payroll and related. The increase in 2008 was attributable to a 7168teise in the total months of club
operation from 1,799 to 1,935 and discounting afraember initiation fees. We discounted our new inem
initiation fees in 2008 in an effort to drive memdl@p sales. Our deferred payroll costs relatetete membership
contracts are limited to the amount of these itiittafees, thus causing an increase in currentgbagxpense of
approximately $6.0 million when compared to thepyiear. In addition, payroll costs directly rethte our
personal training, group fitness training and paogming for children increased $5.1 million, or 24,lprincipally
due to the increase in revenue related to theggaums. As a percentage of total revenue, payrdllralated
expenses increased to 38.2% in the year ended ecedh, 2008 from 37.5% in the prior year.

Club operating. The increase in 2008 was primarily due to thiofaoihg:

* Rent and occupancy expenses increased $11.5 millid008. Rent and occupancy costs increased
$9.9 million at clubs that opened in 2008 and 260that are currently under construction. Renteased
$2.3 million at our clubs opened prior to 2007. Remd occupancy expenses decreased $939,000 etibar
that were closed during 2007 and 2C

« Utilities, consisting of electric, gas, and oil exses, increased $2.4 million in 2008 primarily tuéve
clubs added in 2008, net of closures and 12 clddedin the fourth quarter of 2007, net of closu

* Cleaning, laundry and towel expenses increasedr#illi®n in 2008 due to new club openings, an irseir
the number of clubs that used an outsourced lausenice, as well as an overall increase in merolodér
usage of 13.4%

» Advertising and marketing expenses decreased $Hlidmio $7.9 million in 2008 from $10.3 milliomi
2007 primarily due to a reduction in general awassradvertising in 200

As a percentage of total revenue, club operatimpgeses increased to 34.0% in the year ended Dec&hpe
2008 from 33.1% in the prior year.

Depreciation and amortization.The increase in 2008 was principally due to costted to expanded clubs
and nine new clubs opened in the year ended Decge3ith@008. Offsetting these increases are inserpniceeds
of approximately $600,000 received for fixed ast@hages at two of our clubs.

Impairment of fixed assetsDuring the year ended December 31, 2008, we decbfixed asset impairment
charges of $3.9 million. There were charges of $2illion on fixed assets at six of our underperforgclubs and
$1.2 million related to the planned closures of thdds prior to the lease expiration dates. Thezeewno such
charges in the year ended December 31, 2007.

Impairment of goodwill: During the year ended December 31, 2008, we decoa goodwill impairment
charge of $17.6 million. The Company performedraarim impairment test as of December 31, 2008 and
concluded that goodwill of $15.8 million of goodirdlssociated with the Boston Sports Clubs repottimitywas
impaired and $1.8 million of goodwill at two of thieree Outlier Clubs that did not benefit from lgepart of
regional clusters was impaired. The Company dichaet a goodwill impairment charge in the New Y8gorts
Clubs reporting unit given the profitability of thunit.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

For the year ended December 31, 2007, loss ongexsihment of debt was $12.5 million. The proceedsf
the 2007 Senior Credit Facility obtained on Feby®f, 2007 were used to repay $170.0 million, repnéing the
remaining outstanding principal of the 2003 SeNotes. We incurred $8.8 million of tender premiund $215,00
of call premium together with $335,000 of fees ardenses related to the tender of the 2003 SemitasNNet
deferred financing costs related to the 2003 Sewaies and the related facility totaling approxietat$3.2 million
were expensed in the first quarter of 2007. Thexs=wmo such costs in the year ended December 88, 20
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Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $2.5 million, or 9.8%the year ended December 31, 2008 compared tgetire
ended December 31, 2007. This decrease is a tdghlt February 27, 2007 refinancing of the 2008i@eNotes
with our $185.0 million term loan facility (the “Tfim Loan Facility”), at a variable rate. For the yeaded
December, 2007, the average variable interestwaseapproximately 7.7%, while the average variatikrest rate
for the year ended December 31, 2008 decreasqiptoxamately 4.8%.

Interest Income

Interest income decreased $752,000, or 70.2%héyear ended December 31, 2008 compared to the yea
ended December 31, 2007 due to a decrease indhtates, as well as a decrease in the monthlyagearash
balance.

Provision for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax provision of $9.2 millfionthe year ended December 31, 2008 compared to
$8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2@alulated using the Company’s effective tax rbte.the year
ended December 31, 2008 we recognized a $4.7 miharge for the non-deductible goodwill impairmehtlubs
that were acquired in stock-based transactionsiirBoston Sports Clubs region. Also in 2008, weoggized state
tax benefits of $1.3 million related to self-insnca. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we memaha
$251,000 tax benefit principally related to Federaployment credits and relief for federal surcleargn our
communication expenses previously incurred. Alsada7, we recognized state tax benefits of $941r6ed to
self-insurance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have satisfied our liquidity negtisough cash generated from operations and various
borrowing arrangements. Principal liquidity needsédincluded the acquisition and development of alelvs, debt
service requirements and other capital expenditueesssary to upgrade, expand and renovate exdtibg.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities for ylear ended December 31, 2009 was
$76.2 million compared to $95.6 million for the yesaded December 31, 2008, a decrease of 20.3% d€krease
was primarily related to a decrease in overall iegs Also contributing to the decrease were tifieces of an
increase in cash paid for interest and reductiomeferred revenue. Total cash paid for interesemsed
$3.8 million to $13.8 million. Deferred revenue desed $8.2 million in the year ended Decembe2B029 and
$4.2 million in the prior year. In 2009, we had tatunds, net of tax payments, of $3.9 million wehih 2008 we ha
tax payments, net of refunds, of $15.9 milliondorincrease in cash of $19.8 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2008 increased 15.6% from
$82.7 million for the year ended December 31, 20@fal cash paid for interest decreased $7.1 milim
$10.0 million. Cash paid for income taxes decre&ze# million to $15.9 million for the year ende@d@mber 31,
2008.

Investing Activities. Investing activities in the year ended Decemler2®09 consisted primarily of expanding
and remodeling existing clubs and the purchasewffitness equipment. Net cash used in investitigiaes
decreased 48.2% or $45.8 million in the year erfi@ecember 31, 2009 compared to the year ended Dexedib
2008. During the year ended December 31, 2009 peet$23.4 million to upgrade existing clubs, $1®i6ion for
growth capital expenditures primarily related tobs added in 2008 and 2009, $4.6 million to enhance
management information systems and $4.7 milliortHerconstruction of corporate offices and the detign of ou
new regional laundry facility in our New York Spei€lubs market. These expenditures were fundecbly ftow
provided by operations, available cash on hand tanithe extent needed, borrowings from the Revghioan
Facility.

For the year ending December 31, 2010, we currghdly to invest $34.0 million to $37.0 million iauital
expenditures. We expect that this 2010 amountimdllide $25.0 million to continue to upgrade exigtclubs and
$7.0 million principally related to major renovat®at clubs with recent lease renewals and upgyailinin-club
entertainment system network. We expect to inve$l fillion related to enhance our management méion
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systems. These expenditures will be funded by flashprovided by operations, available cash on hand, to the
extent needed, borrowings from the $63.8 milliowéeing Loan Facility.

Net cash used in investing activities was $95.lianiland $97.2 million for the years ended Decen83gr200¢
and 2007, respectively. During the year ended Dbeerdl, 2008, we spent $23.6 million on upgradixigtang
clubs, $9.1 million to enhance our management métion systems, $5.7 million for the constructiédmmew
regional laundry facility in our New York Sportsu®ls market and the remaining $57.8 million for binéding of
new clubs or the expansion of existing clubs. Ve atceived $1.1 million in insurance proceedsrdyutihe year
ended December 31, 2008.

Financing Activities. Net cash related to financing activities decrda&l.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009 compared to the year ended Dexe3tihp2008. In the year ended December 31, 2089, w
repaid the outstanding borrowings under our Rengh@redit Facility of $19.0 million compared to retrrowings
in the year ended December 31, 2008 of $10.0 millio 2009 we paid $5.4 million related to repusdmof
2.1 million shares of our common stock compare®4t® million for the year ended December 31, 2B08ceeds
related to the exercise of stock options decre&&e?imillion in 2009 compared to 2008. In both peanded
December 31, 2009 and 2008, we made $1.9 milliguriatipal payments on our outstanding Term Loans.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $#iRion for the year ended December 31, 2008 compan
$12.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2@0decrease of $8.7 million. For the year endeceBéer 31,
2008, we paid $4.6 million related to repurchadek ® million shares of our common stock. Thereeven commo
stock repurchases in the year ended December 8%, #0r the year ended December 31, 2008, we isedsthe
outstanding borrowings under our Revolving Creditifty by $10.0 million, and made $1.9 million pifincipal
payments on our outstanding Term Loans.

On February 1, 2009, our Senior Discount Notes ineclly accreted with an outstanding balance of
$138.5 million. Semannual cash interest payments of $7.6 million comoad on August 1, 2009. In the year er
December 31, 2009, the August 1, 2009 interest payiwf $7.6 million represented a single semi-ahpagment.
In the year ending December 31, 2010, there aresemu-annual payments scheduled, which will reisudin
increase in cash paid for interest of $7.6 mill@nour Senior Discount Notes.

We refinanced our debt on February 27, 2007. Th@meeeds after issuance costs from the 2007 6€néalit
Facility of $182.4 million were used to repay teenaining principal of $170.0 million of the 2003n8® Notes. In
addition, in the year ended December 31, 2007, aic g premium and fees in connection with the gxtishment
of debt of $9.3 million. These transactions accedrfor a $3.0 million increase in cash relatedrarfcing activitie:
for the year ended December 31, 2007. There wés9arfillion decrease in cash received upon theotsesiof stocl
options in the year ended December 31, 2008 whempared to the year ended December 31, 2007.

February 4, 2004 Senior Discount Notes

On February 4, 2004, TSI Holdings completed anroffeof the Senior Discount Notes that will matime
February 2014. These Senior Discount Notes ardghylrdaded. No cash interest was required to be paor to
August 2009. The accreted value of each discouetinareased from the date of issuance until Feprua2009, at
a rate of 11.0% per annum compounded semi-annaiatlyis currently at the fully accreted principaluea Since
February 1, 2009, interest on the Senior Discowteblis being accrued and is payable semi-annimadiyrears
February 1 and August 1 of each year, and comme#fwagdst 1, 2009. The discount notes are strucgurall
subordinated and effectively rank junior to all@btiedness of TSI, LLC. The debt of TSI Holdingeas guaranteed
by TSI, LLC and TSI Holdings relies on the caswioof TSI, LLC, subject to restrictions containedhe indentur
governing the Senior Discount Notes, to servicelést.

The indenture governing our Senior Discount Notagains, among other things, covenants that mdsices
our ability to finance future operations or capitakds or to engage in other business activities.ifdenture
governing our Senior Discount Notes restricts, agnather things, our ability and the ability of aestricted
subsidiaries to: incur additional indebtedness; gimidends or make distributions; purchase or redstock; make
investments and extend credit; engage in trangactigth affiliates; engage in sale-leaseback tretitsas;
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consummate certain asset sales; effect consolidationerger or sell, transfer, lease or otherwispase of all or
substantially all of our assets; and create lienewr assets.

The covenant contained in the indenture limiting ithcurrence of additional indebtedness allowsGbmpany
to incur such indebtedness provided that the Cosnpélhcontinue to be in compliance with a “fixetharge
coverage ratio” of greater than 2.00 to 1.00. Tuenture does, however, allow the Company andilisidiaries to
incur certain “permitted indebtedness” without nely the fixed charge coverage ratio. The fixedrgk coverage
ratio is defined as the ratio of consolidated eaysibefore interest, taxes, and depreciation araiteaation to
consolidated interest expense with certain adjustsn® these items as specified in the indentuegéed@nce should
be made to the indenture for the detailed defingiof the defined terms used for purposes of ttediftharge
coverage ratio (see Exhibit 4.1 to this Report)Datember 31, 2009, our fixed charge coverage, rasi¢alculated
for purposes of the indenture, was 3.93 to 1.00.

2003 Senior Credit Facility

On April 16, 2003, the Company successfully congaled refinancing of its debt. This refinancing urgd an
offering of $255.0 million of the 9 5 / 8% Seniootés (the “2003 Senior Notes”) that would have metuApril 15,
2011 and the entering into of a senior securedvagcredit facility (the “2003 Senior Credit Féty") that would
have expired on April 15, 2008. Effective July 808, the 2003 Senior Credit Facility was amenddddrease
permitted borrowings from $50.0 million to $75.0llioi.

On June 8, 2006, the Company paid $93.0 millioreteem $85.0 million of the outstanding princip&the
2003 Senior Notes, together with $6.8 million oflgéermination fees and $1.2 million of accruetknest. Deferre
financing costs totaling $1.6 million were writteff and fees totaling $222,000 were incurred inreation with
this early extinguishment.

2007 Senior Credit Facility

On February 27, 2007, TSI, LLC entered into the@@@énillion 2007 Senior Credit Facility. The 200&rftor
Credit Facility consisted of a Term Loan Facilitiye $75.0 million Revolving Loan Facility and arciemental terr
loan commitment facility in the maximum amount d0$.0 million, under which borrowing is subject to
compliance with certain conditions precedent by, TEIC and agreement upon certain terms and comditibereof
between the participating lenders and TSI, LLC. Rie®olving Loan Facility replaced the previouslystixg
revolving credit facility of $75.0 million that was mature on April 15, 2008.

A portion of the proceeds were used to purchasé.$1@illion aggregate principal amount of the 2@ior
Notes outstanding on February 27, 2007 and thenbalaf the proceeds were irrevocably depositeah iesgron
account to purchase the remaining $4.5 millionetbgr with a call premium of $200,000, on April 2807, the
redemption date. Accrued interest on the 2003 $é&intes totaling $6.0 million was also paid at aigs The
Company incurred $8.8 million of tender premium apgroximately $300,000 fees and expenses relatdubt
tender of the 2003 Senior Notes.

Deferred financing costs related to the 2003 Sedaies totaling approximately $3.2 million were erped in
the first quarter of 2007.

As a result of an amendment to the 2007 SenioriCradility on July 15, 2009 (the “Amendment”), tiatal
amount of borrowings under the Revolving Loan Fgoivas reduced by 15% from $75.0 million to $668lion.
Additionally, the Company incurred an aggregataggroximately $615,000 in fees and expenses relatdte
Amendment. See Note 8 — Long-Term Debt to the Camisaconsolidated financial statements in this Aainu
Report for further detalils.

As of December 31, 2009, TSI, LLC had $179.9 millautstanding under the Term Loan Facility. Bornoys
under the Term Loan Facility, at TSI, LLC’s optidrear interest at either the administrative agdrase rate plus
0.75% or its Eurodollar rate plus 1.75%, each dimelé in the 2007 Senior Credit Facility. As of [@eaber 31,
2009, TSI, LLC had elected the Eurodollar rate@ptiequal to 2.1% as of December 31, 2009. Intesdstlated
under the base rate option would have equaled 4986 December 31, 2009, if TSI, LLC had electas diption.
The Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier ¢f@bruary 27, 2014 or (b) August 1, 2013 if th@iSeDiscount
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Notes are still outstanding. TSI, LLC is requiredépay 0.25% of principal, or $462,500, per quaaiarterly
principal payments began on June 30, 2007 andré#litn has been paid as of December 31, 2009.

The Revolving Loan Facility expires on February 2012 and borrowings under the facility currendly TSI,
LLC’s option, bear interest at either the admimistre agens base rate plus 1.25% or its Eurodollar rate pIa§%.
each as defined in the 2007 Senior Credit Facili§l, LLC’s applicable base rate and Eurodollae ragargins, and
commitment commission percentage, vary with oursotidated secured leverage ratio, as defined i200F
Senior Credit Facility. TSI, LLC is required to paycommitment fee of 0.50% per annum on the dailytilized
amount.

TSI, LLC’s applicable base rate and Eurodollar ragrgins and commitment commission percentage wity
the Company’s consolidated secured leverage ralie following table summarizes the interest rategina and
commitment commission percentages applicable eetheparate secured ratio levels as follows:

Revolving Loans Applicable
Base Commitment
Rate Eurodollar Commission
Level Secured Leverage Ratic Margin Margin Percentage
3 Greater than 1.50 to 1.( 1.25% 2.25% 0.5(%
2 Greater than 1.00 to 1.00 but equal to or less 1had to 1.0( 1.0(% 2.0(% 0.5(%
1 Equal to or less than 1.00 to 1. 0.75% 1.7%% 0.37%%

The Company has been within the Level 3 range gntering into the Revolving Loan Facility in 208rid
expects to be in this range throughout 2010.

The 2007 Credit Agreement contains a covenantéuatires us to comply with a “total leverage ratd’hot
greater than 4:25 to 1:00 during any period in Wwhiorrowings or letters of credit are outstandinger the
Revolving Loan Facility. The total leverage ratadiefined as the ratio of consolidated indebtedfesduding the
Senior Discount Notes and certain contingent olitiga) to consolidated earnings before intereggdaand
depreciation and amortization (with adjustmentstifansaction expenses relating to the repaymettiso2003
Senior Credit Facility and certain other debt, mash deferred compensation expense relating tarissuor
repurchase of stock options and other equity ister@nd deferred rent expense in addition to iceother items).
Reference should be made to the 2007 Credit Agreefoethe detailed definitions of the defined terosed for
purposes of the total leverage ratio (see Exhibit 1o this Annual Report). At December 31, 2004, total
leverage ratio, as calculated for purposes of 68¥ Zredit Agreement, was 2.31 to 1.00.

There were no borrowings outstanding under the RangLoan Facility at December 31, 2009. The agadbie
interest rate at December 31, 2009 was 4.5% arsfamating letters of credit issued totaled $14.2ionil The
unutilized portion of the Revolving Loan Facilitg af December 31, 2009 was $49.5 million.

In addition, our operations are conducted throughsabsidiaries and our ability to make paymentsuam
outstanding Senior Discount Notes is dependenherarnings and distribution of funds from our #dibsies;
however, our subsidiaries are not obligated to nfakds available to us for payment on the outstaspn&ienior
Discount Notes. The terms of the indenture goveroinr Senior Discount Notes and the 2007 SeniodiCFacility
significantly restrict the payment of dividendsum: Our subsidiaries are permitted under the tefrttse 2007
Senior Credit Facility and the indenture governing Senior Discount Notes to incur additional indelmess that
may severely restrict or prohibit the payment efidinds by such subsidiaries to us. Our substadetiatage may
impair our financial condition and we may incurrgficant additional debt (see “ltem 1A. Risk Fast)r

The 2007 Credit Agreement contains covenants imgyéimong others, limitations on the Compangnd eac
of its subsidiaries’ ability to: create, incur, asg or be liable for indebtedness (other than icetypes of permitted
indebtedness); dispose of assets outside the oydinarse (subject to certain exceptions); acquirerge or
consolidate with or into another person or entithér than certain types of permitted acquisitiposgate, incur or
allow any lien on any of its property (except fertain permitted liens); make investments (othantbertain types
of investments); or pay dividends or make distiitmg (each subject to certain limitations). In diddi, the 2007
Credit Agreement provides for certain events ohdifsuch as nonpayment of principal and
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interest when due thereunder, breaches of repatg®a™® and warranties, noncompliance with covenaats of
insolvency, default on indebtedness held by thadips and the occurrence of a change of control.

As of December 31, 2009, we were in compliance withdebt covenants in the 2007 Credit Agreemedt an
given our operating plans and expected performéoc2010, we expect we will continue to be in corapte durin
2010. These covenants may limit TSI, LLC’s abitityincur additional debt. As of December 31, 208&mitted
borrowing capacity of $63.8 million was not redieit by the covenants.

As of December 31, 2009, we had $138.5 million efiSr Discount Notes outstanding.
As of December 31, 2009, we had $10.8 million aficand cash equivalents.

We recognize revenue from personal training sessasrthe services are performed (i.e., when trecses
trained). Unused personal training sessions exfies a set, disclosed period of time after pureh&ecently, the
State of New York has informed us that it is cutisenonsidering whether we are required to remst aimount
received by us for unused, expired personal trgisgssions to the State of New York as unclaimepesty. We
currently have between $10.0 million and $15.0iomllof unused and expired personal training sessife have
not recognized any revenue from these sessionbarelrecorded the amounts as deferred revenue oWetd
believe that these amounts are subject to the asokat or abandoned property laws of any statéydimgy the Stat
of New York. However, in the event that a stateluding the State of New York, does not agree withposition,
we ultimately may be forced to remit all or a pontiof these amounts to such state.

Consolidated Debt

As of December 31, 2009, our total consolidated dets $318.4 million. This substantial amount dbtdeould
have significant consequences, including:

« making it more difficult to satisfy our obligatior
« increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneooic conditions

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financing fund future working capital, capital expendésiy
acquisitions of new clubs and other general cotpaeguirements

* requiring cash flow from operations for the paymeininterest on our credit facility and our 11% ®en
Discount Notes and reducing our ability to use @ash flow to fund working capital, capital expendits,
acquisitions of new clubs and general corporatairements; ani

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmhinh we
operate

These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveraged
competitors.

We believe that we have, or will be able to, obtaigenerate sufficient funds to finance our curogrerating
and growth plans through the end of 2010. Any ni@tacceleration or expansion of our plans throngily
constructed clubs or acquisitions (to the extenhsacquisitions include cash payments) may reaisr® pursue
additional sources of financing prior to the en@010. There can be no assurance that such firagihbe
available, or that it will be available on accep¢atierms.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The aggregate long-term debt and operating ledsgatibns as of December 31, 2009 were as follows:

Payments Due by Period (in (0C's)

Less than After
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term deb $ 31836 $ 1.85( $ 3,70 $312,81: $ —
Interest payments on lo-term debt(1 78,59( 18,92: 37,72¢ 21,94( —
Operating lease obligations( 844,91: 82,02¢ 159,74 146,20¢ 456,92
Total contractual cash obligatio $1,241,86. $102,79¢ $201,17¢ $480,96. $456,92°

Notes:

(1) Includes 11% annual interest on the Senior Discbimtes and variable interest on the 2007 Term Lssility
using the rate of as of December 31, 2009 of 2

(2) Operating lease obligations include base rent dbdytain leases provide for additional rent bagsedeal estate
taxes, common area maintenance and defined amioasésl on the operating results of the les

The following long-term liabilities included on tleensolidated balance sheet are excluded fronathle t
above: income taxes (including uncertain tax posg), insurance accruals and other accruals. Thep@oy is
unable to estimate the timing of payments for thtsmas.

Throughout 2009, the ongoing U.S. and global ecaoaoetession has resulted in additional significant
pressures and declines in consumer confidence@mbmic growth. These economic conditions haveded
reduced consumer spending and have contributenl itcceease in member cancellations, decreasesann ne
memberships and reductions in revenue from angiiarvices and marketing. These economic conditongd
continue to adversely affect our industry, busireess results of operations.

These economic conditions have also resultedightening of the credit markets, including lending
financial institutions, which are the source ofditéor our borrowing and a source of our liquidityis difficult to
predict how long the current economic and capital eredit market conditions will continue; howeviégurrent
levels of economic and capital and credit markédtidy continue or worsen, there can be no assteahat we wil
not experience further adverse impact, which masnbaterial to our business and therefore our restiligperations
and liquidity, including our ability to borrow undthe Revolving Loan Facility. An affiliate of CIGroup Inc., The
CIT Group Equipment Finance Inc., is one of theless under the Revolving Credit Facility, havingyded a
commitment of $4.3 million of the $63.8 million. Qdovember 1, 2009, CIT Group Inc. (“CIT"), filedpetition
under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code withW.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern DistoicNew
York. On December 10, 2009, CIT confirmed thatatilemerged from bankruptcy. A CIT subsidiary, TH€ C
Group Equipment Finance, Inc. (“CIT Financing”oise of the lenders under our Revolving Credit Rgcihaving
provided a commitment of $4.3 million, of which amounts were outstanding as of December 31, 20@®ough
we have made no request for funding under the Ran@[Credit Facility since the filing of the banktay petition
by CIT, it is uncertain whether CIT Financing wilhrticipate in any future requests for funding dvether another
lender might assume its commitments. Consequentlyability to borrow under the Revolving Loan Hi#gimay
be adversely impacted. Based on information avigilabus, we do not expect that any of the othwarfcial
institutions that are a party to our 2007 SeniaditrFacility would be unable to fulfill their olglations thereunder
as of the filing date of this Annual Report.

Our Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier dbfeery 27, 2014, or August 1, 2013 if the 11% Senio
Discount Notes are still outstanding as of thaedatd the Revolving Loan will mature in 2012. OL#d Senior
Discount Notes will mature in 2014. We expect iin@nce our outstanding indebtedness under theaagaments
with new indebtedness prior to their maturity dafidse availability of refinancing will depend orvariety of
factors, such as economic and market conditiorsinbas performance, the availability of credit and credit
ratings, as well as the lenders’ perception ofpttspects of our company or our industry gener&lig. may not be
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able to successfully obtain any necessary refimgnen favorable terms, including interest rates famahcial and
other covenants, or at all. In that event, our fiess$ and financial condition may be materially asiely affected.

In recent years, we have typically operated wittoaking capital deficit. We had a working capita&fitit of
$46.6 million at December 31, 2009, as comparel $6{7.2 million at December 31, 2008. Major compusef
our working capital deficit on the current liabjliside are deferred revenues, accrued expensésdiimg, among
others, accrued construction in progress and eanprpayroll and occupancy costs) and the curreriiqn of long-
term debt. These current liabilities more thanetftae main current assets, which consist of cadicash
equivalents, accounts receivable, and prepaid exgsesind other current assets. Payments underhengutrent
liability for deferred revenue are generally noldh&s cash and cash equivalents, but rather acefaséhe
Company’s business needs, including financing amdsting commitments, which use contributes toabeking
capital deficit. The deferred revenue liabilityatels to dues and services paid-in-full in advamekimitiation fees
paid at the time of enrollment and totaled $35.Bioni and $40.3 million at December 31, 2009 ana@¢@&weber 31
2008, respectively. Initiation fees received arfeeded and amortized over a 28-month period, wiégresents the
estimated membership life of a club member. Prega&s are generally realized over a period of up/édve
months, while fees for prepaid services normallyraalized over a period of one to nine monthgdmods when
we increase the number of clubs open and consdyuectease the level of payments received in adeawe
anticipate that we will continue to have deferredemue balances at levels similar to or greater thase currently
maintained. By contrast, any decrease in demanduioservices or reductions in initiation fees ecled would hay
the effect of reducing deferred revenue balancaghwwould likely require us to rely more heavily other sources
of funding. The Company’s club growth plans hawev&d from net club openings of five in 2008 to cletb
closures of five in 2009. This decrease in numlbetubs is expected to result in a decrease imthiking capital
deficit. In addition, there has been a decreasmih personal training and initiation fees, whies lalso contributed
to decreased deferred revenue. In either casgndisant portion of the deferred revenue is nqtesnted to
constitute a liability that must be funded with lta&t the time a member joins our club, we incuroiment costs, .
portion of which are deferred over 28 months. Thassts are recorded as a long-term asset and lasdauoot
offset the working capital deficit. We expect teaoed a working capital deficit in future periodsda@as in the past,
will fund such deficit using cash flows from opeéoats and borrowings under our 2007 Senior Crediiliaor
other credit facilities, which resources we beligwk be sufficient to cover such deficit.

Recent Changes in or Recently Issued Accounting Stdards

For details of applicable new accounting standgi#sse, see Note 4 Recent Accounting Pronouncement
our consolidated financial statements in this AnifReport.

Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management tceregkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgimgassets and liabilities at the dates of thenfiied statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting periods. Actual results could diffem those
estimates.

Our most significant assumptions and estimateserétaestimated membership life, the allocation faidvalue
ascribed to fixed and intangible assets, the usiekg of long-term assets, recoverability and iimpant of fixed
and intangible assets, valuation of and expensgriad in connection with stock options, legal cogéncies,
estimated self-insurance reserves, and valuatigdef@fred income taxes.

Estimated membership lifeOur one-time member initiation fees and a portibrelated direct expenses, up to
the amount of deferred initiation fees, are deféaerd recognized on a straight-line basis in oparatover the
estimated membership life of 28 months. This mesthprlife estimate was the result of decreasestinah
membership retention experienced by us and wastdjdirom 30 months in April 2009. This estimatéel ¢ould
increase or decrease in future periods. Consequeletierred initiation fees and direct expensesld/mcrease or
decrease accordingly.
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Fixed and intangible assetsFixed assets are recorded at cost and depredatadtraight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which arge3s for building and improvements, five yearsdioib equipmen
furniture, fixtures, flooring and computer equiprhand three to five years for computer softwareadehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of gstimated useful lives or the remaining periotheflease.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are cdmeperations as incurred. The cost and relatedraulated
depreciation, or amortization of assets retiredadt, are removed from the respective accountsaaagdjain or loss
is recognized in operations. The costs relateceteldping web applications, developing web pageksimstalling
developed applications on the web servers areategitl and classified as computer software. Weblsisting fees
and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and ifibngssets are reviewed for impairment when evants
circumstances indicate that the carrying value matybe recoverable. Estimated undiscounted expdaterk cash
flows are used to determine if an asset group jiained, in which case the asset'’s carrying valueldvbe reduced
to its fair value, calculated using discounted déshis. Projected cash flows are based on intdsndbets and
forecasts through the end of each respective |&&semost significant assumptions in those budgedisforecasts
relate to estimated membership and ancillary reggatirition rates, and maintenance capital experati, which
are estimated at approximately 3% of total revenfietial cash flows realized could differ from tlkeosstimated
and could result in asset impairments in the futDuging the year ended December 31, 2009, we decor
impairment charges of $6.7 million at nine undefmening clubs out of a total of 19 tested. The &raxdd
improvements at these clubs were written down &@ ffair values of zero at eight of these clubs thunegative
projected cash flows, and one club was written dowfair value of leasehold improvements, net afusmeulated
depreciation, of $859,000 as of December 31, 28Ghange in the discount rate would not have hsigificant
impact on the impairment charge. The 10 clubs dettat did not have impairment charges had an ggtgeof
$9.4 million of net leasehold improvements remairis of December 31, 2009. We also recorded a $idillign
impairment of construction in progress relateddbeelopment costs of an internal-use software ptojfewas
determined that it was not probable that the Compasuld continue with the project as of DecemberZ109.
During the year ended December 31, 2008, we reddardpairment charges of $3.9 million of which $#illion
related to fixed assets at six underperforming<kd $1.2 million related to the planned closafesvo clubs prio
to the lease expiration dates. See Note 5 — Fixesbis to our consolidated financial statementsignAnnual
Report.

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units thasely reflect the regions served by our foudé¢raames:
New York Sports Clubs“NYSC"), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Washington@®{s Clubs (“WSC") and
Philadelphia Sports Clubs (“PSC”), with certain moemote clubs that do not benefit from a regichater being
considered single reporting units (“Outlier Clubat)d our three clubs located in Switzerland (“SSCTHe
Company has one Outlier Club with goodwill. The BSZSC and PSC regions do not have any goodwilfas o
December 31, 2009. The carrying value of goodwélbwallocated to the Company'’s reporting units pamsto
FASB guidance.

In each of the quarters ended March 31, 2009 affl,28e Company performed its annual impairmentaes
goodwill. The March 31, 2009 and 2008 impairmestdeupported the recorded goodwill balances asd@sno
impairment of goodwill was required. The valuatafrintangible assets requires assumptions and a&gmf many
critical factors, including revenue and market gfovoperating cash flows and discount rates. Thagamy may
decide to complete an interim evaluation of thedyath by reporting unit due to the existence ofigdering event.
The determination as to whether a triggering eeaidts that would warrant an interim review of gaiitland
whether a write-down of goodwill is necessary imed significant judgment based on short-term and-term
projections of the Company. Solely for purposessiéiblishing inputs for the fair value calculatiolescribed abov
related to goodwill impairment testing, the Compamde the following assumptions. The Company dg@eslo
long-range financial forecasts (five years or lafder all reporting units. The Company used distaates ranging
between 12.1% and 18.2%, compounded annual rew@ough ranging from (0.7%) to 5.4% and terminalvgtio
rates ranging between 1% and 3%. These assumpatiertalculated separately for each reporting nie to the
significant decrease in market capitalization amigeine in the Company’s business outlook primatile to the
macroeconomic environment, the Company performeidtanm impairment test as of December 31, 2008 an
recorded $17.6 million of impairment at the BSCariimg unit and one outlier club as a
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result. For a detailed description of the impairtrtest as well as the assumptions used, pleaddaeds —
Goodwill and Intangible Assets to our consoliddiadncial statements in this Annual Report. Inyear ended
December 31, 2009, our market capitalization hasls¢éable compared to the year ended Decembe0B&,&hd
management believes our recent financial resutihawed with our current business outlook do notdaté a need
to perform interim impairment testing. As of Margh, 2009, the implied fair value of NYSC goodwilag/41%
greater than book value and the estimated fairevafl5SC goodwill was 92% greater than book value.

Valuation of and expense incurred in connectiomwibck options. In accordance with FASB guidance
effective January 1, 2006, we recognize all shaset payments to employees to be in the finanei@rments
based on their fair values using an option-pricimadel at the date of grant. We use a Black-Schapéisn-pricing
model to calculate the fair value of options. Timisdel requires various judgmental assumptions distuvolatility,
forfeiture rate and expected option life. If anyttoé assumptions used in the model change significasharebasec
compensation may differ materially in the futurenfrthat recorded in the current period.

Legal contingencies.In accordance with FASB guidance, we determinettér to disclose and accrue for loss
contingencies based on an assessment of whetheskhef loss is remote, reasonably possible obabde. Our
assessment is developed in consultation with otgidelcounsel and other advisors and is based analygsis of
possible outcomes under various strategies. Lassngency assumptions involve judgments that aneriently
subjective and can involve matters that are igdiiion, which, by its nature is unpredictable. Vé&dve that our
assessment of the probability of loss contingensiesasonable, but because of the subjectivitglired and the
unpredictable nature of the subject matter at jssueassessment may prove ultimately to be incgrvehich could
materially impact the Consolidated Financial Staets.

Self-insurance reservesWe limit our exposure to casualty losses on iasce claims by maintaining liability
coverage subject to specific and aggregate lighiiductibles. Self-insurance losses for clainedféind claims
incurred but not reported are accrued based upoméer of factors including sales estimates foheasurance
year, claim amounts, claim settlements and numbelaans. our historical loss experience and vadue providec
by independent third-party consultants. To the rixteat estimated self-insurance losses differ femtual losses
realized, our insurance reserves could differ icgmtly and may result in either higher or lowesurance expense
in future periods. In the past year, our actuad lmsperience has been better than expected overall.

Deferred income taxesAs of December 31, 2009, our net deferred tagtagstaled $50.6 million. These net
assets represent cumulative net “temporary diffeehthat will result in tax deductions in futureays. The
realizability of these assets greatly depends orability to generate sufficient future taxablednge. For 2009 and
2008, we generated Federal Taxable Income of appadgly $17.6 million and $7.2 million, respectiyeGiven
our profitability in past years and expected futprefitability, the weight of available evidencealinates we will,
more likely than not, be able to realize thesededtrred tax assets. If at some time in the futiweenveight of
available evidence does not support the realizghifia portion of or the entire net deferred tageds, the write-
down of this asset could have a significant immacour financial statements.

FASB guidance effective on January 1, 2007 pressribrecognition threshold and measurement agrfouta
tax position taken or expected to be taken in agtxn and also provides guidance on derecognitiassification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim m@sjalisclosure and transition. The Company recagniaterest and
penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax hisnefincome tax expense.

Inflation

Although we cannot accurately anticipate the efédéénhflation on our operations, we believe thdtdtion has
not had and is not likely in the foreseeable futorbave, a material impact on our results of dieana.

Seasonality of Business

Seasonal trends have a limited effect on our ovbusiness. Generally, we experience greater meshiger
growth at the beginning of each year and experienc@creased rate of membership attrition durrggsummer
months. In addition, during the summer months, wedence a slight increase in operating expengesalour
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outdoor pool and summer camp operations, genaratghed by seasonal revenue recognition from sgasain
memberships and camp revenue.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Our debt consists of both fixed and variable rafetdacilities. As of December 31, 2009 a total of
$179.9 million of our debt consisted of the Termahd-acility for which borrowings are subject toiaate interest
rates. Borrowings under this Term Loan Facility fareperiods of one, two, three or six months ie tase of
Eurodollar borrowings and no minimum period in tase of base rate borrowings and upon each cotitnuz an
interest period related to a Eurodollar borrowing interest rate is reset and each interest rabdovio® considered
variable. If short-term interest rates had incrdase100 basis points for the year ended Decembe2(@9, our
interest expense would have increased by approalyn®i.8 million. This amount is determined by ddesing the
impact of the hypothetical interest rates on ountdalance during this period.

For additional information concerning the termsof fixed-rate debt, see Note 8 — Long-Term Deliiuo
consolidated financial statements in this Annughdéte

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz

Our Financial Statements appear following the digneapage hereto, are incorporated herein by neferand
are listed in the index appearing under Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresiWWe maintain disclosure controls and procedurasale
designed to ensure that the information requirdoktdisclosed by us in the reports filed or suleditty us under ti
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegnoated within the time periods specified in 8tC's rules
and forms and such information is accumulated amdncunicated to management, including the Chief Etee
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appiaf®, to allow timely decisions regarding requidéstclosure. Any
controls and procedures, no matter how well desigmal operated, can provide only reasonable assesari
achieving the desired controls.

As of December 31, 2009, we carried out an evalonatinder the supervision and with the participatibour
management, including the Chief Executive Officed ¢he Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveaes the
design and operation of our disclosure controls@dedures (as such term is defined in Rules B8e}kand
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based uponetvedtiation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chiafancial
Officer have concluded that, as of December 319200r disclosure controls and procedures weregfeat the
reasonable assurance level.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovéiinancial Reporting: Our management is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adexjuriernal control over financial reporting (aslsterm is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underEixehange Act). Under the supervision and with theigipation
of our management, including our Chief Executivéid@f and Chief Financial Officer, we assessedetffiectivenes
of our internal control over financial reporting@sDecember 31, 2009. In making this assessmentnanagemel
used the criteria set forth by the Committee ofi&ooing Organizations of the Treadway CommissioB$0) in
Internal Control— Integrated FrameworkBased on our management’s assessment usingdtitese, our
management concluded that, as of December 31, 2@0Maintained effective internal control over fical
reporting.

Our internal control over financial reporting isstied to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of cditgded financial statements for external purposesccordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Bisesof its inherent limitations, internal contreko financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatemeXiga, projections of any evaluation of effectivenés
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future periods are subject to the risk that costrofly become inadequate because of changes irtioasdor that
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent regasfeublic accounting firm that audited the finahci
statements included in this Annual Report on Fo@iK1has issued its written attestation reporttanéffectiveness
of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2009, as stated in their report incl
following the signature page hereto, which is ipavated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportgn  There have not been any changes in our internal
control over financial reporting (as such termesined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under tlketange Act)
during the quarter ended December 31, 2009 that treaterially affected, or are reasonably likelyrtaterially
affect, our internal control over financial repogi

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART IlI
COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS AN D RELATED INFORMATION

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

The information with respect to directors, execitdfficers and corporate governance of the Comany
incorporated herein by reference to the followiagt®ns of the Company’s definitive Proxy Statenrefdting to
the Company’s 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholderbé filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Camy's
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 (the “ProxieStant”): “Matters to be Considered at Annual Megti—
Proposal One — Election of Directors,” “Corporatev@rnance and Board Matters — Corporate Governance
Documents,” “Corporate Governance and Board MatterSommittee Membership — Audit Committee,”
“Section 16(A) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coimapte,” and “Deadline for Receipt of Stockholdeoptsals.”

The following are the members of our Board of Dioes and our Executive Officers:

Board of Directors:

Alexander A. Alimanestianu Chief Executive Officer and President, Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc

Keith E. Alessi Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Westmoreland
Coal Compan

Paul N. Arnold Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer,
Cort Business Services, Ir

Bruce C. Bruckmann Managing Director, Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & {

J. Rice Edmond Managing Director, Edmonds Capital, LI

Jason M. Fisl Former President, CapitalSource |

Thomas J. Galligan, IlI Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer,
Papa Gin’s Holdings Corp

Kevin McCall Chief Executive Officer and President, Paradigm

Properties, LLC

Executive Officers:

Alexander Alimanestian Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Martin Annese Chief Operations Office

Daniel Gallaghe Chief Financial Office

David M. Kastin Senior Vice President — General Counsel and
Corporate Secreta

Scott Milford Senior Vice Preside— Human Resource

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information with respect to executive compeinsais incorporated herein by reference to theofeihg
sections of the Proxy Statement: “Executive Comatos” and “Corporate Governance and Board Matters
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eiggtion.”

The information with respect to compensation oédiors is incorporated herein by reference to dHewing
section of the Proxy Statement.: “Corporate Govecaaand Board Matters — DirectofSbmpensation for the 20
Fiscal Year.”
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table provides information with regpéo compensation plans (including individual
compensation arrangements) under which our eqedyrgties are authorized for issuance to emplopsesf
December 31, 2009:

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upor Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plan:
Outstanding Options Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column(a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 2,283,67. $ 6.2 567,32:

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder:

Total 2,283,67 % 6.2% 567,32

The information with respect to security ownerstiigertain beneficial owners and management isrpaatec
herein by reference to the following section of Brexy Statement: “Ownership of Securities”.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Pat

On January 8, 2010, we received a notice from steatities owned or controlled, directly or inditly, by
Farallon Partners, L.L.C., demanding that the Camgpagister for resale, pursuant to a February 28@#tration
rights agreement, as amended, an aggregate 4,38h82es of the Company’s Common Stock.

The information with respect to certain relatiopshand related transactions and director indepeedien
incorporated herein by reference to the followiagt®ns of the Proxy Statement.: “Certain Relathjps and
Related Transactions” and “Corporate GovernanceBarzdd Matters — Director Independence.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information with respect to principal account@es and services is incorporated herein by eafs to the
following section of the Proxy Statement: “Mattésde Considered at Annual Meeting — Proposal Two —
Ratification of Independent Registered Public Acdng Firm.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits And Financial Statement

(a) Financial Statements

(1) Financial statements filed as part of this repo

Page
Number
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements of Towar&pnternational Holdings, In

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-2
Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@DPecember 31, 20C F-3
Consolidated statements of operations for the yeraded December 31, 2009, 2008 and = F-4

Consolidated statements of stockholders’ (defexjyity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007 F-5
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the ypaember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2( F-6
Notes to consolidated financial stateme F-7

(2) Financial Statements Schedules:

To the extent applicable, required information basn included in the financial statements.
(3) Exhibits. See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

The information required by this item is incorp@herein by reference from the Index to Exhibits
immediately following page F-39 of this Annual Rejpo
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the rtegit has
duly caused this report to be signed on its bdhathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized onca5, 2010.

TOWN SPORTSINTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /sl ALEXANDER ALIMANESTIANU

Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
By: /sl ALEXANDER Chief Executive Officer (principal March 15, 2010
ALIMANESTIANU executive officer), President and Director

Alex Alimanestiant

By: /s/ DANIEL GALLAGHER Chief Financial Officer (principal financi March 15, 2010
Daniel Gallaghe and accounting officer)
By: /sl KEITH ALESSI Director March 15, 2010
Keith Alessi
By: /sl PauL ARNOLD Director March 15, 2010
Paul Arnold
By: Director

Bruce Bruckmani

By: /sl Rice EDMONDS Director March 15, 2010
Rice Edmond:
By: /sl JasoN FisH Director and Chairman of the Board March 15, 2010
Jason Fisl
By: /sl THOMAS J. GALLIGAN I Director March 15, 2010

Thomas J. Galligan I



By: /sl KevIN McCaLL Director March 15, 2010
Kevin McCall
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzgasheets and the related consolidated statenfents o
operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and clistvs present fairly, in all material respectss financial position
of Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. andsitdsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 209 2008,
and the results of their operations and their ¢asts for each of the three years in the periodeghBecember 31,
2009 in conformity with accounting principles geailr accepted in the United States of America. Atsour
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materiajects, effective internal control over financigborting as of
December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishédeémal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremgd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements, fomtaaiing effective internal control over financraporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internarabaver financial reporting, included in Managertis Annual
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportapgpearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility i€xpress
opinions on these financial statements and on trapgany’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our
integrated audits. We conducted our audits in atznmre with the standards of the Public Company Aeting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamgisinethat we plan and perform the audits to obta&sonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatises of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal
control over financial reporting was maintaineciihmaterial respects. Our audits of the finanstatements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finarstaiements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaécontrol over financial reporting included dbtag an
understanding of internal control over financigloging, assessing the risk that a material weakegists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operatirgcgffeness of internal control based on the asdesde Our audi
also included performing such other proceduresexsamsidered necessary in the circumstances. Visvbehat ou
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in redsergetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvjute reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nactsgarmit preparation of financial statementsdgordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoaassurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauittexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl RRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERSLLP

New York, New York
March 15, 2010
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

2009

2008

(All figures in $00C's
except share data)

Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtfwoants of $2,410 and $3,001 in 2009

and 2008, respectivel
Inventory
Prepaid corporate income tay
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Fixed assets, ni
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Deferred tax assets, r
Deferred membership cos
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' (DEFICIT) EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Accrued interes
Deferred revenu

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred lease liabilitie
Deferred revenu
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Contingencies (Note 1-
Stockholder’ (deficit) equity:

Common stock, $.001 par value; issued and outsigrizi2, 603,199 and
24,627,779 shares at December 31, 2009 and 2Gj&:atevely

Paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income (curreranystation adjustmen

Retained earning
Total stockholder (deficit) equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ (deficit) equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-3

$ 10,75¢  $ 10,39¢
4,29t 4,50€
224 142
1,27 8,11¢€
10,26¢ 14,15
26,81f 37,32
340,27 373,12
32,63¢  32,61(
14¢ 281
50,581  42,26¢
7,73¢ 14,46
9,27: _ 11,57¢
$467,46( $511,63f
$ 1,85 $ 20,85(
6,011 7,267
23,65¢ 35,56
6,57 522
35,34¢ _ 40,32¢
73,43¢  104,53:
316,51 317,16
71,436 69,71¢
1,48¢ 4,55¢
12,82¢ _ 14,90:
475,69¢  510,86¢
23 25
(22,577 (18,980
1,327 1,07¢
12,98¢ 18,65
(8,239 772
$467,46¢  $511,63¢
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Revenues:
Club operation:
Fees and othe

Operating Expenses:
Payroll and relate
Club operating
General and administrati\
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of fixed asse
Impairment of interni-use softwari
Impairment of goodwil

Operating incom:

Loss on extinguishment of de

Interest expens

Interest incom

Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalrime

(Loss) income before provision for corporate incaares
(Benefit) provision for corporate income ta
Net (loss) incomi
(Loss) earnings per shal

Basic
Diluted

Weighted average number of shares used in calegléitiss) earnings

per share
Basic
Diluted

2009 2008 2007

(All figures in $00C's except share and per shar
data)

$ 480,73: $ 500,67¢ $ 467,29¢
4,661 6,031 5,61¢
485,39 506,70¢ 472,91!
193,89: 193,58 177,35
178,85: 172,40¢ 156,66(
31,58 33,95 35,09:
56,53 52,47t 45,96¢
6,70¢ 3,861 —
10,19 — —
— 17,60¢ —
477,76 473,89: 415,07<
7,62¢ 32,81, 57,84.
— — 12,521
20,97: 23,90z 26,40(
(3) (319) (1,07))
(1,876) (2,307 (1,799
(11,46¢) 11,547 21,791
(5,800) 9,20¢ 8,14¢
$ (5669 $ 2331 $  13,64¢
$ (0.25 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.52
$ (0.25 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.51
22,720,93  26,247,39  26,153,54
22,720,93 26,314,95  26,611,22

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other Total
$.001 par Paid in Comprehensive Retained  Stockholder
Shares  Amount Capital Income Earnings Equity (Deficit)
(All figures in $00C's except share and per share dat:

Balance at January 1, 200° 2597594 $ 26 $ (21,069 $ 53¢ $ 2,67/ $ (17,829
Stock option exercise 278,82! — 2,09¢ — — 2,09¢
Compensation related to stock optic — — 913 — — 912
Tax benefit from stock option exercis — — 1,08z — — 1,082
Other comprehensive incon
Net income — — — — 13,64¢ 13,64¢
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — 27¢ — 27E

Total comprehensive incon — — — — 13,92:
Balance at December 31, 20C 26,254,77. $ 26 $(16,97) $ 814 $ 16,32( $ 18¢
Repurchase of common sto (1,838,961 2 (4,647 (4,64%)
Stock option exercise 195,70( 1 1,19t — — 1,19¢
Common stock gran 16,26¢ — 87 87
Compensation related to stock optic — — 1,181 — — 1,181
Tax benefit from stock option exercis — — 177 — — 177
Other comprehensive incon
Net income — — — — 2,331 2,331
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — 25€ — 25€

Total comprehensive incon — — — — 2,59¢
Balance at December 31, 2008 24,627,77 $ 25 $(18,98() $ 1,07C $ 18,651 $ 77z
Repurchase of common sta (2,095,61) 2 (5,359 — — (5,35%)
Stock option exercise 22,40( — 36 — — 36
Common stock gran 25,13: — 70 — — 7C
Other 23,50( — — — — —
Compensation related to stock options and restristeck

grants — — 1,63¢ — — 1,63¢
Tax benefit from stock option exercis — — 21 — — 21
Other comprehensive incon
Net loss — — — — (5,66¢) (5,66¢)
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — 257 — 257

Total comprehensive (loss) incor (5,41))
Balance at December 31, 2009 22,603,19 $ 2t $(2257) $ 1,327 $ 12,98( $ (8,239

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

2009 2008

2007

(All figures in $00C’s)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net (loss) incomi $ (5,668 $ 2,337 $ 13,64¢
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to reshcprovided by operating activiti
Depreciation and amortizatic 56,53 52,47t 45,96+
Impairment of fixed asse 6,70¢ 3,861 —
Impairment of interni-use softwart 10,19« — —
Impairment of goodwil — 17,60¢ —
Non cash interest expense on Senior Discount M 1,20z 13,937 12,46(
Write-off of deferred financing cos 10C — —
Loss on extinguishment of de — — 12,52
Amortization of debt issuance co: 89¢€ 781 81F
Noncash rental expense, net of noncash rental ie: (2,494 (411) 50¢
Compensation expense incurred in connection witbksbptions and common stock gra 1,704 1,26¢ 913
Deferred income tax provision (bene! (8,315 2,07¢ (12,909
Net change in certain working capital compon 3,26z (10,259 1,765
Landlord contributions to tenant improveme 4,817 6,597 5,43¢
Increase in insurance resen 601 2,03¢ 2,79¢
Decrease (increase) in deferred membership 6,72¢€ 3,51 (2,27))
Other (26) (209) 10z
Total adjustment 81,90¢ 93,28t 69,10:
Net cash provided by operating activit 76,24: 95,62 82,74¢
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures, net of effect of acquiredimesse: (49,277 (96,18 (93,28()
Insurance proceeds receiv — 1,07 50C
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu — — (4,45()
Net cash used in investing activiti (49,277 (95,109 (97,23()
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings on Revolving Loan Fac 86,00( 19,00( 9,00(
Repayment of borrowings on Revolving Loan Faci (105,000) (9,000 —
Repayment of long term borrowin (1,850 (1,949 (1,56¢)
Costs related to deferred financi (615) — —
Change in book overdre — (583 (647)
Repurchase of common sta (5,35%) (4,64%) —
Proceeds from 2007 Credit Facil — — 185,00(
Costs related to issuance of 2007 Credit Fac — — (2,729
Repayment of Senior Notr — — (169,999
Premium paid on extinguishment of debt and relatesds — — (9,30¢
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 36 1,19¢ 2,09¢
Tax benefit from stock option exercis 21 177 1,082
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (26,767) 4,19¢ 12,93
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 15¢ 22€ 208
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 35¢ 4,93¢ (1,347
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of pe 10,39¢ 5,46 6,81(
Cash and cash equivalents end of pe $ 10,75¢ $10,39¢ $ 5,462
Summary of the change in certain working capital coponents, net of effects of acquired businesses
Decrease (increase) in accounts receiv $ 22z $ 1,78 $  (54¢
(Increase) decrease in invent (80) 89 20t
Decrease in prepaid expenses and other currers 2,26( 197 1,96t
Increase in accrued interest on Senior Discouné$ 6,34¢ — —
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accryshegs and accrued inter (4,21)) 77¢ (2,43%)
Change in prepaid corporate income taxes and cat@arcome taxes payat 6,89t (8,879 (1,72¢)
(Decrease) increase in deferred reve (8,170 (4,234 4,30
Net change in certain working capital compon $ 3,26z $(10,25¢) $ 1,76t

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
(In $000s, except share and per share data)

1. Basis of Presentatior

As of December 31, 2009, Town Sports Internatidgt@tings, Inc. (the “Company” or “TSI Holdings”),
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Town Sporteemational, LLC (“TSI, LLC"), operated 161 fitheskibs
(“clubs”) comprised of 109 clubs in the New York tmopolitan market under the “New York Sports Clubsand
name, 25 clubs in the Boston market under the ‘®BoSports Clubs” brand name, 18 clubs (two of wizighpartly-
owned) in the Washington, D.C. market under the $Wtagton Sports Clubs” brand name, six clubs in the
Philadelphia market under the “Philadelphia SpGitgs” brand name and three clubs in Switzerlard T
Company’s operating segments are New York Spoub$;Boston Sports Clubs, Philadelphia Sports Clubs
Washington Sports Clubs and Swiss Sports Clubs Cldmepany has determined that our operating segrhents
similar economic characteristics and meet thergaitehich permit them to be aggregated into onentable
segment.

Certain reclassifications were made to the repatadunts for the years ended December 31, 2002@0id to
conform to the presentations for the year endeccbéer 31, 2009.

2. Correction of an Accounting Error

The results for the year ended December 31, 2080@da the correction of an accounting error thaulted in &
cumulative charge to payroll and related expensksamelated decrease in deferred membership codteo
Company’s consolidated statement of operationscandolidated balance sheet, respectively. Histiyiche
Company has applied an accounting policy of capitaj and then amortizing membership consultants’
commissions, bonuses and a portion of their bdseiss, and related taxes and benefits, as dimsts ©f obtaining
new members. Company policy limited the costs ¢tbatd be capitalized to the amount of initiatioe fevenue
deferred for new memberships. The application isf plolicy required the Company to make certaimestes.
Specifically, the Company capitalized a percent@gbe membership consultants’ base salaries, elated taxes
and benefits, based on estimates of the percenfadge membership consultants’ time that was sparndbtaining
new members.

The Company has undertaken a review of the acamytrgatment for membership consultant salaries,
including the application of the accounting polayd appropriateness of its estimate methodologgotmection
with that review, the Company determined that ievpus estimates were incorrect. The Companyaiscluded
that it was not clear whether any portion of theszdtants’ base salaries and the taxes and bendfited to those
base salaries should have been capitalized.

Although the Company believes that its accountiolicg for deferred membership costs was not unneaisie,
the errors in its estimates combined with its revid the policy have led the Company to concluds the
capitalization of any portion of membership corsultsalaries and related taxes and benefits slbeutdgarded as
an accounting error. As a result, there are eirotise Company’s previously reported consolidaiedricial
statements. The error caused payroll and relatpdrese for the years ended December 31, 2009 ar@it@@@
overstated by $1,183 and $1,014, respectively paydoll and related expense for the year of 200tanderstated
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

by $56. If the error had been corrected for allqus, including the cumulative error in 2009 ascdibed below, the
consolidated statements of operations and the tidated balance sheet would have been affectedllasvs:

For the Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2007
As As if As As if As As if
Reported Corrected Reported Corrected Reported Corrected

Consolidated Statement of Operatia

Operating incom: $ 7,628 $9,55¢ $32,817 $33,83. $57,84: $57,78¢t
(Loss) income before provision for corporate
income taxe: (11,46%) (9,539 11,541 12,65¢ 21,79: 21,73¢
(Benefit) provision for corporate income ta (5,800 (4,959 9,20¢ 9,64z 8,14t 8,121
Net (loss) incom: (5,66¢) (4,57¢€) 2,337 2,91 13,64¢ 13,61¢
Diluted (loss) earnings per sh: $ (029 $(@©20 $ 0.0¢$ 011 $ 051 % 0.51
As of As of
December 31, 200! December 31, 200:
As As if As As if
Reported Corrected* Reported  Corrected
Consolidated Balance She
Deferred membership cc $ 7,73¢ NA $ 14,462 $ 12,52¢
Total asset $467,46¢ NA  $511,63¢ $509,70:«
Total liabilities $475,69¢ NA  $510,86¢ $510,03:
Stockholder (deficit) equity $ (8,237 NA $ 772 $ (329

* Not applicable as no correction applies to the obidiated balance sheet as of December 31, 2

For the Quarters Ended

March 31, June 30. September 30 December 31
2009 2009 2009 2009

Operating (loss) incom

As reportec $5,67¢  $8,77¢ $ 1,444 $(7,929)

As if correctec $5,911  $9,15¢ $ 1,65¢ $(6,91€)
Net (loss) incomi

As reportec $ 63¢  $2,52¢ $(1,485) $(7,34¢€)

As if correctec $ 827  $2,73i $(1,36¢€) $(6,774)
Diluted (loss) earnings per she

As reportec $ 0.0z $0.11 $ (0.09) $ (0.39)

As if correctec $0.04 $ 0.1z $ (0.0€) $ (0.30
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For the Quarters Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2008 2008 2008 2008

Operating (loss) incom

As reportec $14,08.  $16,46¢ $11,58: $ (9,31))

As if correctec $14,42¢  $16,65: $11,88" $ (9,13¢)
Net (loss) incomi

As reportec $ 4,811 $ 6,801 $ 3,84( $(13,115)

As if correctec $ 5,006 $ 6,907 $ 4,01« $(13,01¢)
Diluted (loss) earnings per she

As reportec $ 018 §$ O0.2¢ $ 0.1¢ $ (0.5])

As if correctec $ 01¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1¢ $ (0.50)

In addition to the overstatement of payroll anétedl expense in 2009 for costs related to pridogsrof
$1,183, the Company recorded additional payrollr@tated expense of $751 in the fourth quarter0®@2to
recognize the remaining portion of the deferred mership consultant salaries. This resulted in doegnition of a
out-of-period expense in 2009 of $1,934. The Comiphetermined that the impact of this error on albipperiods,
as well as the correction of the error in the autrpeeriod, was immaterial to all periods and acoly, the
Company did not restate its prior period resultkilédthe Company is no longer deferring, a porttbmembership
consultants’ salaries and related taxes and bengfitill continue to defer membership consultantsnmissions
and bonuses and portions of taxes and benefit®dela those commissions and bonuses.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc. and all wholly-owned subsidiariedl iAter-company accounts and transactions have béminated
in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generally receives a one-time non-tefale initiation fee and monthly dues from its mensb
The Company’s members have the option to join omath-to-month basis or to commit to a one- or fweas
membership. Month-to-month members can cancel thembership at any time with 30 days notice. Meisitier
dues for members who pay annual dues upfront acetered on a straight-line basis over a 12 montioge
commencing with the first month of the new memlmrtcact. Membership dues for members who pay myitd
recognized in the period in which access to thb @yrovided.

Initiation fees and related direct and incremeatqlenses of membership acquisition, which incledess
commissions, bonuses and related taxes and bemefitsh are direct and incremental costs relateti¢csale of
new memberships, are deferred and recognized stiaight-line basis, in operations over an estichatembership
life of 28 months. As of April 1, 2009, we changad estimated membership life from 30 months torZiiths,
affecting the year ended December 31, 2009 by asing operating income by $47. The change in egtitha
membership life is principally due to an unfavortiend in membership retention rates. Prior too@et 1, 2009,
the Company was also deferring a percentage afiesiand related benefits payable to membershipultamnts ove
the estimated membership life (See Note 2 — Camedf Error). Deferred membership costs were $5 &i3d
$14,462 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectiVbely decrease in deferred membership costs isipailty
related to the discounting of new member initiatiees in an effort to drive membership sales. inytbar ended
December 31, 2009 the average initiation fee ctdtbper sale
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approximated $19.50 compared to $44.75 and $68.#%iyears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 ctashp.
The amount of costs deferred does not exceed liededeferred revenue for the periods presentddharefore th
decrease in deferred initiation fee revenue regilte decrease in related deferred membershig.cost

Dues that are received in advance are recognizedpoo-rata basis over the periods in which sesvire to be
provided. Revenues from ancillary services, sugbeasonal training sessions, are recognized agesrare
performed. Unused personal training sessions exrfiee a set, disclosed period of time after puseh&ecently, th
State of New York has informed the Company that @urrently considering whether the Company isiegl to
remit the amount received for unused, expired pesivaining sessions to the State of New Yorkradaimed
property. The Company currently has between $10@l®mand $15.0 million of unused and expired peral
training sessions. The Company has not recognizgdevenue from these sessions and has recordegnibents a
deferred revenue. The Company does not believelthaé amounts are subject to the escheatmenandabed
property laws of any state, including the Statélefv York. However, should any state, including 8tate of
New York, not agree with the Comp¢'s position, it ultimately may be forced to remiit @ a portion of these
amounts to such states.

Management fees earned for services rendered @gniged at the time the related services are pagd.

When a revenue agreement involves multiple elemsoth as sales of both memberships and serviaegin
arrangement or potentially multiple arrangemetits gntire fee from the arrangement is allocatezhtth respective
element based on its relative fair value and reizaghwhen the revenue recognition criteria for eglelment is met.

The Company recognizes revenue from merchandiss spbn delivery to the member.

In connection with advance receipts of fees or diessCompany is required to maintain bonds toge$ia, 840
and $3,598 as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, ridxsglgcpursuant to various state consumer pratediws.

Advertising and Club Pre-opening Costs

Advertising costs and club pre-opening costs aeeged to operations during the period in which they
incurred, except for production costs related kevision and radio advertisements, which are expéngen the
related commercials are first aired. Total adverisosts incurred by the Company for the yeargdnd
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 totaled $7,66868&nd $10,302, respectively and are includeydiip
operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instrumentsch have original maturities of three monthdess
when acquired to be cash equivalents. The cargtingunts reported in the balance sheets for cashasid
equivalents approximate fair value. The Companysamd operates a captive insurance company intéte &
New York. Under the insurance laws of the StatB@iv York, this captive insurance company is requtre
maintain a cash balance of at least $250. At Deee®b, 2009 and 2008, $272 and $271, respectioébash
related to this wholly-owned subsidiary was incldidte cash and cash equivalents.

Deferred Lease Liabilities, Non-cash Rental Experesed Additional Rent

The Company recognizes rental expense for leagbsseheduled rent increases and inclusive of rental
concessions, on the straight-line basis over faefithe lease beginning upon the commencemeatafahe lease.
Rent concessions, primarily received in the fornfre¢ rental periods, are also deferred and ansattin a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease.

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeational facilities and certain equipment under-non
cancelable operating leases. In addition to base tfee facility leases generally provide for aduitl rent to cover
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common area maintenance (“CAM”) charges incurreditarpass along increases in real estate taxesSCohgpany
accrues for any unpaid CAM charges and real esiaés on a club-by-club basis.

Upon entering into certain leases, the Companyiveseonstruction allowances from the landlord. Séhe
construction allowances are recorded as defersse[gability credits on the consolidated balaruses when the
requirements for these allowances are met as statkd respective lease and are amortized asugtied of rent
expense over the term of the lease. Amortizatiothedérred construction allowances were $2,927 2,889 at
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, resplctive

Certain leases provide for contingent rent basexh wjefined formulas of revenue, cash flows or djgga
results for the respective facilities. These caggint rent payments typically call for additionattreayments
calculated as a percentage of the respective ctaldnue or a percentage of revenue in excesdiobddireak-
points during a specified year. The Company recooadingent rent expense over the related contingpertal
period at the time the respective contingent target probable of being met.

Lease termination penalties are recognized usiagitldiscounted cash flow method. In the year ended
December 31, 2009, the Company recorded approxXiyrie305 in lease termination penalties.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acous

Accounts receivable consists of amounts due fr@mQbmpany’s membership base and was $6,705 antd%7,5
at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, befitmerance for doubtful accounts. The Company nadiirst
allowances for doubtful accounts for estimateddeggsulting from the inability of the Company’smizers to
make required payments. The Company considersréastiwh as: historical collection experience, tpe af the
receivable balance and general economic conditttatsmay affect our members’ ability to pay.

Following are the changes in the allowance for dimilaccounts for the years December 31, 2009, 200B

2007:
Balance Beginning Write -offs Net of Balance at
of the Year Additions Recoveries End of Year
December 31, 200 $3,001 $6,27: $(6,864) $2,41(
December 31, 20C $2,797 $8,43( $(8,226) $3,001
December 31, 20C $2,02¢ $8,16¢ $(7,397) $2,791
Inventory

Inventory consists of supplies, headsets for thb ehtertainment system and clothing for sale tmbers.
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or redildy the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciatadiaight-line basis over the estimated usefeslof the
assets, which are 30 years for building and impreer@s, five years for club equipment, furniturgtdres and
computer equipment and three to five years for agempsoftware. Leasehold improvements are amortized the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or the rieing period of the related lease. Payroll costsally related to the
construction or expansion of the Compangfub base are capitalized with leasehold imprarém Expenditures f
maintenance and repairs are charged to operatoingarred. The cost and related accumulated diggi@t of
assets retired or sold is removed from the resgeettcounts and any gain or loss is recognizegénations. The
costs related to developing web applications, dgieg web pages and installing developed applinatan the web
servers are capitalized and classified as compoféware. Web site hosting fees and maintenands eos
expensed as incurred.
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Intangible Assets and Debt Issuance Costs

Intangible assets consist of membership lists nefigal lease and covenants-not-to-compete. Thesets are
stated at cost and are being amortized by thegbtrline method over their estimated lives. Membgrdists are
amortized over 30 months and covenants-natetmpete are amortized over the contractual lifaggaly one to fiv
years. The beneficial lease is being amortized theeremaining life of the underlying club leasdl.rAembershiy
lists and the beneficial lease were fully amortiasdf December 31, 2009.

Debt issuance costs are classified within otheztasnd are being amortized as additional intergstnse over
the life of the underlying debt, five to ten yearsing the interest method. Amortization of debtiescosts was $8¢
$781 and $815, for the years ended December 38, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assetsd Goodwill

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and iriengssets are reviewed for impairment when ewvants
circumstances indicate that their carrying valug mat be recoverable. Estimated undiscounted eggddature cas
flows are used to determine if an asset is impairedhich case the asset’s carrying value woulddokiced to fair
value calculated using discounted cash flows, whidiased on internal budgets and forecasts thrtheghnd of
each respective lease. The most significant assangpin those budgets and forecasts relate to attom
membership and ancillary revenue, attrition raé@sl maintenance capital expenditures, which ammatd at
approximately 3% of total revenues.

Goodwill represents the excess of consideratiod paér the net identifiable business assets aadjuiréhe
acquisition of a club or group of clubs. ASC 350¢2quires goodwill to be tested for impairment araeanual basis
and between annual tests in certain circumstaaceswritten down when impaired. Our impairment egvprocess
compares the fair value of the reporting unit inckithe goodwill resides to its carrying value.

Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step proc&gp 1 involves comparing the fair value of the @any’'s
reporting units to their carrying amounts. If tladr fvalue of the reporting unit is greater tharcasrying amount,
there is no impairment. If the reporting unit’'sryamg amount is greater than the fair value, theoed step must be
completed to measure the amount of impairmentyf tep 2 calculates the implied fair value of dyoil by
deducting the fair value of all tangible and intduhg assets, excluding goodwill, of the reportimgtdrom the fair
value of the reporting unit as determined in StepHe implied fair value of goodwill determinedthis step is
compared to the carrying value of goodwill. If ihgplied fair value of goodwill is less than the igéng value of
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equahmdifference. The Company performs this analgsisually as
of March 31.

Insurance

The Company obtains insurance coverage for sigmfiexposures as well as those risks required todoeed
by law or contract. The Company retains a portibrisk internally related to general liability lass Where the
Company retains risk, provisions are recorded baped the Company’s estimates of its ultimate expo$or
claims. The provisions are estimated using actbanalysis based on claims experience, an estiofat@ims
incurred but not yet reported and other relevaeiofs. In this connection, under the provisiontaf Deductible
Agreement related to the payment and administratfdhe Company’s insurance claims, we are requed
maintain irrevocable letters of credit, totaling2$329 as of December 31, 2009.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management toeneakkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgittgassets and liabilities at the dates of thenfirad statements and
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the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting periods. Actual results could diffem those
estimates.

The most significant assumptions and estimateserédethe allocation and fair value ascribed tetsacquired
in connection with the acquisition of clubs unde purchase method of accounting, the useful tiésng-term
assets, recoverability and impairment of fixed artdngible assets, deferred income tax valuatiafyation of and
expense incurred in connection with stock optiagmsjrance reserves, legal contingencies and theaatst
membership life.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recogniaethe expected future tax consequences of etkathave
been included in the financial statements or térns. Under this method, deferred tax liabiligesl assets are
determined on the basis of the difference betwberfihancial statement and tax basis of assetdiaitities
(“temporary differences”) at enacted tax ratesfiaat for the years in which the temporary diffecen are expected
to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded tuoe deferred tax assets to the amount that is hkeig than not
to be realized. In December 2009, the Company dddidat the cumulative earnings of the Swiss chadd be
invested in the U.S. Accordingly, in accordancehwASC 740-30, the Company has recognized a deféared
liability of $637 for the U.S. taxes on the totaheulative earnings of the Swiss clubs.

Statements of Cash Flows
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Cash paic
Interest (net of amounts capitalize $13,79:  $10,03:  $17,07:
Income taxe: 6,007 15,93: 20,73:

Noncash investing and financing activit
Acquisition of fixed assets included in accountggtde and accrued expen: 2,047 11,13: 15,78
See Notes 8, 11 and 12 for additional -cash investing and financing activiti

Foreign Currency

At December 31, 2009, the Company owned three Sskids, which use the Swiss Franc, their localenty,
as their functional currency. Assets and liab#itere translated into U.S. dollars at year-end &xgé rates, while
income and expense items are translated into Wirs at the average exchange rate for the pefiodall periods
presented foreign exchange transaction gains asé$overe not material. Adjustments resulting ftioentranslatio
of foreign functional currency financial statemeint® U.S. dollars are included in the currencyigtation
adjustment in stockholders’ (deficit) equity. Th&etence between the Company’s net (loss) inconte a
comprehensive (loss) income is the effect of faregchange translation adjustments, which was $#556 and
$275 for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@0i7, respectively.

Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Comprehensive (loss) income is defined as the ahangquity of a business enterprise during a defriom
transactions and other events and circumstancesriom-owner sources, including foreign currencygration
adjustments. The Company presents comprehenss® {fccome in its consolidated statements of
stockholders’ (deficit) equity.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk are st cash
equivalents. Such amounts are held, primarily, single commercial bank. The Company holds no tayith for
these financial instruments. Cash and cash equitgalesld in a single commercial bank as of Decerthe2009
were $6,934. During any given month, this amountlea as high as $30,000.

Earnings Per Share

Basic (loss) earnings per share is computed bylidiginet income applicable to common stockholdgrthb
weighted average numbers of shares of common siatskanding during the period. Diluted earningsgiere is
computed similarly to basic earnings per sharegpixthat the denominator is increased for the asduswercise of
dilutive stock options and unvested restrictedlstoging the treasury stock method.

The following table summarizes the weighted aver@gamon shares for basic and diluted earningshmpees
(“EPS”") computations.

For The Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Weighted average number of common share outsta— basic 22,720,93 26,247,39 26,153,54
Effect of diluted stock optior — 67,55: 457,68
Weighted average number of common shares outsig— diluted 22,720,93 26,314,95 26,611,22
Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic $ (0.25 % 0.0¢ $ 0.52
Diluted $ (0.25) $ 0.0¢ $ 0.51

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ar®] 2@0did not include options and restricted stalards
totaling 1,880,798, 957,928 and 433,540 shareseoCompany’s common stock, respectively, in thewations of
diluted EPS because the exercise prices of thasenspvere greater than the average market pridetasir
inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, there wa#fext of diluted stock options and restricted camnrstoct
on the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) gere as the Company had a net loss for this period.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2007, the SEC issued guidance regatiaingse of a “simplified” method, as discussed in
previous guidance in developing an estimate of ebgubterm of “plain vanilla” share options. In peutar, the staff
indicated in the previous guidance that it will @gta company election to use the simplified method, regardds:
whether the company has sufficient information &kexmore refined estimates of expected term. Atithe this
was issued, the staff believed that more detaiéereal information about employee exercise behal@ay.,
employee exercise patterns by industry and/or atatrgories of companies) would, over time, becozadily
available to companies. Therefore, the staff stitatlit would not expect a company to use the kfiegp method
for share option grants after December 31, 200@.sEaff understood that such detailed informatiooua employee
exercise behavior may not be widely available bgdbeber 31, 2007. Accordingly, the staff would coué to
accept, under certain circumstances, the use dithgified method beyond December 31, 2007. Then@amy
currently uses the simplified method for shareaqtiand warrants as all options issued since tihep@oy’s Initial
Public Offering (“IPO”) in June of 2006 can be cimesed “plain vanilla®options. In addition the Company does
have sufficient historical detailed exercise bebaavailable. The Company will further assess the af this policy
for fiscal year 2010.
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In connection with the IPO, the Board of Directapproved a 14-for-one common stock split. The Camisa
position is that it was required by the relevaneagents to adjust the options to purchase commock for the
stock split. All share and per share data have bdgrsted to reflect this stock split.

The fair value of the awards was determined usimpdified Black-Scholes methodology using the faileg
weighted average assumptions:

Weighted
Risk-Free  Average Expected  Fair Value

Interest  Expected Expected Dividend at Date

Common Rate Life Volatility Yield of Grant
1999 Grant: 5.7% 5year 60% = $2.1¢
2000 Grantt 6.€% 5yeanr 69% — $3.37
2001 Grantt 4€% 5yearn 72% — $7.9¢
2003 Grantt 3.8% 6 year 55% — $1.04
2005 Grantt 41% 6 yearn 49% — $0.57
2006 Grantt 4.8% 6 yean 50% — $6.54
2007 Grantt 45% 6 yearn 33% = $7.2¢
2008 Grantt 2.2% 6yean 60% — $2.64
2009 Grantt 2.5% 6yearn 84% = $1.5¢

The weighted average expected option term reftbetapplication of the simplified method set ouE&RSB
Accounting Standards Codification 718-10-S99, tdpldssued by the Securities and Exchange Commissio
(“SEC™), which defines the term as the averagehefdontractual term of the options and the weightextage
vesting period for all option tranches. Expectelhtility percentages for grant years 2007 and psiere derived
from the volatility of publicly traded companiesnsidered to have businesses similar to the Comizpected
volatility percentages for grant years 2008 and2@@re based on the daily historical volatilitytké Company’s
stock price over the period from the Company’s IRQune of 2006 through the grant date. The risk-fiate for
periods within the contractual life of the optienbiased on the U.S. Treasury implied yield atithe of grant.

4. Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢*FASB”) established the FASB Accounting Standz
Codification (*“ASC”), which officially commenced Jul, 2009, to become the source of authoritatiGe®AAP
recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovemaientities. Rules and interpretive release$i@fSEC under
authority of federal securities laws are also sesiaf authoritative US GAAP for SEC registrantsn&ally, the
Codification did not change US GAAP. All other aaoting literature excluded from the Codificationvioie
considered non-authoritative. The Codification wésctive for financial statements issued for imeand annual
periods ending after September 15, 2009 and wasftite adopted by the Company for the third qua6&9
reporting. All references to authoritative accongtiiterature are now referenced in accordance thigh
Codification. The adoption did not have an impactlee reporting of the Company’s financial positicesults of
operations or cash flows.

In May 2009, the FASB issued guidance regardingegbent events, which was subsequently updated in
February 2010. This guidance established genematiatds of accounting for and disclosure of evérasoccur
after the balance sheet date but before finantEtdments are issued or are available to be istu@drticular, this
guidance set forth the period after the balancetstiete during which management of a reportingyeskiould
evaluate events or transactions that may occysdtential recognition or disclosure in the finahsi@tements, the
circumstances under which an entity should recageiznts or transactions occurring after the balaheet date in
its financial statements, and the disclosuresahagntity should make about events or transactlmatsoccurred afts
the balance sheet date. This guidance was effdativfenancial statements issued for fiscal yeard imterim
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periods ending after June 15, 2009, and was thereftopted by the Company for the second quart29 20
reporting. The adoption did not have a signifidampact on the subsequent events that the Compaoytse either
through recognition or disclosure, in the consdéddinancial statements. In February 2010, the BABended its
guidance on subsequent events to remove the reagriteto disclose the date through which an entiy dévaluated
subsequent events, alleviating conflicts with coin®EC guidance. This amendment was effective inmabelgt and
the Company therefore removed the disclosure ;vAhinual Report.

In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance relatedatermining fair value when the volume and leveadtvity
for the asset or liability have significantly dezsed and identifying transactions that are notrbydi provides
guidance for estimating fair value in accordancthvair value measurements, when the volume aral Eactivity
for the asset or liability have significantly deased. It also includes guidance on identifyingurinstances that
indicate a transaction is not orderly. This guidaamphasizes that even if there has been a sigmifitecrease in
the volume and level of activity for the assetiability and regardless of the valuation technig)e(sed, the
objective of a fair value measurement remains #mees Fair value is the price that would be receteeskll an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly traicsion (that is, not a forced liquidation or dissed sale) between
market participants at the measurement date unolerrt market conditions. This guidance was eféector interim
and annual reporting periods ending after Jun@089, and was therefore adopted by the Compansefmnd
quarter 2009 reporting. The adoption of this gua#adid not have a material impact on our finanggaition or
results of operations.

In September 2009, the FASB issued new accountiidagce related to the revenue recognition of rplalti
element arrangements. The new guidance states tieaidor specific objective evidence or third gagtzidence for
deliverables in an arrangement cannot be determawadpanies will be required to develop a bestrese of the
selling price to separate deliverables and alloaatEngement consideration using the relativergefirice method.
The accounting guidance will be applied prospettiaad will become effective during the first querbf 2011. Wi
do not expect this accounting guidance to havetanmahimpact on our financial position or resudfsoperations.

5. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets as of December 31, 2009 and 200&avensat cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and are summarized below:

December 31

2009 2008

Leasehold improvemen $485,26. $ 458,94:
Club equipmen 96,22¢ 87,83:
Furniture, fixtures and computer equipm 70,75¢ 66,74
Computer softwar 18,90¢ 18,20(
Building and improvement 4,99¢ 4,99¢
Land 98¢ 98¢
Construction in progres 2,88¢ 36,41¢
680,01! 674,11t

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (339,739 (300,999

$ 340,270 $ 373,12

Depreciation and leasehold amortization expensthfoyears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2@37,
$56,271, $51,743 and $45,519, respectively.
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In February, 2008, the FASB released a statemdimtinlg fair value, establishing a framework in gealby
accepted accounting principles for measuring fain® and expanding disclosures about fair valuesoreaents.
The standard establishes a hierarchy of inputs @yedlto determine fair value measurements, witbethevels.
Level 1 inputs, are quoted prices in active markatsdentical assets and liabilities, are constdeto be the most
reliable evidence of fair value and should be ugkdnever available. Level 2 inputs are observahteg that are
not quoted on active exchanges. Level 3 inputsiaobservable inputs employed for measuring thevlire of
assets or liabilities.

Fixed assets are evaluated for impairment peritidiadenever events or changes in circumstanceasatel
that related carrying amounts may not be recoveribin undiscounted cash flows in accordance WKBIE
released guidance. The Company’s long-lived assetdiabilities are grouped at the individual clatsel which is
the lowest level for which there is identifiableshdlow. To the extent that estimated future unolisted net cash
flows attributable to the assets are less thawrdiging amount, an impairment charge equal taltfierence
between the carrying value of such asset andiitsdiue, calculated using discounted cash flowsetognized. In
the year ended December 31, 2009, the Companylt&8tanderperforming clubs and recorded impairrasges c
$6,708 on fixed assets at nine of these clubsetkrienced decreased profitability and sales selvelow
expectations. The leasehold improvements at tHabs were written down to their fair values of zataight of
these clubs, due to negative projected cash fland,0ne club was written down to fair value of é&asdd
improvements, net of accumulated depreciation 88B%as of December 31, 2009. Two of these clubs wer
subsequently closed. The 10 clubs tested thatatitawve impairment charges had an aggregate 08%®Bnet
leasehold improvements remaining as of Decembe2(319.

In 2008, the Company entered into an agreementawtdndor to develop a new enterprise management
software system, GIMS which was planned to be impleted in 2010. The Company had capitalized $10{d94
costs incurred related to this project in accoréanith ASC 350-40, Internal-Use Software. In Seften2009, the
Company commenced litigation against this vendéggag, among other things, breach of contractdnnection
with this litigation, development of this softwgueject ceased during the third quarter of 200%d$ determined
that it was not probable that the Company wouldiooe with the development of this software and@oenpany is
currently exploring other alternatives. As a resualtaccordance with ASC 350-40, the Company ingghihe
balance of the project as of December 31, 2009.6f194 to its implied fair value of zero.

The fair values of fixed assets evaluated for immpant were calculated using Level 3 inputs usirsgaiinted
cash flows, which are based on internal budgetd@medasts through the end of each respective .|@&semost
significant assumptions in those budgets and fateaglate to estimated membership and ancillargmeae, attritiol
rates, and maintenance capital expenditures, warelestimated at approximately 3% of total reventbe
Company’s non-financial assets and liabilities #nat reported at fair value on a nonrecurring hiasise
accompanying condensed consolidated balance siseet,December 31, 2009, were as follows:

Basis of Fair Value Measurements
Fair Value of Quoted Prices in Active  Significant Other

Assets Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Significant Unobservable
Date (Liabilities) Items (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Fixed asset $85¢ $— $— $85¢
The impairment losses are included as a sepanaénlioperating income on the consolidated statéwfen

operations.

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units tasely reflect the regions served by our foud¢raames:
New York Sports Clubs“NYSC"), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Washington@®s Clubs (“WSC") and
Philadelphia Sports Clubs (“PSC”), with certain moemote clubs that do not benefit from a regichater being
considered single reporting units (“Outlier Clubai)d our three clubs located in Switzerland (“SSCTHe
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Company has three Outlier Clubs with goodwill. ADecember 31, 2009, the BSC, WSC and PSC regiomotd
have goodwill balances. The carrying value of goldwas allocated to the Company’s reporting uipitssuant to
FASB guidance.

In each of the quarters ended March 31, 2009 affl,28e Company performed its annual impairmert T
March 31, 2009 and 2008 impairment tests suppahtedecorded goodwill balances and as such no impait of
goodwill was required. The valuation of reportingta requires assumptions and estimates of matigatdactors,
including revenue and market growth, operating ¢ksts and discount rates.

In accordance with FASB guidance, the Company cetaglan interim evaluation of the goodwill by rejpay
unit due to the existence of a triggering everafddecember 31, 2008. The determination as to vénethriggering
event exists that would warrant an interim revidwaodwill and whether a write-down of goodwillngcessary
involves significant judgment based on short-terd Bng-term projections of the Company. Due todigmificant
decrease in market capitalization and a declitkénCompany’s business outlook primarily due to the
macroeconomic environment, the Company performedtanm impairment test as of December 31, 2008.

Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step proc&gp 1 involves comparing the fair value of the @any’'s
reporting units to their carrying amounts. If tladr fvalue of the reporting unit is greater tharcasrying amount,
there is no impairment. If the reporting unit'sigémg amount is greater than the fair value, treoad step must be
completed to measure the amount of impairmentyf Step 2 calculates the implied fair value of dyoil by
deducting the fair value of all tangible and intduhg assets, excluding goodwill, of the reportingtdrom the fair
value of the reporting unit as determined in StepHe implied fair value of goodwill determinedthris step is
compared to the carrying value of goodwill. If ihgplied fair value of goodwill is less than the igang value of
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equah®difference. The result of the Company’s analyslicated
that there would be no remaining implied valueiatitiable to the BSC reporting unit. Accordingly,ecember
2008, the Company wrote off all $15,766 of goodadkociated with this reporting unit and $1,848vat of the
three Outlier Clubs that did not benefit from bepagt of regional clusters. The Company did notehagoodwill
impairment charge in the NYSC region as a resuthefinterim test given the profitability of thisitt The
remaining goodwill at SSC is $1,096 and there & @maining Outlier Club with goodwill of $137.

Fair value was determined by using a weighted coatlin of two market-based approaches (weighted 25%
each) and an income approach (weighted 50%), asdnmbination was deemed to be the most indicafitiee
Company’s fair value in an orderly transaction betw market participants. Under the market-baserbappes, the
Company utilized information regarding the Compahg, Companys industry as well as publicly available indu:
information to determine earnings multiples an@sahultiples that are used to value the Comargporting units
Under the income approach, the Company determimieddlue based on estimated future cash flowsiofie
reporting unit, discounted by an estimated weiglaeerage cost of capital, which reflects the ovdeskl of
inherent risk of a reporting unit and the rateadfirn an outside investor would expect to earneBDahing the fair
value of a reporting unit is judgmental in natunel aequires the use of significant estimates asdraptions,
including revenue growth rates and operating margiiscount rates and future market conditions,rapuathers.

Solely for purposes of establishing inputs forfdie value calculations described above relategomdwill
impairment testing, the Company made the follovasgumptions. The Company developed long-rangediabn
forecasts (five years or longer) for all reportingts. The Company used discount rates rangingdestvt2.1% and
18.2%, compounded annual revenue growth ranging {b7%) to 5.4% and terminal growth rates randiatyveer
1% and 3%. These assumptions are calculated selyafi@teach reporting unit.

Given the current economic and consumer environmeathe uncertainties regarding the impact on the
Company’s business, there can be no assuranct¢gh@ompanys estimates and assumptions regarding the du
of the ongoing economic downturn, or the periodtoength of recovery, made for purposes of the Gomis
goodwill impairment testing as of March 31, 2009] prove to be accurate predictions of the futufe.
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the Company’s assumptions regarding forecastedtever margin growth rates of certain reportingsiare not
achieved, the Company may be required to recordieddl goodwill impairment charges in future pel# whether
in connection with the Compars/hext annual impairment testing in the quarteedndarch 31, 2010 or subseqt
to that, if any such change constitutes a triggeeivent outside the quarter when the annual gobaaglairment
test is performed. It is not possible at this timeletermine if any such future impairment chargeih result. Ther
were no events triggering a review of goodwill &9ecember 31, 2009. As of March 31, 2009, the ietpfair
value of NYSC goodwill was 41% greater than bookigand the estimated fair value of SSC goodwik Wa%
greater than book value.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill fréemuary 1, 2008 through December 31, 2009 ardefbta
in the charts below.

NYSC BSC SSC Outlier Clubs Total

Balance as of January 1, 200
Goodwill $31,40! $15,76¢ $1,01¢ $ 3,98: $52,167
Accumulated impairment of goodw — — (2,007) (2,0072)

31,40: 15,76¢  1,01¢ 1,98( 50,16t
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations — — 54 — 54
Impairment of goodwil — (15,766 — (1,849 (17,609
Balance as of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 31,40: 15,76¢  1,07( 3,98: 52,161
Accumulated impairment of goodw (15,766) — (3,845 (19,61)
31,40: — 1,07 137 32,61(
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations 26 — 26
Balance as of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 31,40 15,76¢  1,09¢ 3,98: 52,241
Accumulated impairment of goodw (15,76¢) — (3,845 (19,61)
$31,40: $ — $1,09¢ $ 137 $32,63¢

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2@08s follows:

As of December 31, 2009

Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Intangibles
Covenant-noi-to-compete 1,50¢ (1,359 14¢
As of December 31, 200
Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Intangibles
Membership list: $10,89C $ (10,83t $ 54
Covenant-noi-to-compete 1,68 (1,460 227
Beneficial least 223 (223) —

$12,80( $ (12519 $ 28!
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The amortization expense of the above acquiredgiltde assets for each of the two years ending ibbee 31
2010 and 2011 is as follows:

Aggregate Amortization Expense for the Years Endinddecember 31

2010 $10%
2011 44
$14¢

Amortization expense of intangible assets for tharg ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $26
$732 and $445, respectively.

7. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2009 and 20G#sted of the following:

December 31,

2009 2008
Accrued payrol $ 6,001 $ 6,89¢
Accrued construction in progress and equipn 1,90¢ 10,99¢
Accrued occupancy cos 5,621 7,23¢
Accrued insurance clain 3,691 3,93¢
Accrued othe 6,42¢ 6,49:

$23,65¢  $35,56¢

8. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2009 and 2008istdl of the following:

December 31,

2009 2008
Term Loan $179,910 $181,76:
Revolving credit borrowing — 19,00(
11% Senior Discount Not¢ 138,45( 137,24
318,36: 338,01
Less: Current portion due within one yi 1,85(C 20,85(
Long-term portion $316,510  $317,16(
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The aggregate long-term debt obligations maturimigng the next five years and thereafter are devial:

Amount Due
Year Ending December 31
2010 $ 1,85(
2011 1,85(
2012 1,85(
2013 174,36:
2014 138,45(
Thereafte —

$ 318,36:

February 4, 2004 Offering of Senior Discount Notes

On February 4, 2004, TSI Holdings completed anroféeof the 11% senior discount notes due in 2Qhd (
“Senior Discount Notes”). TSI Holdings receivedtat of $124,807 in connection with this issuarieees and
expenses related to this transaction totaled appedgly $4,378. No cash interest was required tpadie prior to
February 1, 2009. The accreted value of each S&igmount Note increased from the date of issuamtié
February 1, 2009, at a rate of 11.0% per annum oomged semi-annually. Subsequent to February 19 286h
interest on the Senior Discount Notes has andagdtue and be payable semi-annually in arrearsugepf. and
August 1 of each year, commencing August 1, 200@. Senior Discount Notes are structurally subotdishand
effectively rank junior to all indebtedness of TBILC (formerly TSI, Inc.). The debt of TSI Holdings not
guaranteed by TSI, LLC and TSI Holdings relies o ¢ash flows of TSI, LLC, subject to restrictiamstained in
the indenture governing the Senior Discount Ndtesegrvice its debt.

The Senior Discount Notes contain a consolidatestificharge coverage covenant ratio of 2.00:1.06;twh
covenant is subject to compliance, on a consolilaésis. As of December 31, 2009, the Company&sifisharge
coverage ratio was 3.93:1.00.

On July 7, 2006, the Company paid $62,875 to red&e¥h of the Senior Discount Notes. The aggregate
accreted value of the Senior Discount Notes oméHemption date totaled $56,644 and early termandges
totaled $6,231. Deferred financing costs totalifgP89 were written off and fees totaling $24 werairred in
connection with this early extinguishment. As oftBmber 31, 2008 the accreted value of the Sen&rddint Note
totaled $137,247 and on February 1, 2009, the taxtralue equaled its principal maturity value 88,450.

2003 Senior Credit Facility

On April 16, 2003, the Company successfully congalet refinancing of its debt. This refinancing irdgd an
offering of $255,000 of the 9 5/ 8% Senior Notie (‘2003 Senior Notes'that would have matured April 15, 20
and the entering into of a senior secured revoleieglit facility (the “2003 Senior Credit Facilitythat would have
expired on April 15, 2008. Effective July 7, 20@6e 2003 Senior Credit Facility was amended tosgase permitte
borrowings from $50,000 to $75,000.

2007 Senior Credit Facility

On February 27, 2007, the Company entered intc68,8R0 senior secured credit facility (the “200nige
Credit Facility”). The 2007 Senior Credit Facilitpnsisted of a $185,000 term loan facility (the rfiidoan
Facility”) and the $75,000 revolving credit fagilifthe “Revolving Loan Facility”) and an incremeltarm loan
commitment facility in the maximum amount of $10MQwhich borrowing thereunder is subject to coamiie
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with certain conditions precedent and by TSI ang@gent upon certain terms and conditions therewféen the
participating lenders and TSI. The 2007 Senior €ieatility replaced the 2003 Senior Credit FagiliEees and
expenses associated with this transaction wereajppately $335.

A portion of the proceeds of the 2007 Senior CrEditility were used to purchase $165,540 aggrqgateipal
amount of the 2003 Senior Notes outstanding onugepr27, 2007 and the balance of the proceeds wek®cably
deposited in an escrow account to purchase theimergab4,459, together with call premium of $218, April 15,
2007, the redemption date. Accrued interest or2€f¥8 Senior Notes totaling $6,013 was also padosing. The
Company incurred $8,759 of tender premium and aqprately $300 in fees and expenses related toetheer of
the 2003 Senior Notes. Net deferred financing cedéted to the 2003 Credit Facility and the 20@8i8r Notes
totaling approximately $3,209 were expensed irfitlsequarter of 2007.

On July 15, 2009, the Company and TSI, LLC entém&althe First Amendment to the 2007 Senior Credit
Facility (the “Amendment”), which amends the defm of “Consolidated EBITDA”, as defined in the@0Senior
Credit Facility to permit TSI, LLC (as Borrowerplsly for purposes of determining compliance witke thaximum
total leverage ratio covenant, to add back the armoiinon-cash charges relating to the impairmentrite-down
of fixed assets, intangible assets and goodwilé AMmendment also reduced the total Revolving Laaciliy by
15%, from $75,000 to $63,750. Additionally, the Guany incurred an aggregate of approximately $616es and
expenses related to the Amendment.

Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility will, at [TELC’s option, bear interest at either the adrsirative
agents base rate plus 0.75% or its Eurodollar rate plidS%, each as defined in the 2007 Senior Creditifya The
Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier of Feby¥, 2014, or August 1, 2013, if the Senior DigtoNotes are
still outstanding. TSI, LLC is required to repa®% of principal, or $463 per quarter beginninglane 30, 2007.
As of December 31, 2009, the Company has paid 8508utstanding principal.

The Revolving Loan Facility expires on February 2012 and borrowings under the facility currendy TSI,
LLC’s option, bear interest at either the admirigtte agent’s base rate plus 1.25% or the Euroddta plus
2.25%, as defined in the 2007 Senior Credit Fgcilihe Revolving Loan Facility contains a maximuotat
leverage covenant ratio of 4.25:1.00, which covéimasubject to compliance, on a consolidated basity during
the period in which borrowings and letters of ctede outstanding thereunder. As of December 309 2he
Companys leverage ratio, as defined, was 2.31:1.00. ABewfember 31, 2009, there were no outstanding Ring
Loan Facility borrowings and outstanding lettereiadit issued totaled $14,226. The unutilizediparof the
Revolving Loan Facility as of December 31, 2009 %48,524.

TSI, LLC’s applicable base rate and Eurodollar mtggins and commitment commission percentage wity
the Company’s consolidated secured leverage rEtie following table summarizes the interest rategims and
commitment commission percentages applicable aetbeparate secured ratio levels as follows:

Revolving Loans Applicable
Base Commitment
Rate Eurodollar Commission

Level Secured Leverage Ratio Margin Margin Percentage
3 Greater than 1.50 to 1.( 1.2%% 2.2%% 0.5(%
2  Greater than 1.00 to 1.00 but equal to or less thad to 1.0( 1.0(% 2.00% 0.5(%
1 Equalto or less than 1.00 to 1. 0.75% 1.75% 0.37%%

The Company’s secured leverage ratio as of DeceBthe2009 was within the Level 3 range at 2.31:1T0@
Company has been within the Level 3 range sinceriegtinto the Revolving Loan Facility in 2007 agxpects to
be in this range throughout 2010.
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Fair Market Value

Based on quoted market prices, the Senior Discdotgs and the Term Loan Facility had a fair valtie o
approximately $83,762 and $165,519, respectiveeatember 31, 2009 and the Senior Discount NotdsHair
value of approximately $126,034 at December 31820@rm Loan Facility had fair value of approximat$83,07(
at December 31, 2008. The Term Loan Facility hag limited trading volume during the three monthipe endec
December 31, 2008 and therefore, this fair valug based on trading activity in the third quarte2008 and
adjusted downward reflecting the relative trenthim Loan Credit Default Swap Index (LCDX). The Canp had
short-term debt of $19,000 outstanding on the RawglLoan Facility at December 31, 2008, which appmnated
fair value. As of December 31, 2009, there wer@utstanding Revolving Loan Facility borrowings.

Interest Expense

The Company’s interest expense and capitalizedesteelated to funds borrowed to finance clublitées
under construction for the years ended Decembe2(819, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Interest costs expens $20,97: $23,90: $26,40(
Interest costs capitaliz¢ 73 632 1,22¢
Total interest expense and amounts capital $21,04f $24,53: $27,62¢

The Company entered into a professional serviceemgent with Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Co., Inc.
("BRS"), a stockholder of the Company, for strategic andrfaial advisory services on December 10, 1996. foe
such services, which are included in general amdir@dtrative expenses, were $250 per annum. OreSeqar 16,
2008, an affiliate fund of BRS liquidated its owslgip in the Company. As a result, immediately failog the
distribution, this affiliate fund held no sharestié Company’s common stock and thus the profeaksmrvice
agreement was terminated. However, as a resuieddistribution, affiliates of BRS continue to osimares of the
Company’s Common Stock. No amounts were due BRE®a¢mber 31, 2009 and 2008.

9. Leases

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeatiomal facilities and certain equipment under-non
cancelable operating leases. In addition to baste ttee facility leases generally provide for autditl rent based on
operating results, increases in real estate taxg¢®ther costs. Certain leases provide for additioent based upon
defined formulas of revenue, cash flow or operatggylts of the respective facilities. Under thevisions of
certain of these leases, the Company is requiretbiatain irrevocable letters of credit, which amtad to $1,355
as of December 31, 2009.

The leases expire at various times through Nover8®eP029 and certain leases may be extended at the
Company’s option.

In the year ended December 31, 2009, the Compaayded early lease termination costs of $1,305ed!t0
five club closures prior to their lease expiratiates.
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Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelajpdgating leases are as follows:

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31

2010 $ 82,02¢
2011 81,31:
2012 78,43¢
2013 74,86¢
2014 71,34(
Aggregate thereaftt 456,92

Rent expense, including the effect of deferredddabilities, for the years ended December 31.92@008 and
2007 was $109,209, $98,763 and $87,738, respecti@ath amounts include additional rent of $20,48%,102
and $16,786, respectively.

The Company, as landlord, leases space to thitgl fEarants under non-cancelable operating leasks an
licenses. In addition to base rent, certain lepsegide for additional rent based on increasegah estate taxes,
indexation, utilities and defined amounts basetheroperating results of the lessee. The leasdreeadpvarious
times through March 31, 2028. Future minimum rentateivable under noncancelable leases are as/ll

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31

2010 $ 3,71
2011 3,34¢
2012 3,00¢
2013 2,291
2014 2,03¢
Aggregate thereaftt 30,06:

Rental income, including non-cash rental incomeftie years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and\2887
$4,740, $4,452 and $3,325, respectively. Such atsonclude additional rental charges above the berseof $474
$735 and $102, respectively. We own the buildingre of our club locations which houses a rentznée that
generated $1,970, $1,739 and $1,059 of rental iedomthe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 @®id, 2
respectively.

10. Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity
a. Capitalization

The Company’s certificate of incorporation adogtedonnection with the IPO provides for 105,000,80@res
of capital stock, consisting of 5,000,000 shareBreferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share @neférred Stock”
and 100,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par valli®$ per share (the “Common Stock”).

b. Common Stock Option

Grants vest in full at various dates between Jyr2910 and December 11, 2013. The vesting of cegiants
will be accelerated in the event that certain dafievents occur including the achievement of anegaity values ¢
the sale of the Company. The term of each gragerigerally ten years.
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As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, a tot@ll8{923, 426,384 and 503,870 Common Stock optiens
exercisable, respectively.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had 290,780 @8PB93 stock options outstanding under its 2004k
Option Plan and 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, respelgti The total compensation expense related tioapt
classified within payroll and related on the cordatled statements of income, related to these plass$1,562,
$1,155 and $913 for the years ended December 88, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and the relatetdeaefit
was $670, $492 and $345 for the years ended Dece3b2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

On May 30, 2006, the Board of Directors of the Campapproved the 2006 Stock Option Plan. The 2006
Stock Option Plan authorizes the Company to isgui® 1,300,000 shares of Common Stock to employpes the
exercise of Options Rights, Stock Appreciation RsgRRestricted Stock, in payment of Performance¢har other
stock-based awards. Under the 2006 Stock Optiam, Btack options may be granted at a price basedeofair
market value of the stock on the date the optiairamted, generally are not subject to re-pricind ao stock option
will be exercisable more than ten years after tite df grant. In March 2008, the Board of Directadspted the
Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Plarchwhimong other things, increased the aggregatéeuof
shares of Common Stock issuable under the plan2801000 shares to a total of 2,500,000 shares2066 Optior
Plan, as amended, was approved by stockholdeng 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May & As
of December 31, 2009, there were 567,323 sharélsbleato be issued under the Plan.

The following table summarizes the stock optionvitgtfor the years ended December 31, 2007, 20G8B a

20009:

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Common Price

Balance at January 1, 20 1,434,961 $ 8.2¢
Granted 464,50( 17.6:
Exercisec (275,089 7.5C
Cancellec (5,925 11.22
Forfeited (121,420 12.04
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,497,03! 11.01
Granted 903,37 4.8¢
Exercisec (195,700 6.1C
Cancellec (83,070) 10.4¢
Forfeited (240,079 12.5¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,881,56! 8.3¢
Granted 759,25( 2.17
Exercisec (22,400 1.61
Cancellec (75,440 11.3¢
Forfeited (259,29) 8.97
Balance at December 31, 2C 2,283,67. $ 6.2¢

F-25




Table of Contents

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The following table summarizes stock option infotima as of December 31, 2009:

Options Outstanding

Weighted- Options Exercisable
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

Common

2000 grant: 4,20( 5month: $ 5.3€ 4,20C $ 5.3¢€
2003 grant: 25,48( 46 month 10.2¢ 25,48( 10.2¢
2004 amended and repriced 2000 gr: 16,80( 5 month: 1.61 16,80( 1.61
2004 amended and repriced 2001 gr 44,80 18 month 3.3¢ — —
2004 amended and repriced 2003 gr: 128,24( 43 month 6.54 108,64( 6.54
2005 grant: 54,46( 64 month 6.54 30,94( 6.54
2006 grant: 260,11 72 month 11.8: 188,16! 12.1¢
2007 grant: 249,00 91 month 17.7¢ 135,91 17.8¢
2008 grant: 747,82t 104 month 45¢ 210,53: 4.8€
2009 grant: 752,75( 119 month 2.17 — —
Total Grants 2,283,67. 96 month $ 6.2z 719,920 $ 9.6F

Options granted during the year ended Decembe2(®19 to employees of the Company and members of the
Company’s Board of Directors were as follows:

Grant
Date Risk Free  Expectec
Number of Exercise Black-Schole: Aggregate Amount Dividend Interest Term

Date Options Price Valuation  Fair Value Expensec Volatility Yield Rate (Years)
January 2, 200 7,000 $ 3.21 % 194 % 14 $ 14 69.2% 0.C% 1.81% 5.5C
January 20, 200 12,75( $ 251 % 162 % 21 $ 4 71.8% 0.C% 1.71% 6.2
December 7, 200 50,00 $ 2.5¢ $ 187 $ 94 % 6 83.5% 0.C% 252%  6.2%
December 11, 20C 689,50( $ 2.1z $ 158 8% 106¢$ 58 84.1% 0.C% 252% 6.2

Total 759,25(

Options granted under the 2004 Stock Option Plareigdly qualify as “incentive stock options” undbe
U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Options granted urde2®06 Stock Option Plans generally qualify amn“gaalified
stock options” under the U.S. Internal Revenue Cotie exercise price of a stock option is generdjyal to the
fair market value of the Company’s Common Stockhenoption grant date.

The fair value of share-based payment awards wamaed using the Black-Scholes option pricing madéh
the following assumptions and weighted averageviaines as follows as of December 31, 2009:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate

Number of Exercise Contractual  Intrinsic

Shares Price Term Value

(In years) ($'000s)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,283,67. $6.2% 8.C $15€
Vested at December 31, 20 719,92: $9.6¢ 6.5 $ 12
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 719,92! $9.6€ 6.5 $ 12

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théedénce
between the estimated fair value of the Compangrsraon stock and the exercise price, multipliedhs/iumber
of in-the-money options) that would have been nexbby the option holders had all option holdersreised their
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options on December 31, 2009. The intrinsic vatueased on the fair market value of the Comparngsksand
therefore changes as the fair market value oftitekprice changes. The total intrinsic value ofi@ps exercised
was $52 for the year ended December 31, 2009.

As of December 31, 2009, a total of $2,030 unremeghcompensation cost related to stock optioes|rected
to be recognized, depending upon the likelihood &lcaelerated vesting targets are met in futureagerover a
weighted-average period of 3.5 years.
c. Common Stock Grants

Restricted Stock Grants

There were no restricted stock grants issued iy¢lae ended December 31, 2009. In the year ended
December 31, 2008, there were 31,000 shares oicteststock issued to employees of the Compang.tétal
compensation expense, classified within payroll metated on the consolidated statements of incoefeted to
these plans was $72 and $26 for the years endeehiitesr 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and théerktax
benefit was $31 and $12 for the years ended Dece®1h009 and 2008, respectively. The shares comésting
restrictions and vest 25% per year over four yearthe anniversary date of the grants. There wemrestricted
stock grants prior to 2008.

The total unrecognized compensation expense of &lé4pected to be recognized through Decembed 2.2
Non-Restricted Stock Grants

For each of the quarters ended March 31, 2009, 30n2009, September 30, 2009 and December 31, 299
Company issued non-restricted common stock grarttseet Company Board of Directors. The total fair value of
shares issued was expensed upon the grant datakshares issued were:

Number of Exercise Grant Date

Date Shares Price Fair Value
March 31, 200¢ 585: $ 29¢ $ 17
June 24, 200 4,666 $ 3.7t 17
September 24, 20( 7,35:  $ 2.3¢ 18
December 24, 20C 7,26:  $ 241 18

Total 25,13t $ 70

d. Common Stock Repurchast

On April 29, 2008, the Board of Directors approweplan to repurchase up to an aggregate of $2%000
Common Stock. The repurchase program continuedidgr®ecember 31, 2009.

During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 200& ompany repurchased 2,095,613 and
1,838,960 shares of common stock, respectively,caist of $5,355 and $4,645, respectively.
11. Asset Acquisition

For the year ended December 31, 2007 the Companpleted the acquisition of the assets of a sifgieds
club. The acquisition was not material to the ficiahposition, results of operations or cash flafishe Company.
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The table below summarizes the aggregate purchiasegnd the purchase price allocation to assepsiead for the
year ended December 31, 20

Number of clubs acquire 1
Purchase price payable in cash at clo: $4,45(
Total purchase price $4,45(
Allocation of purchase pric

Fixed asset $4,62¢
Other net liabilities acquire (176
Total allocation of purchase price $4,45(

For financial reporting purposes, this acquisitieers accounted for under the purchase method aadrdicgly.
the purchase price has been assigned to the assklisibilities acquired on the basis of their pxtjve fair values
on the date of acquisition. The results of operatiof the clubs have been included in the Comparynsolidated
financial statements from the acquisition date.
12. Revenue from Club Operations

Revenues from club operations for the years endsiDber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are summarizedbelo

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Membership due $387,120  $400,87: $374,63:
Initiation fees 12,04¢ 13,72: 12,31t
Personal training revent 56,97: 61,75: 56,10¢
Other club ancillary revent 24,58¢ 24,32¢ 24,24
Total club revenu 480,73 500,67¢ 467,29¢
Fees and Other reven 4,661 6,031 5,61¢
Total revenue $485,39: $506,70¢ $472,91!

13. Corporate Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for thageended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 cahsiStle

following:
Year Ended December 31, 2009
State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $2,17¢ $ 19¢ $ 144 $2,51f
Deferred (4,57%) — (3,740 (8,315

$(2,397) $ 19  $(3,59¢ $(5,800
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Year Ended December 31, 200

State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $4711 $ 26¢ $2,14° $ 7,12¢
Deferred 3,23¢ (1,157%) 2,07¢
$794 $ 265 $ 98 $ 9,204
Year Ended December 31, 200
State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $15,887 $ 182z $3,98: $20,05:
Deferred (9,377 — (2,530 (11,907
$(6,510 $ 182 $1,45: $ 8,14F

The components of deferred tax assets consisedbtlowing items:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred lease liabilitie

Deferred revenu

Deferred compensation expense incurred in conmeutith stock option:
State net operating loss ce-forwards

Interest accretio

Accruals, reserves and ott

Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed assets and intangible as:
Deferred cost

Net deferred tax asse

December 31

2009 2008
$15,66f  $14,47¢
8,25 10,23
2,04¢ 1,26
8717 1,01¢
27,41¢ 22,81¢
6,28 7,84¢
$60,547 $57,65!
$ 7,33¢  $ 9,44¢
2,63( 5,93¢
9,96¢ 15,38;
$50,58.  $42,26¢

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has post-tipped state NOL carry-forwards of $14,525. Such
amounts expire between December 31, 2021 and Dexedith2026. The Company has concluded that ibiem
likely than not that the net deferred tax asseahzd as of December 31, 2009 will be realized.

The Company’s foreign pre-tax earnings relatedhéoSwiss entity were $829, $1,044 and $797 foytaes
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respgctindithe related current tax provisions were $$289 and
$182, respectively. In December 2009, the Compamyded that the cumulative earnings of the Swisbsctould
be invested in the U.S. Accordingly, in accordawib ASC 740-30, the Company has recognized a defdax

liability of $637 for the U.S. taxes on the totaheulative earnings of the Swiss clubs.
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The differences between the U.S. federal statutamyme tax rate and the Company’s effective tas vatre as
follows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 201@B2007:

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Federal statutory tax ra (35% 35% 35%
State and local income taxes, net of federal tavefie 9) 8 6
Goodwill impairment — 50 —
Change in state effective income tax 1 2 @ —
State tax benefit related to insurance premi (12) (12 4)
Foreign rate differentie (@)} @ (€D}
Provision for undistributed earningsnor-U.S. subsidiarie: 6 — —
Other 1 1 1

(5% 8% 37%

The 2009 effective tax rate of 51% on our pre-tessslwas higher than the U.S. statutory tax rategmly due
State tax benefit related to insurance premiumstedest paid to the captive insurance company.

The 2008 effective tax rate of 80% was higher tienU.S. statutory tax rate primarily due to thedwill
impairment of clubs that were acquired in stockelbisansactions in our Boston Sports club region.

In June 2006, the FASB issued guidance clarifyirggaccounting for uncertainty in income taxes hspribing
a minimum probability threshold that a tax positionst meet before a financial statement benefgédéegnized. Th
Company adopted this guidance effective Janua2pQ7 and did not have a change to the liabilityuiorecognized
tax benefits as a result of the adoption. Unrectgghtax benefits were $1,155 for the years endediber 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007.

As of December 31, 2009, $751 represented the anodumrecognized tax benefits that, if recogniaeduld
affect the Company’s effective tax rate in any fatperiods. As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2id@rest
expense on unrecognized tax benefits was $53, $$%$39, respectively. The Company recognizes bd#rest
accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits andlfpes in income tax expenses. The Company hadalscfor
interest or penalties as of December 31, 2009 808 Bf $145 and $92, respectively. In 2010, $754rwécognize
tax benefits could be realized by the Company siheencome tax returns may no longer be subjeatitht during
2010.

The Company files Federal income tax returns, eidorjurisdiction return and multiple state anddloc
jurisdiction tax returns. The Federal governmemhpleted its examination of the years 2006 and 266dlting in
no additional tax payments. The Company is no losgbject to examinations of its Federal incomeréurns by
the Internal Revenue Service for years 2007 arat.pri

The State of New York is currently examining ye2@896 and 2007. The Company is no longer subject to
examinations of its income tax returns by the Seafdew York for years 2005 and prior.

14. Contingencies

On or about March 1, 2005, in an action sty&dah Cruz, et al v. Town Sports International/afdew York
Sports Cluh plaintiffs commenced a purported class actionregahe Company in the Supreme Court, New York
County, seeking unpaid wages and alleging that MIST, violated various overtime provisions of thevN¥ork
State Labor Law with respect to the payment of wagecertain trainers and assistant fitness masa@er or about
June 18, 2007, the same plaintiffs commenced ansgmorported class action against the Companyeirstipreme
Court of the State of New York, New York Countyekimg unpaid wages and alleging that TSI, LLC vieth
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various wage payment and overtime provisions ofNbe York State Labor Law with respect to the pagtred
wages to all New York purported hourly employeesild/the Company is unable at this time to estintlage
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome or the potaibss to the Company in the event of such anamés the
Company intends to contest this case vigorouslpending upon the ultimate outcome, this matter hraxe a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consdaiifihancial position, results of operations, astcllows.

On September 14, 2009, the staff of the SEC adilse€ompany that a formal order of private invggion
had been issued with respect to the Company. $ilge2008, the Company has been providing docurnaerds
testimony on a voluntary basis in response to forrimal inquiry by the staff of the SEC, which pririharelates to
the deferral of certain payroll costs incurred amigection with the sale of memberships in the Comisahealth an
fitness clubs and the time period utilized by tteerpany for the amortization of (i) such deferredtsanto expense
and (ii) initiation fees into revenue. The Compaowytinues to discuss these issues with the SEC &tdfto
cooperate fully with the Staff’'s investigation. TBempany cannot predict the outcome of, or theftiamee for, the
conclusion of this investigation.

On September 22, 2009, in an action stylewn Sports International, LLC v. Ajilon Solutigrs division of
Ajilon Professional Staffing LLC (Supreme Courtthé State of New York, New York County, 602911-065|,
LLC brought an action in the Supreme Court of ttetesof New York, New York County, against Ajiloarforeach
of contract, conversion and replevin, seeking, agmuther things, money damages against Ajilon feabhing its
agreement to design and deliver to TSI, LLC a nparts club enterprise management system known sSG|
including failing to provide copies of the compuseurce code written for GIMS, related documentatyoperly
identified requirements documents and other prgpasned and licensed by TSI, LLC. On October 2,2005I,
LLC moved for preliminary injunctive relief, demand that Ajilon immediately turn over the completedrk
project and licenses needed for the project soltBatLLC could evaluate the status of the progdd plan for its
completion. Subsequently, on October 14, 2009pAjibrought a counterclaim against TSI, LLC allegimgach of
contract, alleging, among other things, failur@ay outstanding invoices in the amount of $2.9iamill On
October 15, 2009, the court issued its first rulimgTSI, LLC’s motion for preliminary injunctive lief and ordered
Ajilon to provide certain materials created in ceation with the project, including the computer m@ucode writte
for GIMS, and reserved judgment on other aspectsSof LLC'’s request. On December 10, 2009, the Cdenied
TSI, LLC’s application for a preliminary injuncticrequiring Ajilon to provide certain licenses farftsvare used to
run GIMS. TSI, LLCS5 claim for permanent relief remains pending. Titigaltion is currently in the discovery pha
and the Company intends to prosecute vigorousigldisns against Ajilon and defend against Ajilonunterclaim.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, @mmpany is involved in various other lawsuits, iaiand
proceedings incidental to the ordinary course afiess. The results of litigation are inherentlpnadictable. Any
claims against the Company, whether meritoriousody could be time consuming, result in costhghtion, require
significant amounts of management time and reaudiversion of significant resources. The result§ese other
lawsuits, claims and proceedings cannot be pretligtéh certainty. The Company believes, howeveat the
ultimate resolution of these current matters watt have a material adverse effect on its finarsti@ements taken .
a whole.

15. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) defined contribufitam and is subject to the provisions of the Empgéo
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA™h& Plan provides for the Company to make discratipn
contributions. The Plan was amended, effective dgnii, 2001, to provide for an employer matchingtabution in
an amount equal to 25% of the participant’s contidn with a limit of five hundred dollars per intiual, per
annum. Employer matching contributions totaling $22d $180 were made in March 2009 and March 2008,
respectively, for the Plan years ended Decembe2@18 and 2007, respectively. The Company expeatsake an
employer matching contribution of approximately $2@ March 2010 for the Plan year ended Decembg@Q9.
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16. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
2009
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(b) (© (d)
Net revenue $126,70¢ $122,62( $119,28. $114,32:
Operating income (lost 5,57¢ 8,77¢ 1,444 (7,929
Net income (loss 63¢ 2,52¢ (1,48 (7,34¢)
Earnings (loss) per share!
Basic $ 00 $ 011 $ (0.079) $ (0.3
Diluted $ 00 $ 011 $ (0.07) $ (0.3
2008
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(e) ® )
Net revenu $126,32( $129,397 $128,10¢ $122,88
Operating incom: 14,08: 16,46¢ 11,58: (9,31))
Net income (loss 4,811 6,801 3,84( (13,119
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ 018 $ 02¢ $ 01t $ (0.5))
Diluted $ 018 $ 02 $ 014 $ (0.5))
(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share are ceedgntependently for each quarter presented. Aaeglyd the

(b)
(©
(d)

(e)
(f)
(9)

sum of the quarterly earnings per share may n@eagith the calculated full year earnings per st

Net income and earnings per share for the firsttqguaf 2009 include $639 and ($0.03), respectiviglythe
effect of impairment of fixed assets, net of 1

Net loss and loss per share for the third quaft@009 include $1,962 and ($0.09), respectivelytifer effect of
impairment of fixed assets, net of ti

Net loss and loss per share for the fourth quaft@009 include $6,948 and ($0.31), respectivehtlie effect
of impairments of fixed assets and internal-usénsok, net of tax, $424 and ($0.02), respectivaigted to a
previous accounting error in deferring the salaoiesiembership consultants and $302 and $0.01ectsply,
related to the correction of a rent settlementnged in the second quarter of 2009, net of

Net income and earnings per share for the secoadegof 2008 include $648 and ($0.02), respedtjvier the
effect of impairments of fixed assets, net of |

Net income and earnings per share for the thirdtquaf 2008 include $476 and ($0.02), respectivigythe
effect of impairments of fixed assets, net of |

Net loss and loss per share for the fourth quarft2008 include $16,925 and ($0.66), respectivielythe effec
of impairments of fixed assets and goodwill, netaof.
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The following is a list of all exhibits filed or @@rporated by reference as part of this Report:

Exhibit
No.

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

101

10.2

103

104

105

10.6

10.7

10.8

109

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiohawn Sports International Holdings, Inc. (the
“Registrant”) (incorporated by reference to Exhiit of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on

for the quarter ended June 30, 20(

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of the Regidirecorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registrar’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed on May 19, 2008)

Indenture dated as of February 4, 2004 by and ariomgn Sports International Holdings, Inc, and The
Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Eithil.1 of the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form &4, File No. 33:-114210(the“ S-4 Registration Stateme”)).

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated éference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Registrant’s
Registration Statement (Form £-1, File No. 33:-126428(the “ S-1 Registration Stateme”)).

Credit Agreement dated as of February 27, 200nayamong Town Sports International Holdings, Inc.
and Town Sports International, LLC, and DeutschelBBrust Company Americas, as administrative
agent, Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., as soledeathger and book manager, and a syndicate oétend
named therein (incorporated by reference to ExAibil of the Registrant’s Current Report on

Form &K filed March 5, 2007)

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as byf I, 2009, among Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc., Town Sports International, LLC,the borrower, the lenders from time to time pagty t
the Credit Agreement, dated as of February 27, 280d Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as
administrative agent for the lenders. (incorpordtgdeference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrantigi@nt
Report orForm ¢-K filed July 17, 2009)

Subsidiaries Guaranty dated as of February 27,,20@de by each of the guarantors named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of thegRtrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Maggh
2007).

Borrower/Sub Pledge Agreement, dated as of FebR2iar2007, among each of the pledgors named
therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company AmericaspHateral agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Registra’'s Current Report oForm &K filed March 5, 2007)

Security Agreement, dated as of February 27, 20@ide by each of the assignors named therein i favo
of Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as colatgent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit:
of the Registrar's Current Report oForm &K filed March 5, 2007)

Restructuring Agreement, dated as of February @426y and among Town Sports International, Inc.,
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. BruckmaRosser, Sherril & Co., L.P. the individuals and
entities listed on the BRS Co-Investor SignaturgeBahereto, Farallon Capital Partners, L.P., karal
Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., RR CapitaitRars, L.P., and Farallon Capital InstitutionaitRars

I, L.P., Canterbury Detroit Partners, L.P., Cabtey Mezzanine Capital, L.P., Rosewood Capital, L.P
Rosewood Capital IV, L.P., Rosewood Capital IV Adates, L.P., CapitalSource Holdings LLC, Keith
Alessi, Paul Arnold, and certain stockholders ef @ompany listed on the Executive Signature Pages
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1df.the S-4 Registration Statemen

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Febrda®004, by and among Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc., Town Sports International, Inc.uBkmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Co., L.P. the individua
and entities listed on the BRS Co-Investor SigreaReages thereto, Farallon Capital Partners, L.P.,
Farallon Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., RRp@al Partners, L.P., and Farallon Capital Ingtnal
Partners Il, L.P., Canterbury Detroit Partners,. L Ganterbury Mezzanine Capital, L.P., Rosewood
Capital, L.P., Rosewood Capital IV, L.P., Rosew@apital IV Associates, L.P., CapitalSource Holdings
LLC, Keith Alessi, Paul Arnold, and certain stoclders of the Company listed on the Executive
Signature Pages thereto (incorporated by referenEghibit 10.5 of th¢S-4 Registration Statemen
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights Agreeindated as of March 23, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 of the Registrant’s Aalfkeport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (t*2005Form 1(-K")).

Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Rights Agreeinderted as of May 30, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9.1 of tIS-1 Registration Statemen
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1C.1C

1C0.11

1C.12

1C.13
*10.14

*10.15

*10.16
*10.17
*10.18

*10.19

*10.2C

*10.21
*10.22
*10.23

*10.24

*10.25

*10.26

*10.27

*10.28
*10.29

*10.3C
21

Description of Exhibit

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of February 4, 20p4nd among Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc., Town Sports International, Inc.dahe other signatories thereto (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of ttS-4 Registration Statemen

Pledge Agreement, dated as of February 4, 200veleet Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as collatgraht, for the benefit of the Secured Creditoss (a
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Exhibit 10.2¢

EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE AGREEMENT — SCOTT MILFORD

Executive Severance Agreement, dated as ofébker 7, 2009 (this Agreement”), between Town Sports International, LLC (the “
Company”) and Scott Milford (the ‘Executive”).

WHEREAS , the Compensation Committee of the Board of Daecof Town Sports International Holdings, Inceg tarent of the
Company (the Holdings ") has authorized this offer of Severance Paymigntise event of a Qualifying Termination of emplogmt due to a
Change in Control of Holdings or the Company;

WHEREAS , the Severance Payments in this Agreement areedfia exchange for the commitments of the Exeeudis set forth herein.

WHEREAS , by signing and returning this Agreement, the Eitiee acknowledges and agrees to comply with tleipions of this
Agreement and acknowledges that the executionSefparation and Release Agreement is a requiremerdgdeiving the Severance Paymi
under this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing and the mutimalenants and agreements herein contained, andlinggto be
legally bound hereby, the parties hereby agreelasifs:

1. Definitions. As used herein, the terms identified below shalle the meanings indicated:

(a) “Cause” means the Company'’s termination of the Executiee'®loyment with the Company as a result of: (i) dteve’s willful
failure to perform any material portion of his digj (ii) the commission of any fraud, misappropoior misconduct by Executive that cau
demonstrable injury, monetarily or otherwise, te @ompany or an affiliate; (iii) the conviction ok, pleading guilty or no contest to, a felc
involving moral turpitude; (iv) an act resulting iotended to result, directly or indirectly, in ragtl gain or personal enrichment to the
Executive at the expense of the Company or anaéfijl (v) any material breach of Executive’s fidugi duties to the Company or an affiliate
as an employee or officer; (vi) a material violatiaf the Town Sports International Code of Ethied Business Conduct, as amended from
time to time, and such material policies and praces of the Company; (vii) any material breachhefterms of any agreement between
Executive and the Company or any affiliate, inchgdany of the restrictive covenants imposed purtsieatne Holdings’ stock option and
similar incentive plans and the related stock optigreement issued thereunder, if such breaclasonably likely to result in a material injt
to the Company or an affiliate.

(b) “Change in Control” means:

(i) The acquisition by any “person” orégip” (as such terms are used in Sections 13(d)L4(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (th&kchange Act”) (other than BRS, the BRS Investors and theipeetive Permitted Transferees (each as defined in
the Credit Agreement), of beneficial ownership fivitthe meaning of Rules 13d-3 and 1Bgdromulgated under the Exchange Act) of 35¢
more of either (A) the then outstanding sharesoafimon stock of Holdings (theOutstanding Holdings Common




Stock™), or (B) the combined voting power of the thertstanding voting securities of Holdings entitleds/tie generally in the election of
directors (the ‘Outstanding Holdings Voting Securities”);

(i) Individuals who, as of the date bist Agreement, constitute the Board (th@¢umbent Board ") cease for any reason to constitute
at least a majority of the Board; provided, howeteat any individual becoming a director subsetjt@the date hereof whose election, or
nomination for election by Holdings’ stockholdenss approved or recommended by a vote of at leastjarity of the directors then
comprising the Incumbent Board shall be considasethough such individual were a member of theritment Board, but excluding, for this
purpose, any such individual whose initial assuomptf office occurs as a result of an actual oedbened election contest with respect to the
election or removal of directors or other actuathveatened solicitation of proxies or consent®bgn behalf of a Person other than the
Board,;

(iif) Consummation of a reorganizatiorenger or consolidation involving Holdings (8tisiness Combinatior’), in each case, unless,
following such Business Combination, all or substdly all of the Persons who were the beneficiahers, respectively, of the Outstanding
Holdings Common Stock and Outstanding Holdings Mp®&ecurities immediately prior to such Businesm@ination beneficially own,
directly or indirectly, more than 65% of, respeetiy the then outstanding shares of common stodktas combined voting power of the then
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote galtgin the election of directors, as the case inayof the Person resulting from such
Business Combination (including, without limitatiaPerson which as a result of such transactiarsddoldings or all or substantially all of
Holdings’ assets either directly or through one or more slign$és) in substantially the same proportionshag bwnership, immediately pri
to such Business Combination, of the Outstandinlgliigs Common Stock and Outstanding Holdings Vo&agurities, as the case may be;

(iv) Sale or other disposition of allsubstantially all the assets of Holdings or the @any; or

(v) Approval by the stockholders of Haoigs or approval by the member(s) of the Compargy@implete liquidation, winding up or
dissolution of Holdings or the Company, as the caag be.

(b) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameadeédhe regulations and other guidance promulgagethe Treasury
Department and the Internal Revenue Service theerun

(c) “Constructive Termination” means the Executive’s voluntary termination of esgpient with the Company as a result of (i) a
material diminution in the Executive’s authorityties, or responsibilities, or a change in the Exge’s supervisory reporting relationship
within the Company, except as part of, and consistéth, an organizational change; (ii) a changeised by the Company, in geographic
location of greater than 50 miles of the locatibmhich the Executive primarily performs services the Company:; or (iii) a material
reduction in the Executive’s base pay or incenti@gh compensation; provided,

2




however, that none of the foregoing conditionsvangs shall constitute Constructive Terminatioresal(A) the Executive shall have
provided written notice to the Company within niné20) days after the occurrence of such conditioavent describing the condition or
event claimed to constitute Constructive Termimatad (B) the Company shall have failed to remé@ycondition or event within thirty
(30) days of its receipt of such written notice.

(d) “Credit Agreement” means the Credit Agreement among Holdings, then@my, the Various Lenders party thereto, and @&ets
Bank Trust Company Americas, dated February 277289 in effect as of the date of this Agreement.

(e) “Disability” means any medically determinable physical or meémtphirment resulting in the Executive’s inabiltty perform the
duties of his or her position or any substantialiypilar position, where such impairment is expedtertkesult in death or is expected to last for
a continuous period of not less than six (6) manths

(f) “ Person” means any individual, firm, corporation, partrtéps limited liability company, trust, joint venteir governmental entity or
other entity.

(9) “Severance Payments’means the aggregate gross amount of severance p@ydatermined in accordance with Sections 2 aofd 3
this Agreement to be paid to the Executive whaiitled to receive such severance benefits undetpreement.

(h) “Termination Date” means the date on which the Executive has a tetimmaf employment from the Company.
2. Eligibility . The Executive shall be eligible for Severancenfayts under this Agreement following a Qualifyingrihination as follows:

(a) _Qualifying TerminationThe Company will pay Severance Payments undeardde® of this Agreement on account of either e
events occurring within a period of six (6) montbowing the date of a Change in Control:

(i) involuntary termination of the Exem&’'s employment by the Company that is not for &&gwor
(i) voluntary separation of the Execetias a result of a Constructive Termination.

(b) NonQualifying Termination Notwithstanding Section 2(a) of this Agreemerthing in this Agreement shall be construed to iequ
the Company to pay severance benefits to the Eixedfithe Executive terminates Employment with @@mpany as the result of:

(i) voluntary separation (a separatiog|uding retirement, initiated by the Executiveher than a voluntary separation pursuant to
Section 2(a)(ii);

(ii) retirement, whether early retirememtirement at normal retirement age or retirenfieifawing normal retirement age;
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(iif) the Company having terminated slotecutive’s employment for Cause;

(iv) death;

(v) Disability; or

(vi) a separation or termination for amgson more than six (6) months following the drite Change in Control.

(c) Separation Release Agreemeftte eligibility for receipt of benefits under shAgreement as described in Section 3 (the “Seeeran
Benefits”) is expressly conditioned upon the foliog (i) the Executive’s signing of a release inieththe Executive releases and/or waives
any and all claims the Executive may have agaimesttompany within the time specified therein butdnevent later than fifty (50) days of
the Termination Date and (ii) the release becorsiifigctive. The Company shall provide to Executive telease no later than three (3) days
following Executive’s Termination Date. If Executioes not timely execute and deliver to the Comaich release, or if Executive
executes such release but revokes it, no SeveBereits shall be paid.

3. Amount, Payment and Timing of Severance

(a) _Amount and Payment of Severance

(i) Unless otherwise provided herein, Bxecutive shall receive the following severancgnpents: An amount equal to the sum of one
(1) times the Executive’s annual base salary dlseoExecutive’s Termination Date payable in a twdli2) equal monthly installments (such
twelve-month period, the Severance Period), less all applicable withholding taxes, payahtedescribed in Section 3(b) below; provided
however, that the Severance Period shall immegi&teminate, and no further amounts shall be dusyaunt to this Section 3(i) in the event
Executive has materially breached any of the texntsconditions of this Agreement, including Sectddmereunder.

(i) An amount equivalent to Executiv@i®-rata annual bonus (based on the number ofiddigcal year through the Termination
Date) with respect to the fiscal year in which Treemination Date occurred that Executive would oilige have been entitled to receive had
Executive remained in the employ of the Compangugh the payment date of such bonus. The bonus@mdllibe based upon the bonus
plan and targets approved by the Board of Direatbtdoldings (or a committee thereof) and assuntiirggapproved bonus target had been
met, which amount shall be payable at such timaoasises are paid to the Company’s employees ggnbtalno later than March 15 of the
year following the year to which the bonus relafigss bonus payment shall be subject to all ottens of Holding’ bonus plan and shall be
and subject to deduction for all required income payroll taxes.

(iii) The Company shall continue Execatsshealth and dental coverage (or provide compasaibstitute coverage), and continue to
pay that portion of the premium that it pays fotivaeemployees at such times as the Company maiokspayments for its active employees
on a monthly basis until the earlier of (i) thetlday of the Severance Period and (ii) the date/lsich Executive is eligible for coverage un
another group health and dental




insurance plan; provided however, that the Sever&eriod shall immediately terminate, and no furtrounts shall be due pursuant to this
Section 3(iii) in the event Executive has mateyiblleached any of the terms and conditions ofAlgieement, including Section 4 hereunder.
Executive agrees to promptly notify the Companwiiting in the event that Executive is eligible fmoverage under another such plan. If not
otherwise covered by a group health or dental ptathe end of the Severance Period, Executive sdaligible for COBRA continuation
coverage on such date on the same terms and aorsd#s offered to other eligible plan participaaty, if you elect such coverage, you shall
be fully responsible for the associated premiums.

(iv) During the Severance Period, Exaaitind his immediate family will continue to havesBport Memberships (or its equivalent) at
no cost to such Executive (provided however thahsuemberships shall cease in the event Execudisertaterially breached the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, including Sectionetdunder). The aforementioned memberships aredubjall of the Company’s
membership rules, regulations and policies curyantkeffect and as may be amended from time to.time

(b) Timing of Payment.

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Severance Benefits described in se@&{ai(i) shall be paid, minus applicable deductjonsluding deductions for tax
withholding, in equal payments on the regular phytates during the one-year period following Ex@eeis termination of
employment. Commencement of payments of the Sewerdanefits described in Section 3(a)(i) shall begi the first payroll
date that occurs at least 60 days after the Tetinm®ate, but which may be accelerated by no ritzaa 30 days (the * Starting
Date”) provided that Executive has satisfied the regmients of Section 2(c). The first payment on thagment Starting Date shall
include those payments that would have previousntpaid if the payments of the Severance Bereiisbegun on the first
payroll date following the Termination Date. Thiging of the commencement of benefits is subje@eotion 15 below

All Severance Benefits shall be complebsg and no further Severance Benefits shall be ldayafter, December 31 of the second
taxable year following the year in which Execu’s termination of employment occu

Executives entitlement to the payments of the Severancefigdescribed in the Section 3(a)(i) shall be tedaas the entitleme
to a series of separate payments for purposesatib&el09A of the Internal Revenue Code of 198Graended, (th*Cod¢”).

For purposes of this Agreement, “terminatdf employment” shall mean a “separation of se¥/as defined in Section 409A of
the Code and Treasury Regulations Section 1.-1(h) without regard to the optional alternativeidiéibns available thereunde

5




4. NonCompete and Nosolicitation.

(a) As an inducement to the Company to enterthis Agreement, the Executive agrees thatuiing the Executive’s period of
employment with the Company or any of its Affiliateand (ii) during the twelve (12)-month perioddaling the Termination Date (the “
Non-compete Period”), the Executive shall not, directly or indirectiun, manage, control, participate in, consult winder services for,
or in any manner engage in, any business compeiiagtly or indirectly with the business as coneulcby the Company or any of its
Affiliates during the Executive period of employment with the Company or anytefiffiliates or at the time of the Termination Bair with
any other business that is the logical extensiah®iCompany’s and its Affiliates’ business durthg Executive’s period of employment with
the Company or any of its Affiliates or at the timfethe Executive’s Termination of Employment, viitlany metropolitan area in which the
Company or any of its Affiliates engages or hasnitdfe plans to engage in such business; provitiediever, that the Executive shall not be
precluded from purchasing or holding publicly trddecurities of any entity so long as the Execusival hold less than 2% of the
outstanding units of any such class of securitishaas no active participation in the businessiohsentity. The Executive agrees that the
following entities are examples of competitive Imesises and are not exclusive: Crunch, 24 HourneguNY Health and Racquet Club, LA
Fitness, Sports & Health, Lifetime and Bally’s.

(b) As an inducement to the Company to emtier this Agreement the Executive agrees that duhiegNon-compete Period, the Executive
shall not directly or indirectly (i) induce or att@t to induce any employee of the Company or aritsdiffiliates to leave the employ of the
Company or any of its Affiliates, or in any wayenfere with the relationship between the Compargnyrof its Affiliates and any employee
thereof, (ii) hire any person who was an employieth® Company or any of its Affiliates at any timering the Executive’s employment
period except for such employees who have beerinated for at least six months, or (jii) induceattempt to induce any customer, supplier,
licensee, franchisor or other business relatioth@fCompany or any of its Affiliates to cease ddiginess with such member, or in any way
interfere with the relationship between any sucst@mer, supplier, licensee, franchisor or busimelsgion, on the one hand, and the Com;
or any of its Affiliates, on the other hand.

(c) The provisions of this Section 4 shallvéug any expiration or termination of this Agreerhen

(d) If it is determined by a court of compétgmisdiction that any of the provisions of thisction 4 is excessive in duration or scope or
otherwise is unenforceable, then such provision beagnodified or supplemented by the court to reiitdemforceable to the maximum extent
permitted by law.

5. Confidential Information The Executive expressly recognizes and acknowletitat during the Executive’s employment with the
Company, the Executive became entrusted with, be€lsa to, or gained possession of confidentiapaogrietary information, data,
documents, records, materials, and other tradetseand/or other proprietary business informatiothhe@ Company that is not readily availe
to competitors, outside third parties and/or thelioyincluding without limitation, information alo (i) current or prospective customers
and/or suppliers, (i) employees, research, goddpribduction, and prices, (iii) business methods,
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processes, practices or procedures; (iv) compoferare and technology development, and (v) busiséstegy, including acquisition,
merger and/or divestiture strategies, (collectivalyvith respect to any of the foregoing, th€dnfidential Information ”). The Executive
agrees, by acceptance of the right to receive &aeerPayments under this Agreement, that: (i) sressuant to prior written consent by the
Company, the Executive shall not disclose any @emfiial Information for any purpose whatsoever ssieompelled by court order of
subpoena,; (ii) the Executive shall treat as comfiidé all Confidential Information and shall takeasonable precautions to prevent
unauthorized access to the Confidential Informat{oi the Executive shall not use the Confidehtigormation in any way detrimental to t
Company or any of its affiliates; and (iv) the Extiee agrees that the Confidential Information aled during the Executive’s employment
with the Company shall remain the exclusive prgpeftthe Company and its affiliates, and the Exeeushall promptly return to the
Company all material which incorporates, or is dedifrom, all such Confidential Information uponnténation of the Executive’s
employment with the Company or any of its affilaté is hereby agreed that Confidential Informatitnes not include information generally
available and known to the public other than thiotige disclosure thereof by or through the Exeeutivobtained from a source not bount

a confidentiality agreement with the Company or ahigs affiliates.

6. Natices. Any notice or communication given hereunder (eatiNotice”) shall be in writing and shall be sent by perdatedivery, by
courier or by United States mail (registered otified mail, postage prepaid and return receiptiesed), to the appropriate party at the
address set forth below, or such other address thetattention of such other person as a party Istnge specified by prior Notice to the other
party. Each Notice will be deemed given and effectipon actual receipt (or refusal of receipt).

If to the Company, to:

Town Sports International, LLC
5 Penn Plaza (#Floor)

New York, New York 10001
Attention: President

With a copy to: General Counsel
If to the Executive, to:

The address for the Executive on file with the Camp

7. No Obligation to Continue Employmenthis Agreement is not an agreement of continuedl@yment. This Agreement does not
guarantee that the Company or its Affiliates witi@oy, retain or continue to, employ or retain Ereecutive, nor does it modify in any
respect any right of the Company or of any Afféiaif the Company to terminate or modify the Exe@isi employment or compensation.

8. Waiver of Jury Trial EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAHAVE TO TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT
OF ANY LITIGATION BASED ON, ARISING OUT OF, UNDER @ IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
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COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALING, VERBAL OR WIRIEN STATEMENT OR ACTION OF ANY PARTY HERETO.

9. Governing Law All questions concerning the construction, vajidind interpretation of this Agreement will be gaved by, and constru
in accordance with, the domestic laws of the Sthtéew York, without giving effect to any choice lafv or conflict of law provision or rule
(whether of the State of New York or any othergdiction) that would cause the application of #ned of any jurisdiction other than the Si
of New York.

10. Consent to Jurisdictiarin the event of any dispute, controversy or clagtween the Company or any Affiliate and the Exigeun any
way concerning, arising out of or relating to tAgreement (a Dispute "), including without limitation any Dispute concernjrayising out ¢
or relating to the interpretation, application af@cement of this Agreement, the parties herebppgace and consent to the personal
jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New Ydokated in New York County and/or the Federal t®af the United States of Ameri
located in the Southern District of New York (caligely, the “Agreed Venue”) for resolution of any such Dispute, (b) agreattthose
courts in the Agreed Venue, and only those cosahall have exclusive jurisdiction to determine &igpute, including any appeal, and

(c) agree that any cause of action arising ouhisfAgreement shall be deemed to have arisen fralanaaction of business in the State of
New York. The parties also hereby irrevocably @ihmit to the jurisdiction of any competent courthie Agreed Venue (and of t
appropriate appellate courts therefrom), (ii) te thllest extent permitted by law, waive any ardlafenses the parties may have on the
grounds of lack of jurisdiction of any such countlaany other objection that such parties may noheoeafter have to the laying of the venue
of any such suit, action or proceeding in any stailrt (including without limitation any defense tlaay such suit, action or proceeding
brought in any such court has been brought in eanvenient forum), and (iii) consent to servicgaicess in any such suit, action or
proceeding, anywhere in the world, whether withinv@hout the jurisdiction of any such court, inyamanner provided by applicable law.
Without limiting the foregoing, each party agrelesattservice of process on such party pursuantNotize shall be deemed effective servic
process on such party. Any action for enforcememécognition of any judgment obtained in conneattigth a Dispute may enforced in any
competent court in the Agreed Venue or in any otloeirt of competent jurisdiction.

11. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed (including by fagsitnansmission) with counterpart signature payes separate
counterparts each of which shall be an original@hdf which taken together shall constitute ond the same agreement.

12. Waiver. The failure of the Company to enforce at any tang of the provisions of this Agreement, or touieg at any time performance
of any of the provisions of this Agreement, shalhb way be construed to be a waiver of these gi@vs, nor in any way to affect the valid
of this Agreement or any part thereof, or the righthe Company thereafter to enforce every prowisi

13. Severability and InterpretatioMhenever possible, each provision of this Agregraad any portion hereof shall be interpretediichsa
manner as to be effective and valid under applect, rules and regulations. If any covenant beopprovision of this Agreement (or
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portion thereof) shall be held to be invalid, ikkgor incapable of being enforced, by reason gfrate of law, rule, regulation, administrative
order, judicial decision or public policy, all otheonditions and provisions of this Agreement shradivertheless, remain in full force and
effect, and no covenant or provision shall be dekdependent upon any other covenant or provisiopddion) unless so expressed herein.
The parties hereto desire and consent that theé opother body making such determination shaltheextent necessary to avoid any
unenforceability, so reform such covenant or offirervision or portions of this Agreement to the rmnim extent necessary so as to render the
same enforceable in accordance with the intentiiersgressed.

14. No Mitigation Required The Executive shall not be required to mitigate amount provided for in Section 3 hereof by segkither
employment or otherwise, nor shall the amount gf@ayment provided for in Section 3 hereof be redusy any compensation earned by
Executive as the result of employment by anothquleyer after the date of termination, or otherwise.

15. Section 409A

(a) _Potential Delay of Paymentlotwithstanding any other provisions of this Agmeent, any payment under this Agreement of the
Severance Benefits that the Company reasonablyndiieies is subject to Section 409(a)(2)(B)(i) of @ede shall not be paid or payment
commenced until six months after Executive’s Temtion Date of Executive’s death. On the earlieg d&twhich such payments can be
made or commenced without violating the requirementSection 409(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code, Executball be paid, in a single cash lump
sum, an amount equal to the aggregate amount pagthents delayed pursuant to the preceding semtenc

(b) Section 409A Savings Claudeis intended that any amounts payable undsrAlgreement shall either be exempt from SectiorA409
of the Code or shall comply with Section 409A (irdihg Treasury regulations and other publishedangé related thereto) so as not to
subject Executive to payment of any additional fseqalty or interest imposed under Section 409thefCode. The provisions of this
Agreement shall be construed and interpreted tadate imputation of any such additional tax, pgnat interest under Section 409A of the
Code yet preserve (to the nearest extent reasopabgible) the intended benefit payable to Exeeutiotwithstanding the foregoing, the
Company makes no representations regarding thieatment of any payments hereunder, and the Execshall be responsible for any and
all applicable taxes, other than the Company’sesbaemployment taxes on the severance paymentgprbby the Agreement.
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16.IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties have executed this agreement, eféeat of the date and year first above written.
TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL, LLC

By:  /s/ Alex Alimanestianu

Name Alex Alimanestiant
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Executive:

/sl Scott Milford
Scott Milford
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Exhibit 10.3(

EXECUTION COPY

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL, LLC
5 PENN PLAZA
NEW YORK, NY 10001

As of December 7, 2009

Mr. James Rizzo

c/o Town Sports International Holdings, Inc.
5 Penn Plaza #Floor

New York, NY 10001

Dear Jim:

This letter agreement (th&greement”) confirms the terms that Town Sports Internatioh&al; (the “Company”) is offering you in
connection with your resignation from the employtted Company and its affiliates and from all offieed other positions that you currently
hold with the Company and its affiliates, includifigwn Sports International Holdings, IRETSI Holdings”).

1. Separation Date

(a) The employment relationship between yadithe Company and its subsidiaries and affilisdssapplicable, will end on December 22,
2009 (the'Separation Date”).

(b) During the period between the date heamofthe Separation Date, you will receive your lsadary at the rate in effect on the date
hereof, participate in the Company’s benefit plenaccordance with their terms and your TSI Holdieguity will remain outstanding and
continue to vest. During this period, you will hawe authority to act on behalf of the Company eadithe Company and you will not give ¢
person the appearance that you have such autherayptly following the Separation Date, you widl paid for any accrued, but not taken,
vacation days (which we hereby agree equals twds)ee accordance with the Company’s prevailingrpiyractices. Information
regarding your ability to continue your health irce coverage under the Company’s group healthplesuant to the federal “COBRA”
law will be sent to you separately by the appliegilan administrator following the Separation Date.

2. Separation Benefittn return for your agreement (without revocatiom)and compliance with, your commitments and oliliges set forth
in this Agreement, and subject to the terms of Agseement:




(a) The Company will continue to pay you ybase salary (at the rate in effect on the Separ&taie) for a period commencing on the
Separation Date and ending on September 30, 2B&0Sgverance Period”),payable in accordance with the Company’s prevagiagroll
practices; provided, however, that such paymeritcammence within 30 days after the expiratioribad revocation period (without
revocation) and such first payment will includedbgayments that would have previously been pdftede severance payments had begun
on the first payroll date following the Separatdate; provided, further, that (i) such paymentd eglse immediately upon you having
obtained employment or a full-time consulting agament on or after July 1, 2010 or (ii) such payte&ill be reduced dollar-for-dollar by
any other compensation (including, part-time cotisgylfees) that you receive for services renderedraafter July 1, 2010 but before
September 30, 2010. You agree to give the Compeowt written notice of any employment or engagetmemprovide services to any third
party that may occur during the Severance Period.

(b) If you timely elect to continue your héattoverage through COBRA, the Company will pay hation of the premium that it would
have paid if you were an active employee with tme level of coverage through the end of the Secer&eriod or, if earlier, until you
become eligible for comparable coverage.

(c) Until the end of the Severance Periodhe#co/ou and your wife may continue to utilize as8aort Membership (or its equivalent) at no
cost, and be entitled to receive Personal Traiegggions at employee rates. The aforementioned aerships are subject to all of the
Company’s membership rules, regulations and palicierently in effect and as may be amended from to time.

(d) The Company will pay up to $2,500 for ytegal fees incurred in connection with the nedimtraof this Agreement upon presentment
of an invoice.

(e) You shall be reimbursed for up to $10,8006utplacement assistance with a firm of your @hinosing upon presentment of an invo
Such services must be commenced within 60 dayseoSeparation Date.

(f) All payments described herein will be sedijto deduction for all required income and pdyteoies.

3. Release

(a) In consideration of the obligations conéal in Section 2 of this Agreement, you (for yolfrseur heirs, legal representatives,
executors or administrators (collectively, ydRepresentatives”)) hereby release and forever discharge the Compaiyidldings, their
respective subsidiaries and affiliates and eadheif respective officers, employees, directors agents (collectively, thtReleased
Parties”) from any and all claims and rights which you mayéhagainst them, and you hereby specifically releasive and forever hold
them harmless from and against any and all suéms]diability, causes of action, compensation,dfig, damages, attorney fees, costs or
expenses, of whatever nature or kind and whethewhkror unknown, fixed or contingent, and by reasbany matter, cause, charge, claim,
right or action whatsoever, which have arisen gttane up to and including the date of execution of

-2-




this Agreement, including, but not limited to, teaising during or in any manner out of your ergpient with, or your resignation from, the
Company, or anything else that may have happenéd apd including the day you sign this Agreem&ht rights, claims, causes of action,
and liabilities that you are releasing and waiMimgude, but are not limited to, those that concesfate to, or might arise out of the followi
salary, overtime, bonuses, equity and severaneegements, benefit plans; commissions; breachpmisas or implied contract or promise;
harassment, intentional injury or intentional toraud, misrepresentation, battery, assault, defiamabreach of fiduciary duty, tort or public
policy claims, whistleblower claims, negligencec(irding negligent hiring, retention and/or supeini3, wrongful or retaliatory discharge,
infliction of emotional injury, or any other faots claims; retirement, stock option or any othendfés; the Equal Pay Act (29 U.S.C. §206
et seq.); the Age Discrimination in Employment ADEA) (29 U.S.C. 8621, et seq.); Title VII of ti@vil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.
82000e, et seq.); ERISA (the Employee Retiremertdrire Security Act of 1974 (29 U.S.C. §1001, et)setiper than any vested ERISA
benefit; COBRA (the Consolidated Omnibus Budgetdrediation Act of 1986, 29 U.S.C. §21161, et spth¢ federal and NY WARN Act;
the American with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 8§121@t seq.); the National Labor Relations Act dralltabor Management Relations Act,
U.S.C. 8141 et seq.; the Family and Medical Leage(R9 U.S.C. §2601, et seq.); the United Statass@ation; the Civil Rights Act of 199
the Civil Rights Acts of 1866 or 1871 (42 U.S.C1881,1983,1985, et seq.); retaliation under angri@dstate, or local law; any claims for
costs or attorney fees; the fair employment prasti&EP) laws and employment-related laws of adgrid, state, or local jurisdiction
(including the New York State Human Rights Law, Néark Administrative Code), and any other fedes#dte, city, county or other
common law, law, or ordinance, including but natited to those where you work and/or reside. Y@urant releasing any rights or claims
that arise following the effective date of this Agment.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the releastforth in Section 3(a), will not apply to (iJet obligations of the Company under this
Agreement, (ii) your vested benefits under the Canys 401(k) plan, and (iii) the Company’s obligets under the Option Plans (as defined
and set forth below in Section 4), and any relaigtibn agreement or vested benefit(s) to which yaulegally entitled. You further agree tl
the payments and benefits described in this Agreemidl be in full satisfaction of any and all chas for payments or benefits, whether
express or implied, that you may have against tagany, TSI Holdings or any of their respectivesidiaries or affiliates arising out of yc
employment relationship, your service as an em@ayeofficer of the Company, TSI Holdings or anytlodir respective subsidiaries or
affiliates and your resignation therefrom. You lracknowledge and confirm that you are providimg rielease and discharge set forth in
this Section 3 only in exchange for consideratimaddition to anything of value to which you aresatly entitled.

(c) You represent and agree that you havdiledtany lawsuits against any Released Partyiled br caused to be filed any charges or
complaints against any Released Party with any ot state or federal agency charged with thereefnent of any law. Pursuant to and as
a part of your release and discharge of the Rale@agties, you agree, except for your right, if ,anybring a proceeding pursuant to the Older
Workers Benefit Protection Act to challenge thddig} of the release of claims pursuant to the Agscrimination in Employment Act
contained in Section 3 of this Release, and cadistith the EEOC Enforcement Guidance On
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Non-Waivable Employee Rights Under EEOC-Enforced $¢atdated April 11,1997, and otherwise to the marinextent permitted by
applicable law, not to sue or file a charge or claimp against any Released Party in any forum sisasr otherwise participate willingly or
voluntarily in any claim, suit, action, investigati or other proceeding of any kind which relateartg matter that involves any Released
Party, and that occurred up to and including the ddyour execution of this Agreement, unlesseagiired to do so by court order, subpoena
or other directive by a court, administrative ageaclegislative body, other than to enforce thgrédement. With respect to the claims you
waiving herein, you are waiving any right to re@eimoney or any other relief in any action institlite your behalf by any other person,
entity or government agency.

(d) You expressly understand and acknowlelgeit is possible that unknown losses or clainmistex that present losses may have been
underestimated in amount or severity, and thatepqlicitly took that into account in determiningetbmount of consideration to be paid for
the giving of this Release, and a portion of saidsideration and the mutual covenants containesimdraving been agreed between the
parties with the knowledge of the possibility oEBwnknown claims, were given in exchange for bdatisfaction and discharge of all such
claims.

(e) Nothing in this release will affect ther@aany and TSI Holdings’ obligation to indemnify feled and hold you harmless to the fullest
extent allowable by applicable law and their resipeacharter and by-laws with respect to your actemissions in your capacity as an officer
of the Company, TSI Holdings and their respectiviesgdiaries and affiliates. The Company will congrto maintain directors’ and officers’
liability insurance with respect to actions or osigis by you as an officer of TSI Holdings, the @amy (or any of its subsidiaries) in the
same manner that it maintains such insurance Faraifficers and directors.

4. Equity. Your options to purchase TSI Holdings commonlstgranted pursuant to TSI Holdings’ 2006 Stock @ptincentive Plan, as
amended (th&Option Plan”), to the extent vested as of the Separation Dateramiain outstanding for the post-termination eissr@eriod
specified in Option Plan and any applicable agregntuch vested options will expire at the condngf such post-termination exercise
period to the extent not previously exercised. Tuation of the stock options that remain unvesteaf the Separation Date as well as any
unvested shares of TSI Holdings restricted comnbackswill be forfeited on the Separation Date withany payment.

5. No Other Compensation or BenefitSxcept as otherwise specifically provided hergoy will not be entitled to any compensation or
benefits or to participate in any past, preserititure employee benefit programs or arrangementiseo€Company, TSI Holdings or any of
their respective subsidiaries or affiliates on foersthe Separation Date.

6. Return of Company Proper#s of the date of this Agreement, you hereby regmethat you have delivered to the Company all Camgp
property and equipment in your possession or chntrduding, but not limited to, any and all reder manuals, customer lists, notebooks,
computers, computer programs and files, Comparditacards, papers, electronically stored informatmd documents kept or made by you
in connection with your employment and you will metain any copies thereof. You also representythathave left intact all electronic
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Company documents or files, including those that geveloped or helped develop. You are requirgdttan all such property whether or |
you sign this Agreemen

7. Nondisclosure of Confidential Information.

(a) You acknowledge and agree that in thesmaof your employment with the Company, you havguaied certain confidential company
information which you knew or understood was coaffitial or proprietary to the Company and whichysed in this Agreement, means:
information belonging to or possessed by the Compdrich is not available in the public domain ot neleased by some third-party through
no fault of yours, including, without limitation)(information received from the customers, suppligendors, employees or agents of the
Company under confidential conditions; (ii) custorard prospect lists, and details of agreementcanmanunications with customers and
prospects; (iii) sales plans and projections, pebg@ucing information, acquisition, expansion, lketing, financial and other business
information and existing and future products anditess plans of the Company; (iv) the Company’didential accounting, tax, or financial
information, results, procedures and methods;nfgrmation relating to existing claims, charges bfigiations; (vi) sales proposals,
demonstrations systems, sales material; and (vipl@yee information (including, but not limited fmersonnel, payroll, compensation and
benefit data and plans), including all such infatiovarecorded in manuals, memoranda, projecti@nts, minutes, plans, drawings,
sketches, designs, formula books, data, specibicgtisoftware programs and records, whether diegended or otherwise identified by the
Company as confidential information, as well ashsaéormation that is the subject of meetings aisdwbssions and not recorded. You
understand that such confidential company inforomatias been disclosed to you for the Company’®nbke You understand and agree that
you (i) will not disclose or communicate confidehtiinformation to any person or persons; and (i) mot make use of confidenti
information on your own behalf, or on behalf of atiter person or persons. You will give immediatdae to the Company if you are
ordered by a court or otherwise compelled by lanet@al any confidential information to any thirarty.

(b) In view of the nature of your employmentahe nature of the confidential information toigthyou have had access to, you
acknowledge and agree that any unauthorized diselds any person or persons of confidential infatiom, or other violation or threatened
violation of this Agreement (including, without litation, Sections 8(a) or 8(b)) will cause irregdeadamage to the Company and that,
therefore, the Company will, in addition to anyetlavailable remedy, be entitled to an injunctioohibiting you from any further disclosure,
attempted disclosure, violation or threatened viofaof this Agreement and the Company will be tiedi to recover the reasonable attorneys
fees and costs incurred in enforcing its rights.

(c) The obligations described in this Secficare in addition to, and in no way limit, your igialtions regarding the protection of
confidential information as described in the agreenthat you executed at the inception of your eympent with the Company (the
“Original Confidentiality Agreement”), the Executive Severance Agreement between youren@dmpany (th&Executive Severance
Agreement”) or in any option or other equity award agreemetwben you and the Company, which provisions arerparated by referent
herein. In the event of a conflict between the [miowns of this Section 7 and the obligations
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described in the Original Confidentiality Agreemehte Executive Severance Agreement or such awaement, the provisions that are
more restrictive upon you will govern.

8. NonSolicitation and NofCompetition Obligations

(a) _NonSolicitation. You agree that from the date hereof through tieeyear anniversary of the Separation Date, yolunwt| directly or
indirectly: (i) solicit or recruit for employmendffer employment to, or hire, on a temporary, perard or contract basis, anyone who was
employed by the Company during the last six moofthgur employment (&Covered Employee™); or (ii) encourage or persuade any
Covered Employee to leave the Company.

(b) NonCompetition. During the period from the date hereof throught&mber 30, 2010, you will not, directly or inditigc own,
manage, control, participate in, consult with, remskrvices for, or in any manner engage in, asyness competing directly or indirectly w
the business as conducted by the Company or aitgy Affiliates at the Separation Date or with anlier business that is the logical extension
of the Company’s and its Affiliates’ business a Beparation Date, within any metropolitan areahich the Company or any of its
Affiliates engages or has definitive plans to eregsuch business; provided, however, that youneil be precluded from purchasing or
holding publicly traded securities of any entitylsng as you hold less than 2% of the outstandinits wf any such class of securities and
have no active participation in the business ohserttity. For purposes of this Section 8(b), thenteAffiliate” will have the meaning ascrib
to such term in the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.

(c) The obligations described in this SecBaare in addition to, and in no way limit, your igiations regarding noncompetition and non-
solicitation as described in the Original Confidality Agreement, the Executive Severance Agreeroeitt any option or other equity award
agreement with the Company, which provisions aceriporated by reference herein, except that, nbstanding anything to the contrary
contained in such agreements, the restrictionsoarpetition (but not solicitation) contained thershrall end on September 30, 2010. In the
event of a conflict between the provisions of Béction 8 and the obligations described in the i@aigConfidentiality Agreement, the
Executive Severance Agreement or such award agreethe provisions that are more restrictive upon will govern.

9. NonDisparagement; Cooperation.

(a) You understand and agree that as a conditir payment to you of the consideration hereisatibed, you, on your behalf and on be
of your Representatives, will not (and your Repnéstives will not) at any time engage in any foritonduct, or make any statements or
representations that disparage or otherwise intpaireputation, goodwill, or commercial interestshe Company, its management,
stockholders, subsidiaries, parent, and/or otHédiasés.

(b) From and after the Separation Date, ydlu(iyicooperate in all reasonable respects with@ompany and its affiliates and their
respective directors, officers, attorneys and esgarconnection with the conduct of any disputdioa, proceeding, investigation or litigation
involving the Company or any of its affiliates, inding, without limitation, any such dispute, actiproceeding, investigation or litigation in
which you are called to testify and (ii)
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promptly respond to all requests by the Companyi@naffiliates relating to information concernittge Company which may be in your
possession. The Company will, as a condition ta wiligations under this Section 9(b), reimbursa @ any reasonable out of pocket
expenses and costs incurred as a result of suglerat®n (including all reasonable, out-of-pock&brmey fees), provided that such expenses
have been approved in writing in advance by an ke officer of the Company.

(c) You hereby consent to the disclosure ffrimation about you that TSI Holdings is requiredlisclose in its Annual Report on Form
10K, its Proxy Statement and in any other reporisjuired to be filed with the Securities and Exclea@gmmission under the Securities
of 1933, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, &edrtiles and regulations promulgated thereunder.

10. Waiver of RightsNo delay or omission by the Company in exercising ight under this Agreement will operate as aweabf that or
any other right. A waiver or consent given by thepany on any one occasion will be effective onlyhat instance and will not be
construed as a bar or waiver of any right on ahgobccasion.

11. Applicable LawThis Agreement will be interpreted and construedhgylaws of the State of New York, without regaradonflict of laws
provisions. You hereby irrevocably submit to ankiremvledge and recognize the jurisdiction of thert®of the State of New York, or, if
appropriate, a federal court within New York (whiburts, together with all applicable appellatertgyfor purposes of this agreement, are
the only courts of competent jurisdiction), ovey &ait, action or other proceeding arising outsfdler or in connection with this Agreement
or the subject matter hereof.

12. Entire Agreement/Severabilityrhis Agreement constitutes the sole and compietkerstanding and agreement between the partibs wit
respect to the matters set forth herein, and ter@o other agreements or understandings, whetitéen or oral and whether made
contemporaneously or otherwise (other than thei@aigConfidentiality Agreement and any confideritinphnd/or non-competition provisions
and related covenants set forth in the Executiwee@ace Agreement (as amended hereby) and anynagmégranting you options under the
Company’s Options Plans that you executed during gmployment with the Company the terms of whict survive execution of this
Agreement). No term, condition, covenant, repres@nt or acknowledgment contained in this Releaag be amended unless in a writing
signed by both parties. If any section of this Agment is determined to be void, voidable or unexfable, it will have no effect on the
remainder of the Agreement which will remain inl fiorce and effect.

13. AcceptanceYou will have twenty-one (21) days from the datefegth above to consider the terms of this Agreemkin order to receive
the benefits and payments provided for by SectiohtBis Agreement, you must execute this Agreeirteante your signature notarized and
return the executed Agreement to the Company, adddeto the Company, Attention: General Counséheahddress specified in Section 20
so that it is received any time on or before thgiration of the twenty-one (21) day period. Afteeeuting the Agreement, you will have
seven (7) days (tH&evocation Period”) to revoke it by indicating your desire to do
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so in writing addressed to and received by the @@punsel at the address set forth in Section®later than the seventhj day
following the date you executed the Agreementhiévent you do not accept this Agreement or iretlent you revoke this Agreement
during the Revocation Period, the obligations ef @ompany to make the payments and provide thditseset forth herein will automatical
be deemed null and void. No payments or benefildeipaid or provided under Section 2 of this Agrent following the Separation Date,
until you have signed this Agreement, had youraigre notarized and the Revocation Period hasekmiithout a revocation by you.

14. Voluntary AssenBy your signature on this Agreement, you affirm acttnowledge that:

(i) you have read this Agreement, and undedstdl of its terms, including the full and finalease of claims set forth in Section 3;

(ii) you have voluntarily entered into this regment and that you have not relied upon any septation or statement, written or oral, not
set forth in this Agreement;

(iii) the only consideration for signing thAgreement is as set forth herein and that the densiion received for executing this Agreement
is greater than that to which you may otherwisetgled;

(iiif) you have been given the opportunity aod have been advised by the Company to have tieglment reviewed by your attorney
and/or tax advisor; and

(iv) you have been given up to twenty-one @dys to consider this Agreement and that you wtaed that you have seven (7) days after
executing it to revoke it in writing, and that,lie effective, such written revocation must be nemaiby the Company within the seven (7) day
Revocation Period.

15. No Admission Nothing contained in this Agreement, or the fafdts submission to you, will constitute or be stmed as an admission
liability or wrongdoing by either party.

16. CounterpartsThe Agreement may be executed in two (2) signatawmterparts, each of which will constitute an wrad, but all of which
taken together will constitute but one and the sarsument.

17. Taxes; Section 409Alt is intended that the payments provided foeheare intended to comply with, or be exempt friime, terms of
Section 409A(“Section 409A") of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amenatetthe regulations promulgated thereunder. In treag
however, that any such payments are determined subject to Section 409A, then the Company mayensakh adjustments as are
reasonably required to comply with such sectiocluiting delaying any such payments that would Hzeen required to be paid to you
pursuant to this Agreement during the first six therfollowing the Separation Date until the endwth six-month period in accordance with
the requirements of Section 409A. In addition, ergense reimbursement under this Agreement withde on or before the last day of the
taxable year
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following the taxable year in which such expense wmaurred by you, and no such reimbursement oatheunt of expenses eligible for
reimbursement in any taxable year will in any wiga the expenses eligible for reimbursement iy ather taxable year. The termination of
your employment on December 22, 2009 is intendexbistitute ar“involuntary termination” for purposes of Sectio@9A. Notwithstanding
any of the preceding, the Company makes no repiasems regarding the tax treatment of any paymeatsunder, and you will be
responsible for any and all applicable taxes.

18. Breach of Agreementn the event of any breach by you of any provisib this Agreement (including, without limitatio8ection 1(a), 7,
8 or 9 (and including the agreements referencedrasmatporated therein), in addition to any otheneely available to it, the Company will
cease to have any obligation to make paymentsomige benefits to you under this Agreement, andaminued exercisability of your
options will cease, and the Company will be erditie recover the reasonable attorneys’ fees and auurred in enforcing its rights, to the
extent permitted by law. You agree that in the éyen bring a claim covered by this release in Whiou seek damages against the Com)
or in the event you seek to recover against arsuoh entities in any claim brought by a governmleagancy on your behalf, this Agreement
shall serve as a complete defense to such claims.

19. Third Party BeneficiariesYou acknowledge and agree that TSI Holdings dintsalirect and indirect subsidiaries (other thiha
Company) are third party beneficiaries of thisdetigreement. Without limiting the foregoing seenr'SI Holdings and such subsidiaries
may enforce this letter agreement against you. Ajigement may be assigned by the Company to apersentity which is an affiliate, and
will be assigned to any successor in interest bstsuntially all of the business operations of tlen@any. Upon such assignment, the rights
and obligations of the Company hereunder will beedhe rights and obligations of such affiliate ocsessor person or entity. This
Agreement will be binding upon the successors,aasijns of the Company.

20. Notices Any notices required or made pursuant to thise&grent will be in writing and will be deemed to 8deen given when
delivered or mailed by United States certified mturn receipt requested, postage prepaid, vl if to you, to the address in the
Company'’s payroll records; if to the Company, &ehn Plaza, # Floor, New York, NY 10001, Attn: General Counselt@ such other
address as either party may furnish to the othariting in accordance with this Section 20. Nosiad change of address will be effective
only upon receipt.

[Signatures continue on following page]
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Acknowledged and accepted t
TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL, LLC

By: /s/ David Kastin

Name: David Kastit
Title: SVP- General Counst

/s/ James Rizzo

James Rizz
STATE OF NEW YORK )
) SS.:
COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

On the 4th day of January in the year 201fyrbeme, the undersigned, personally appedfdES RIZZO, personally known to me or
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evideade the individual whose name is subscribed eéoatithin instrument and acknowledged to
me that he executed the same in his capacity,raidy his signature on the instrument, the indigldor the person upon behalf of which the
individual acted, executed the instrument.

/s/ Judith P. Broac
Notary Public

JUDITH P. BROACH
Notary Public, State of New Yol
No. 02BR616467!
Qualified in New York Count
Commission Expires Apr. 30, 20
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Company

Parent

Town Sports International, LL'
Subsidiaries

TSI 217 Broadway, LLC

TSI Alexandria, LLC

TSI Alexandria West, LLC
TSI Allston, LLC

TSI Andover, LLC

TSI Ardmore, LLC

TSI Arthrc-Fitness Services, LL!
TSI Astoria, LLC

TSI Battery Park, LLC

TSI Bay Ridge 86th Street, LL
TSI Bayridge, LLC

TSI Bensonhurst, LL(

TSI Bethesda, LL(C

TSI Boylston, LLC

TSI Broadway, LLC

TSI Brooklyn Belt, LLC

TSI Brunswick, LLC

TSI Bulfinch, LLC

TSI Butler, LLC

TSI Carmel, LLC

TSI Cash Management, LL
TSI Central Square, LL!

TSI Cherry Hill, LLC

TSI Chevy Chase, LL!

TSI Clarendon, LLC

TSI Clifton, LLC

TSI Cobble Hill, LLC

TSI Colonia, LLC

TSI Columbia Heights, LL(
TSI Commack, LLC

TSI Connecticut Avenue, LL!
TSI Court Street, LL(C

TSI Croton, LLC

TSI Danbury, LLC

TSI Davis Square, LL(

TSI Deer Park, LLC

TSI Dobbs Ferry, LLC

TSI Downtown Crossing, LL(
TSI Dupont Circle, Inc.

TSI Dupont Il, Inc.

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

NY

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

n/a

New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu

Philadelphia Sports Clu

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

Boston Sports Clu

Philadelphia Sports Clu

Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu

n/a

n/a

Exhibit 21
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Company

TSI East Brunswick, LL(
TSI East Meadow, LL(
TSI East 23, LLC

TSI East 31, LLC

TSI East 34, LLC

TSI East 36, LLC

TSI East 41, LLC

TSI East 48, LLC

TSI East 51, LLC

TSI East 59, LLC

TSI East 76, LLC

TSI East 86, LLC

TSI East 91, LLC

TSI Englewood, LLC
TSI F Street, LLC

TSI Fairfax, LLC

TSI Fenway, LLC

TSI First Avenue, LLC
TSI Forest Hills, LLC
TSI Fort Lee, LLC

TSI Framingham, LLC
TSI Franklin (MA), LLC
TSI Franklin Park, LLC
TSI Freehold, LLC

TSI Gallery Place, LL(C
TSI Garden City, LLC
TSI Garnerville, LLC
TSI Georgetown, LLC
TSI Germantown, LLC
TSI Glendale, LLC

TSI Glover, LLC

TSI Grand Central, LL(C
TSI Great Neck, LLC
TSI Greenwich, LLC
TSI Hartsdale, LLC

TSI Hawthorne, LLC
TSI Herald, LLC

TSI Hicksville, LLC

TSI Highpoint, LLC

TSI Hoboken, LLC

TSI Hoboken North, LLC
TSI Holdings (CIP), LLC
TSI Holdings (DC), LLC
TSI Holdings (IP), LLC
TSI Holdings (MA), LLC

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a




Company

TSI Holdings (MD), LLC
TSI Holdings (NJ), LLC
TSI Holdings (PA), LLC
TSI Holdings (VA), LLC
TSI Huntington, LLC
TSI Insurance, Inc

TSI International, Inc.
TSI Irving Place, LLC
TSI Jamaica Estates, LL
TSI Jersey City, LLC
TSI K Street, LLC

TSI Larchmont, LLC
TSI Lexington (MA), LLC
TSI Lincoln, LLC

TSI Livingston, LLC

TSI Long Beach, LLC
TSI Lynnfield, LLC

TSI M Street, LLC

TSI Mahwah, LLC

TSI Mamaroneck, LLC
TSI Market Street, LLC
TSI Marlboro, LLC

TSI Matawan, LLC

TSI Mercer Street, LL(
TSI Midwood, LLC

TSI Montclair, LLC

TSI Morris Park, LLC
TSI Murray Hill, LLC
TSI Nanuet, LLC

TSI Natick, LLC

TSI New Rochelle, LLC
TSI Newark, LLC

TSI Newbury Street, LL(
TSI Newton, LLC

TSI No Sweat, LLC

TSI North Bethesda, LL¢
TSI Norwalk, LLC

TSI Oceanside, LL(

TSI Old Bridge, LLC
TSI Parsippany, LL(
TSI Plainsboro, LLC

TSI Port Jefferson, LL(
TSI Princeton, LLC

TSI Princeton North, LLC

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
NY
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
No Sweal
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul




Company

TSI Providence Downtown, LL!
TSI Providence Eastside, LL
TSI Radnor, LLC

TSI Ramsey, LLC

TSI Reade Street, LL

TSI Rego Park, LL(C

TSI Ridgewood, LLC

TSI Rodin Place, LL(C

TSI Scarsdale, LL(

TSI Seaport, LLC

TSI Sheridan, LLC

TSI Silver Spring, LLC

TSI Smithtown, LLC

TSI Society Hill, LLC

TSI Soho, LLC

TSI Somers, LLC

TSI Somerset, LL(

TSI South Bethesda, LL
TSI South End, LLC

TSI South Park Slope, LL
TSI South Station, LL(
TSI Springfield, LLC

TSI Stamford Downtown, LL(
TSI Stamford Post, LL(
TSI Stamford Rinks, LLC
TSI Staten Island, LL(

TSI Sterling, LLC

TSI Sunnyside, LLC

TSI Syosset, LLC

TSI University Management, LL
TSI Varick Street, LLC

TSI Wall Street, LLC

TSI Waltham, LLC

TSI Washington, Inc.

TSI Water Street, LL(

TSI Watertown, LLC

TSI Wellesley, LLC

TSI Wellington Circle, LLC
TSI West 14, LLC

TSI West 16, LLC

TSI West 23, LLC

TSI West 38, LLC

TSI West 41, LLC

TSI West 44, LLC

TSI West 48, LLC

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul




Company

TSI West 52, LLC

TSI West 73, LLC

TSI West 76, LLC

TSI West 80, LLC

TSI West 94, LLC

TSI West 115th Street, LL
TSI West 125, LLC

TSI West 145th Street, LL
TSI West Caldwell, LLC
TSI West Hartford, LLC
TSI West Newton, LLC
TSI West Nyack, LLC

TSI West Springdfield, LLC
TSI Westbhorough, LL(
TSI Westport, LLC

TSI Westwood, LLC

TSI Weymouth, LLC

TSI White Plains City Center, LL!

TSI White Plains, LLC
TSI Whitestone, LLC
TSI Woburn, LLC
TSI Woodmere, LLC

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8
(No. 333-135048 and 333-151965) of Town Sportsriv@gonal Holdings, Inc. of our report dated Mafdh 2010
relating to the financial statements and the effeoess of internal control over financial repogtimhich appears in
this Form 10-K.

/s/ RRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERSLLP

New York, NY
March 15, 201(



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
[, Alexander Alimanestianu, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 2009 of Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmndttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamisother financial information included in thipoet,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedorre
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that iniesmanagement or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

By: /s/ Alexander Alimanestiar

Alexander Alimanestianu
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 15, 201



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Daniel Gallagher, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 2009 of Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmndttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamisother financial information included in thipoet,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedorre
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that iniesmanagement or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

By: /s/ Daniel Gallaghe

Daniel Gallagher
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 15, 201



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spdrtternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 20@4 fivith the Securities and Exchange Commissiotherdate
hereof (the “Report”), I, Alexander Alimanestiamertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®an
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition
and results of operations of the Company.

/sl Alexander Alimanestianu

Alexander Alimanestianu
Chief Executive Officer

March 15, 201(



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spdrtternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 20@é fivith the Securities and Exchange Commissiotherdate
hereof (the “Report”), I, Daniel Gallagher, certifyjursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursodg of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exgjean
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition
and results of operations of the Company.

/sl Daniel Gallagher

Daniel Gallagher
Chief Financial Officer

March 15, 201(



